Public Document Pack

" monmouthshire

W sir fynwy
Neuadd y Sir
Y Rhadyr
Brynbuga
Dydd lau, 28 Mawrth 2024

Dear Cynghorwyr,
CABINET

Gofynnir i chi fynychu cyfarfod Cabinet a gynhelir yn Steve Greenslade Room, County
Hall, Usk ar Dydd Mercher, 10fed Ebrill, 2024, am 5.00 pm.

AGENDA
Ymddiheuriadau am absenoldeb
Datganiadau o Fuddiant
Uwchlwytho Symiau Cyfalaf A106 i mewn i Gyllideb Gyfalaf 2024/25

Is-adran/Wardiau yr effeithir arnynt: Pob Un

Pwrpas: Awdurdodi uwchlwytho symiau cyfalaf o Gytundebau Adran 106 a
dderbyniwyd o'r datblygiadau a nodwyd a chyllid arall i Gyllideb Gyfalaf
2024/25

Awdur: Mike Moran, Cydlynydd Seilwaith Cymunedol
mikemoran@monmouthshire.gov.uk

GORCHYMYN GWARCHOD MANNAU CYHOEDDUS AR GYFER RHEOLI
CWN

Is-adran/Wardiau yr effeithir arnynt: Pob Un

Pwrpas: Ystyried y Gorchymyn Gwarchod Mannau Cyhoeddus arfaethedig ar gyfer
rheoli ¢wn yn Sir Fynwy a ddatblygwyd drwy ymgynghoriad cyhoeddus ac arfarnu
gan Bwyllgor Craffu Lleoedd ar 1 Chwefror 2024.

Awdur: Huw Owen, Prif Swyddog lechyd yr Amgylchedd,
huwowen@monmouthshire.gov.uk

POLISI DERBYN YSGOLION 2025/26, GAN GYNNWYS ADOLYGIAD Y
DALGYLCHOEDD YSGOLION

Is-adran/Wardiau yr effeithir arnynt: Pob Un

Pwrpas: Mae'r adroddiad hwn yn ceisio rhoi'r wybodaeth ddiweddaraf i'r
Aelodau am yr ymgynghoriad cyhoeddus a gwblhawyd yn ddiweddar i
adolygu'r dalgylch ar gyfer Ysgol Gynradd yr Eglwys yng Nghymru Brynbuga,

15-100

101-176


mailto:mikemoran@monmouthshire.gov.uk
mailto:huwowen@monmouthshire.gov.uk

fel rhan o drefniadau derbyn ysgolion Medi 2025/26.

Mae'r adroddiad hwn hefyd yn ceisio rhoi copi o'r adroddiad ymgynghori i'r
aelodau sy'n dadansoddi'r ymatebion a dderbyniwyd gan ymgyngoreion
ynghylch y newidiadau arfaethedig.

Awdur: Matt Jones, Rheolwr Uned Mynediad
matthewdjones@monmouthshire.gov.uk

Yours sincerely,

Paul Matthews
Chief Executive



" monmouthshire
WP sir fynwy

PORTFFOLIOS Y CABINET

Cynghorydd Sir Maes Cyfrifoldeb Ward
Mary Ann Yr Arweinydd Llanelly
Brocklesby Swyddogion Arweiniol - Paul Matthews, Matthew

Gatehouse

Strategaeth a Chyfeiriad yr Awdurdod Cyfan

Adolygu a gwerthuso perfformiad yr awdurdod cyfan
Hyrwyddo llecliaeth o fewn fframweithiau rhanbarthol a
chenedlaethol

Perthynas a Llywodraeth Cymru, Llywodraeth y DU a
chymdeithasau llywodraeth leol

Cysylltiadau Rhanbarthol & Rhanbarthau Dinesig a'r
Bwrdd Gwasanaethau Cyhoeddus

Caffael Strategol

Cynhyrchu a defnydd bwyd lleol, a chaffael gan
gynnwys amaethgoedwigaeth a garddwriaeth leol

Paul Griffiths

Aelod Cabinet dros Gynllunio a Datblygu
Economaidd a’r Dirprwy Arweinydd
Swyddog Arweiniol - Frances O'Brien

Strategaeth Economaidd

Cynllun datblygu lleol a chynllun datblygu strategol gan
gynnwys safleoedd tai strategol

Digartrefedd, darpariaeth dai fforddiadwy a thai sector
preifat (cartrefi gwag, cynllun prydlesu, benthyciadau
gwella cartrefi, grantiau cyfleusterau i'r anabl a
thechnoleg addasol)

Cefnogi Canol Trefi gan gynnwys parcio ceir a gorfodi
Rheoli Datblygu a Rheoli Adeiladu

Sgiliau a Chyflogaeth

Cysylltedd band eang

Meysydd parcio a gorfodaeth sifil

safonau masnach, iechyd yr amgylchedd, iechyd y
cyhoedd, trwyddedu

Chepstow Castle &
Larkfield

Ben Callard

Aelod Cabinet dros Adnoddau
Prif Swyddogion — Peter Davies, Frances O'Brien,
Matthew Phillips, Jane Rodgers

Cyllid gan gynnwys CATC a’r cylch cyllideb blynyddol
Buddion

Technoleg a gwybodaeth ddigidol

Adnoddau dynol, y gyflogres, iechyd a diogelwch

Tir ac adeiladau

Cynnal a chadw a rheoli eiddo

Cynllunio brys

Llanfoist & Govilon




Martyn Groucutt

Aelod Cabinet dros Addysg
Swyddogion Arweiniol - Will McLean, lan Saunders

Addysg Blynyddoedd Cynnar

Addysg statudol pob oed

Anghenion dysgu ychwanegol/cynhwysiant
Addysg 61-16 ac addysg oedolion

Safonau a gwelliant ysgolion

Dysgu Cymunedol

Rhaglen cymunedau cynaliadwy ar gyfer dysgu
Gwasanaethau leuenctid

Cludiant ysgol

Lansdown

lan Chandler

Aelod Cabinet dros Ofal Cymdeithasol, Diogelu a
Gwasanaethau lechyd Hygyrch
Swyddog Arweiniol - Jane Rodgers

Gwasanaethau Plant

Maethu a mabwysiadu

Gwasanaethau Troseddau leuenctid
Gwasanaethau Oedolion

Diogelu plant ac oedolion awdurdod cyfan
Anableddau

lechyd meddwl a lles

Perthynas & darparwyr iechyd a mynediad at
ddarpariaeth iechyd

Park

Catrin Maby

Aelod Cabinet dros Newid yn yr Hinsawdd a'r
Amgylchedd
Swyddogion Arweiniol — Frances O'Brien, lan Saunders

Datgarboneiddio

Cynllunio trafnidiaeth, trafnidiaeth gyhoeddus, priffyrdd a
fflyd Cyngor Sir Fynwy

Teithio llesol a hawliau tramwy

Rheoli gwastraff, gofal stryd, sbwriel, mannau
cyhoeddus a pharciau

Palmentydd a lonydd cefn

Lliniaru, rheoli ac adfer llifogydd

Cefn gwlad, bioamrywiaeth ac iechyd afonydd

Drybridge

Angela Sandles

Aelod Cabinet dros Gydraddoldeb ac Ymgysylltu
Swyddogion Arweiniol — Frances O'Brien,, Matthew
Gatehouse, Jane Rodgers

Anghydraddoldeb cymunedol a thlodi (iechyd, incwm,
maeth, anfantais, gwahaniaethu, ynysu ac argyfwng
costau byw)

Ymgysylltu & dinasyddion a hyrwyddo democratiaeth
gan gynnwys gweithio gyda sefydliadau gwirfoddol
Profiad y dinesydd - canolfannau cymunedol, canolfan
gyswllt, a gwasanaeth cwsmeriaid a chofrestryddion
Canolfannau hamdden, chwarae a chwaraeon
Datblygu Twristiaeth a’r Strategaeth Ddiwylliannol

Y Dref




Cyfleusterau cyhoeddus

Gwasanaethau Etholiadol ac adolygu’r cyfansoddiad
Cyfathrebu, cysylltiadau cyhoeddus a marchnata
Moeseg a safonau

Y Gymraeg




Nodau a Gwerthoedd Cyngor Sir Fynwy

Ein Pwrpas

e iddod yn sir ddi-garbon, gan gefnogi lles, iechyd ac urddas i bawb ar bob
cam o'u bywydau.

Amcanion rydym yn gweithio tuag atynt

e Lle tegifyw lle mae effeithiau anghydraddoldeb a thlodi wedi'u lleihau;

e Lle gwyrdd i fyw a gweithio gyda llai o allyriadau carbon a gwneud
cyfraniad cadarnhaol at fynd i'r afael a'r argyfwng yn yr hinsawdd a natur;

e Lle ffyniannus ac uchelgeisiol, lle mae canol trefi bywiog a lle gall
busnesau dyfu a datblygu;

e Lle diogel i fyw lle mae gan bobl gartref maen nhw'n teimlo'n ddiogel
ynddo;

e Lle cysylltiedig lle mae pobl yn teimlo'n rhan o gymuned ac yn cael eu
gwerthfawrogi;

e Lle dysgu lle mae pawb yn cael cyfle i gyrraedd eu potensial.

Ein Gwerthoedd

Bod yn agored. Rydym yn agored ac yn onest. Mae pobl yn cael cyfle i gymryd rhan mewn
penderfyniadau sy'n effeithio arnynt, dweud beth sy'n bwysig iddynt a gwneud pethau
drostynt eu hunain/eu cymunedau. Os na allwn wneud rhywbeth i helpu, byddwn yn dweud
hynny; os bydd yn cymryd peth amser i gael yr ateb, byddwn yn esbonio pam; os na allwn
ateb yn syth, byddwn yn ceisio eich cysylltu gyda'r bobl a all helpu - mae adeiladu
ymddiriedaeth ac ymgysylltu yn sylfaen allweddol.

Tegwch. Darparwn gyfleoedd teg, i helpu pobl a chymunedau i ffynnu. Os nad yw rhywbeth
yn ymddangos yn deg, byddwn yn gwrando ac yn esbonio pam. Byddwn bob amser yn
ceisio trin pawb yn deg ac yn gyson. Ni allwn wneud pawb yn hapus bob amser, ond byddwn
yn ymrwymo i wrando ac esbonio pam y gwnaethom weithredu fel y gwnaethom.

Hyblygrwydd. Byddwn yn parhau i newid a bod yn hyblyg i alluogi cyflwyno'r gwasanaethau
mwyaf effeithlon ac effeithiol. Mae hyn yn golygu ymrwymiad gwirioneddol i weithio gyda
phawb i groesawu ffyrdd newydd o weithio.

Gwaith Tim. Byddwn yn gweithio gyda chi a'n partneriaid i gefnogi ac ysbrydoli pawb i
gymryd rhan fel y gallwn gyflawni pethau gwych gyda'n gilydd. Nid ydym yn gweld ein
hunain fel ‘trefnwyr' neu ddatryswyr problemau, ond gwnawn y gorau o syniadau, asedau ac
adnoddau sydd ar gael i wneud yn siwr ein bod yn gwneud y pethau sy'n cael yr effaith
mwyaf cadarnhaol ar ein pobl a lleoedd.



Caredigrwydd — Byddwn yn dangos caredigrwydd i bawb yr ydym yn gweithio gyda nhw,
gan roi pwysigrwydd perthnasoedd a'r cysylltiadau sydd gennym &’n gilydd wrth wraidd pob
rhyngweithio.



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 3

(@ monmouthshire
WP sir fynwy
SUBJECT: Uploading S106 Capital Sums into 2024/25 Capital Budget
MEETING: Cabinet
DATE: 10th April 2024

DIVISION/WARDS AFFECTED:

1. PURPOSE:
To authorise the uploading of capital sums from Section 106 Agreements
received from the developments specified into the 2024/25 Capital Budget

2. RECOMMENDATIONS that:

2.1 a capital budget of £95,000 be created in 2024/25 to fund play area
improvements at the Cas Troggi Open Space in Caldicot, and that this is
funded by corresponding contributions of £69,120 from the Section 106
balances held by the council from the S106 Agreement in relation to the
former White Hart Public House in Caldicot (Planning Ref:
DC/2013/00796) and £25,880 from the Section 106 balances held by the
council from the S106 Agreement in relation to the development of land
east of Church Road, Caldicot (Planning Ref: DM/2018/00880).

2.2  a capital budget of £144,456 be created in 2024/25 to fund works at one
or more of three beneficiary sites (Caldicot Greenway, Caldicot Castle
Country Park and Caldicot Town Centre Regeneration) and that this is
funded by a corresponding contribution of £144,456 held by the council
from the S106 Agreement in relation to the development of land east of
Church Road, Caldicot (Planning Ref: DM/2018/00880).

2.3 A decision on the allocation of the remaining balance of £144,456 be
delegated to the Chief Officer for Customer, Culture and Wellbeing in
consultation with the Cabinet Member for Equalities and Engagement,
following consultation with the local members for that area.

2.4 a capital budget of £24,629 be created in 2024/25 to fund play area
improvements at Rockfield Farm, Undy and that this is funded by a
corresponding contribution of £24,629 from the Section 106 balances held
by the council from the S106 Agreement relating to the development of
land at Vinegar Hill, Undy (Parcel A) (Planning Ref: DM/2019/01937).

2.5 a capital budget of £13,422 be created in 2024/25 to fund advance
planning works on land at Knollbury to establish increased recreation
facilities for the Magor with Undy area and that this is funded by a
corresponding contribution of £13,422 held by the council from the S106
Agreement relating to the development of land at Vinegar Hill, Undy
(Planning Ref: DM/2019/01937).

Page 1




2.6

2.7

2.8

2.9

the above amount (specified in para 2.5) be utilised to offset the costs of
obtaining planning permission for the recreational use of land adjacent to
Rose Cottage, Knollbury, Magor currently held on capital budget code
90847.

a capital budget of £120,000 be created in 2024/25 for play area
improvements at Mardy Playing Field and that this is funded by a
corresponding contribution of £120,000 from the Section 106 balances
held by the council from the S106 Agreement in relation to the
development of land at Deri Farm, Abergavenny (Planning Ref:
DM/2014/01360).

when uploaded into the 2024/25 capital budget, the funding of £120.000
set out in para 2.7 above is transferred to the Llantilio Pertholey
Community Council, as owners of the Mardy Playing Field, and that
officers work closely with the community council to agree and implement
a range of play area improvements.

A capital budget of £13,230 be created in 2024/25 for play area
improvements at Bailey Park, Abergavenny and that this is funded by a
corresponding contribution of £13,230 from Section 106 balances held by
the council from the S106 Agreement for the development of land at The
Hill, Abergavenny (Planning Ref: DC/2015/01585)

KEY ISSUES:

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

When new residential developments in the county are granted planning
permission, this invariably involves the developer entering into a Section
S106 Agreement to provide new or upgrade existing play areas, public
open spaces and recreation sites. The S106 Agreements contain
clauses specifying the areas or sites where the funding is to be used (the
beneficiary sites) and the timescale in which the money has to be spent
(the spend by dates).

The funding set out in Section 2 (recommendations) of this report has all
been received by the council and it is proposed to spend this on the
projects specified in the following paragraphs, beginning with para 3.4.

Members will be aware that in Wales, play is a statutory duty of local
authorities and every three years councils have to undertake a detailed
play sufficiency assessment, together with an annual review. The
proposals outlined in this report relating to play are in line with the
council’s adopted play sufficiency assessment. The council has also
adopted in principle the Fields in Trust six-acre standard that contains
guidance on outdoor play, but it has adopted a more strategic approach
to developing playparks in recent years, to avoid a proliferation of small
pocket parks, which provide very little in terms of play value.

The play area at Cas Troggi (also known as the Hall Park Open Space)
in Caldicot was installed back in the 1960s/70s and it is proposed to
replace the play equipment and enclose the play area, using the funding

Page 2



3.5

3.6

3.7

3.8

3.9

identified in recommendation 2.1 of this report. The works were
scheduled to start in December 2023 but have been delayed due to the
wet conditions on site. The footpaths around the play area have been
improved and resurfaced in advance of the play equipment installation.

The £144,456 referred to in para 2.2 is the remaining balance of the
offsite recreation contribution from the Church Road (east) development
site. It is proposed that this sum is held in the capital budget and utilised
towards one or more of the three remaining beneficiary sites, namely
Caldicot Greenway, Caldicot Castle & Country Park and Caldicot Town
Centre Regeneration, and that a decision on the allocation of this
funding is delegated to the relevant Chief Officer and Cabinet Member.

The sum of £24,629 (para 2.4) will be used to carry out improvements to
the play area at Rockfield Farm, as specified in the S106 Agreement.

The £13,422 referred to in paras 2.5 and 2.6 is the remaining balance of
offsite recreation funding received from the Vinegar Hill development
and is to be used to offset the current overspend in the capital budget as
a result of expenditure incurred on plans and surveys undertaken to
support the submission of a planning application for the Knollbury site. It
is proposed to utilise this sum to offset the overspend and cover the
costs of submitting a formal planning application.

When planning permission for the Deri Farm site north of Abergavenny
was granted, there was limited space to provide a new neighbourhood
play area, so provision was made for an offsite contribution to improve
the existing play area at Mardy Playing Field, which is a short walk away
from the new development. The £120,000 (referred to in paras 2.7 and
2.8) will be sufficient to cover the costs of a substantial upgrade of the
exiting play facilities. As Mardy Paying Field is not owned by this council,
officers will work with the site owners (Llantilio Pertholey Community
Council) to make sure that the play area improvements are carried out.

The sum of £13,230 (para 2.9) will be used to carry out improvements to
the play area and surfacing at Bailey Park.

INTEGRATED IMPACT ASSESSMENT (INCORPORATING
EQUALITIES, FUTURE GENERATIONS, WELSH LANGUAGE AND
SOCIO ECONOMIC DUTY)

The Integrated Impact Assessment is attached at Appendix1. This
highlights the positive impacts of play and outdoor recreation on
children/young people, families and communities.

Page 3



10.

11.

5. OPTIONS APPRAISAL

In reality, there are no options to appraise — the funding referred to in this
report has been given for specific purposes as specified in Section 106
Agreements, under which the council has a contractual obligation.

EVALUATION CRITERIA

Progress will be monitored in October 2024 to assess progress with the
various projects referred to in this report.

REASON

This is a continuation of the council’s continued investment, sometimes in
partnership with town and community councils and other bodies, in
recreation and play to achieve significant community benefits, but there
needs to be an approved budget in place to cover the costs incurred.

RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS
There are no additional resource implications, as the expenditure involved

will be covered by Section 106 balances, and by the grants and contribution
set out in the report.

CONSULTEES
Cabinet Local Members  Senior Leadership Team
Chief Officer — Customer, Culture and Wellbeing

BACKGROUND PAPERS
None

AUTHOR & CONTACT DETAILS:
Mike Moran, Community Infrastructure Coordinator
Email: mikemoran@monmouthshire.gov.uk

Tel: 07894 573834

Page 4


mailto:mikemoran@monmouthshire.gov.uk

> monmouthshire

Qo sir fynwy

Name of the Officer: Mike Moran

Please give a brief description of the aims of the proposal

To upload S106 sums into the 2024/25 Capital Budget to enable works to be
Phone no: 07894 573834 undertaken on a number of capital projects in the current financial year

E-mail: mikemoran@monmouthshire.gov.uk

Name of Service area: MonLife Countryside Date: March 2024

1. Are your proposals going to affect any people or groups of people with protected characteristics? Please explain the impact, the

-u evidence you have used and any action you are taking below.
Q

Describe any positive impacts your
proposal has on the protected
characteristic

What has been/will be done to
mitigate any negative impacts or
better contribute to positive
impacts?

Describe any negative impacts
your proposal has on the
protected characteristic

D
n Protected
Characteristics

0N

Age No employment/training issues identified.
The proposals will benefit residents of all
ages, in particular children and young
people.

No negative impact identified N/A

Disability The improvements proposed, in particular

those relating to play provision will be

No negative impacts identified, other
than the fact that certain items of play

designed to be accessible, wherever
possible to people with disabilities and/or
mobility issues

equipment may be difficult to access for
persons with a physical impairment




Describe any positive impacts your

Describe any negative impacts

What has been/will be done to

Protected proposal has on the protected your proposal has on the mitigate any negative impacts or
Characteristics characteristic protected characteristic better contribute to positive
impacts?
Gender Neutral Neutral N/A
reassignment
Marriage or civil Neutral Neutral N/A
partnership
Pregnancy or The sites will be designed for ease of Neutral N/A
maternity access for pushchairs and wheelchairs
Race .Neutral Neutral N/A
Religion or Belief .Neutral Neutral N/A
O
(DSEX The proposals are of equal benefit to people Neutral N/A
P of all genders
(0]
Sexual Orientation .Neutral Neutral N/A

2. The Socio-economic Duty and Social Justice
The Socio-economic Duty requires public bodies to have due regard to the need to reduce inequalities of outcome which result from socio-
economic disadvantage when taking key decisions This duty aligns with our commitment as an authority to Social Justice.




Describe any positive impacts your
proposal has in respect of people
suffering socio economic
disadvantage

Describe any negative impacts
your proposal has in respect of
people suffering socio economic
disadvantage.

What has been/will be done to
mitigate any negative impacts or
better contribute to positive
impacts?

Socio-economic
Duty and Social
Justice

The proposals in this report represent
improvements to recreation and/or play
provision in a number of communities
across the county, the majority of which are
free at the point of access.

Neutral

N/A.

) abed




3. Policy making and the Welsh language.

How does your proposal impact
on the following aspects of the
Council’s Welsh Language
Standards:

Describe the positive impacts of
this proposal

Describe the negative impacts
of this proposal

What has been/will be done
to mitigate any negative
Impacts or better contribute
to positive impacts

Policy Making

Effects on the use of the Welsh
language,

Promoting Welsh language

Treating the Welsh language no
tJess favourably
b}

The majority of the proposals relate to
installing, replacing or upgrading children’s
play areas — none of which are staffed
sites.

All signage on the sites will be bilingual to
meet the requirements of the Welsh
Language legislation.

Although this will mean that the
Welsh language is treated no less
favourably, it does nothing to
promote or encourage the use of
the Welsh language

The Welsh language will take
precedence of place on bilingual
signage.

It maybe possible to include the
Welsh language names of
individual pieces of play
equipment to provide the
opportunity for children and their
families to use more Welsh
language words

ﬁ"\R"\I

Use of Welsh language in service
delivery

Promoting use of the language

Welsh can do so via the established
means of communicatin with the council in
Welsh by phone, email, twitter, Facebook,
letters, formas, website, etc.

DOperational Not applicable Not applicable N/A
D
XRecruitment & Training of

workforce

Service delivery Those who wish to report concerns in Not applicable N/A

4. Does your proposal deliver any of the well-being goals below? Please explain the impact (positive and negative) you expect, together
with suggestions of how to mitigate negative impacts or better contribute to the goal. There’s no need to put something in every box if it is not

relevant!




Well Being Goal

Does the proposal contribute to this goal?
Describe the positive and negative impacts.

What actions have been/will be taken to
mitigate any negative impacts or better
contribute to positive impacts?

A prosperous Wales

Efficient use of resources, skilled,
educated people, generates wealth,
provides jobs

The projects will be funded from S106 balances
provided by developers of residential housing in the
county, so there is no call on the council’s core
capital budget.

A resilient Wales
Maintain and enhance biodiversity and

land, river and coastal ecosystems that

support resilience and can adapt to
change (e.g. climate change)

The projects involved in this proposal are important
community and recreation facilities in the local area,
some of which will involve landscsape improvements
to make the most of the natural environment

A healthier Wales
People’s physical and mental
ellbeing is maximized and health

pimpacts are understood

The projects to be implemented with the funding
uploaded involve improving peoples’ physical and
mental wellbeing by providing outdoor recreation
opportunities

N Ay 1
O

GA Wales of cohesive communities

Communities are attractive, viable,
safe and well connected

When they are completed the projects will contribute
to the safety and cohesiveness of the local
communities in which they are located

A globally responsible Wales
Taking account of impact on global
well-being when considering local
social, economic and environmental
wellbeing

The availability of good quality & accessible facilities
in the local community means that local people do
not have to travel to other areas by car or by public
transport, thereby contributing to a reduction in
harmful nitrogen dioxide emissions.

A Wales of vibrant culture and
thriving Welsh language

Culture, heritage and Welsh language
are promoted and protected. People
are encouraged to do sport, art and
recreation

There are no specific proposals in this report to
promote the Welsh language but the improvements
proposed will encourage more participation in
outdoor recreational activities.




Well Being Goal

Does the proposal contribute to this goal?
Describe the positive and negative impacts.

What actions have been/will be taken to
mitigate any negative impacts or better
contribute to positive impacts?

A more equal Wales
People can fulfil their potential no
matter what their background or

circumstances

The improvements will encourage improved access
for and participation by disabled people and people
with other support needs — also by all sections of the
community regardless of their background or ability

5. How has your proposal embedded and prioritised the sustainable governance principles in its development?

Sustainable Development

Does your proposal demonstrate you have met

Are there any additional actions to be taken to

NT "\RV\

Collaboration

Principle this principle? If yes, describe how. If not explain mitigate any negative impacts or better
why. contribute to positive impacts?
5 Balancing The sustainability of the sites has been assessed and Funding is proposed from existing S106 balances to
> short term officers are confident that the investments proposed will be | cover the cost of the works proposed.
P & need with sustainable in the longer term.
3 long term and
planning for
Long Term the future
Working Some of the projects proposed involve working closely with
together with | the community and other parties to deliver improved
M‘ other facilities and to ensure better access for children with
partners to disabilities and other support needs.
deliver
objectives




Sustainable Development

Does your proposal demonstrate you have met

Are there any additional actions to be taken to
mitigate any negative impacts or better

T "\RV\ ]

Integration

Principle this principle? If yes, describe how. If not explain . 1Mpeé
why. contribute to positive impacts?
Involving In some instances there has been prior consultation with
those with local interested parties, including local members and town
an interest and community councils.
and seeking
W their views With some of the more recent S106 contributions received,
that consultation has yet to take place.
Involvement

Putting The proposals involve the enhancement of faciltieis, as per
resources the intention of the Section 106 Agreements from where the
into funding has arisen. Problem prevention is not the basis
preventing upon which the funding has been given but investing in the
problems improvement of existing facilities will help to prevent

O occurring or | problems occurring.

g Prevention  getting

D worse

—

= Considering | The projects will have positive impacts on the health and
impact on all | wellbeing of people living in the areas of benefitstipulated in
wellbeing the Section 106 Agreements
goals
together and
on other
bodies




6. Council has agreed the need to consider the impact its decisions has on the following important responsibilities: Corporate
Parenting and Safeguarding. Are your proposals going to affect any of these responsibilities?

Describe any positive impacts your Describe any negative impacts What will you do/ have you done
proposal has your proposal has to mitigate any negative impacts
or better contribute to positive
impacts?
Safeguarding All of the proposals are designed to increase | No negative impacts identified N/A

participation by local prople, irrespective of
their backgrounds.

Corporate Parenting Neutral No negative impacts identified N/A

7. What evidence and data has informed the development of your proposal?

e Local population data taken from census information
e Information from respective Section 106 Agreements
o Data from fied play value assessments

T "\RV\ 1
, L o9yt d

8. SUMMARY: As aresult of completing this form, what are the main positive and negative impacts of your proposal, how have
they informed/changed the development of the proposal so far and what will you be doing in future?

Positive Impacts

o The proposals comply with the statutory teste relating to Section 106 funding
e The projects identified in the report will have a positive impact on the health and wellbeing of local residents
o People with protected characteristics will benefit from the improvements proposed

Negative Impacts

o ltis difficult to demonstrate that the project will have a meaningful benefit for promoting the Welsh language

The above impacts have not materially changed the recommendations contained in the report




9. ACTIONS: As aresult of completing this form are there any further actions you will be undertaking? Please detail them below, if

applicable.
What are you going to do When are you going to do it? | Who is responsible
Work with colleagues in other in other directorates, and in consultation 2024/25 Financial Year Community Infrastructure
with the relevant local members and town and community councils to Coordinator

implement the proposals contained within this report, once the specified
amounts have been uploaded into the capital budget.

10.VERSION CONTROL: The Equality and Future Generations Evaluation should be used at the earliest stage, such as informally
within your service, and then further developed throughout the decision making process. Itis important to keep a record of this
process to demonstrate how you have considered and built in equality and future generations considerations wherever

possible.
;DU\/ersion Decision making stage Date considered Brief description of any amendments made following
«c:No. consideration
H Internal Consultation Oct 2023 - Mar 2024 Adjustment of some of the S106 figures

RN
18]

1
2 Cabinet 10 April 2024




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 4

“ monmouthshire

WO sir fynwy

SUBJECT: PUBLIC SPACES PROTECTION ORDER FOR DOG CONTROLS
MEETING: Cabinet
DATE: 10t April 2024

DIVISION/WARDS AFFECTED: All

1. PURPOSE:

1.1 To consider the proposed Public Spaces Protection Order, (PSPO), for dog controls in
Monmouthshire developed through public consultation and appraisal by Place Scrutiny
Committee on the 15t February 2024.

2. RECOMMENDATIONS:

2.1  To approve the adoption of the PSPO for dog controls in Monmouthshire (Appendix Two),
to be introduced under the provisions of the Anti—Social Behaviour Crime and Policing Act
2014, commencing on the 1t June 2024 and remaining in force for 3 years ending on the
315t May 2027.

2.2  To update the Council’s constitution to give delegated authority to Officers for enforcement
powers for breach of the PSPO, namely the Head of Public Protection, the Head of
Neighbourhood Services and the Chief Officer People, Performance and Partnerships.

3. KEY ISSUES:

3.1 Despite the efforts of responsible dog owners and many partners, dog fouling continues to
be a problem in public spaces in the county. Fouling issues are often the trigger for
requests for controls to be introduced in public spaces such as dogs on leads or
exemption areas. While it is important that collaborative working on a local level continues
through initiatives such as the Council’s Give Dog Fouling the Red Card group, it is also
important that the Authority makes full use of the tools provided by legislation.

3.2 Currently the issue of dog fouling is addressed in the County through the Dogs (Fouling of
Land) Act 1996. However, the offence of failing to remove the faeces only covers certain
designated land, as detailed in the Monmouthshire County Council (Fouling of Land by
Dogs) (Monmouthshire) Designation Order (No 1) 1998, in Part 1 by general description
and Part 2 specifically. Importantly the Order, provided in Appendix One, does not include
all public spaces.

1
Page 15



3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

3.7

3.8

The Anti-social Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act 2014 (the Act) introduced new powers
for use by Councils to address anti-social behaviour, including PSPOs. Under the
provisions of the Act, local authorities must be satisfied on reasonable grounds that the
activity subject to an Order:

- has, oris likely to have, a detrimental effect on the quality of life of those in the locality.
- s, or is likely to be, persistent or continuing in nature.

- is, or is likely to be, unreasonable.

- justifies the restrictions being imposed.

The aim is to stop the unreasonable behaviour in public spaces by introducing restrictions
on the use of an area. A public space is defined in the Act as ‘any place to which the
public or any section of the public has access, on payment or otherwise, as of right or by
virtue of express or implied permission.’

When assessing what is ‘unreasonable’ activity, there is a need to balance the rights of the
community to enjoy public spaces, with the civil liberties of individuals and groups who
may be affected by any restrictions imposed.

The process of considering a PSPO on dog controls and what it should encompass started
in March 2020 when Members of the Strong Communities Select Committee endorsed a
public consultation. The initial consultation, delayed by the emergence of Covid 19, was
undertaken between July and October 2021 and resulted in over 1330 responses, broadly
supporting the plans to introduce a PSPO. Three subsequent reports to Scrutiny and
further engagement with key stakeholders, including Town and Community Councils,
helped guide the development of a draft PSPO in readiness for further public consultation
undertaken between the 2" October and the 25" November 2023.

Public Consultation. This was undertaken in accord with the requirements of the Act and
included the following bilingual documents:

- the draft PSPO.
- aconsultation questionnaire.
- asummary of the proposals including a frequently asked questions page.

The consultation was provided on the Council’s website for completion online, with a
paper copy available on request. Awareness to the survey was raised on the Council’s
social media accounts and direct messaging to key stakeholders including to:

- Chief Superintendent and Chief Inspector for the East Gwent Local Policing Area

- Police and Crime Commissioner for Gwent

- Elected Members including County Councillors, MP and AM

- Town and Community Councils

- Dogs Trust, Kennel Club and RSPCA

- Registered Social Landlords

- Local business forums

- Key large landowning organisations - CADW, National Trust, Woodland Trust, Natural
Resources Wales, Bannau Brycheiniog, Canal and Rivers Trust.

2
Page 16



3.9

3.10

3.11

3.12

3.13

- Relevant MCC sections with responsibility for public spaces.

Results of the Public Consultation. There were 517 completed questionnaires, the vast
majority of which, 481 (93%), were marked as completed by residents; 331 (62%) of the
returns by dog owners. In addition, there were a number of direct responses from the
aforementioned key stakeholders. A summary of the headlines with regard to the
proposed dog controls is as follows:

Provision One, Dog Fouling. Proposal: Require person in charge of a dog to clean up if
the dog defecates on any public land in the county.

This received strong support with 479 (93%) of completed questionnaires and also key
stakeholders in favour.

Provision Two, Dog Bags. Proposal: Require person in charge of a dog to have an
appropriate means (e.g. a dog poo bag) to pick up any faeces deposited by that dog and
to show they have bag(s) if requested to do so by an authorised officer.

This received strong support with 456 (88%) of completed questionnaires in favour. The
Dogs Trust though questioned whether this is practical to enforce; and the Kennel Club in
particular raised concern of the potential for responsible dog owners to be penalised
unfairly if they were perhaps approached at the end of a walk having collected their dog’s
faeces and disposed of it and in doing so used the last of their bags. These concerns are
understood, but it is hoped that the provision in particular will enable ‘intel’ led enforcement
for officers to approach dog walkers where concern has been raised that they routinely do
not pick up and enable early engagement with them.

Provision Three, Dog on Lead by Direction. Proposal: Require person in charge of a
dog when in any public space to put the dog on a lead, of no more than two metres length,
when directed to do so by an authorised officer, where the dog is considered to be out of
control or causing alarm or distress or to prevent a nuisance.

This received strong support with 440 (85%) of completed questionnaires and also key
stakeholders in favour.

Provision Four, Dog Exclusion Areas. Proposal: The introduction of a number of dog
exclusion areas, identified through consultation as high public health risk areas and requiring
further protection from dog fouling.

Maps were provided in Annex 1 of the Draft Order, with a total 178 proposed exclusion
areas, mainly children’s play areas, marked sports pitches and school / leisure centre
grounds.

This received majority support with 330 (64%) of completed questionnaires in favour. As
expected though the proposal attracted a range of views. Two proposed exclusion areas,
in particular, had significant comment:

3
Page 17



3.14

3.15

- Gilwern sports pitch. A petition was received, signed by over 130 households, arguing
against the proposed exclusion area on the football pitch on the basis of it not currently
being used by a football team and the pitch being mainly used to exercise dogs.

- Magor Church In Wales School, Sports Field / Sycamore Playing Field. There were 30
completed questionnaires against this proposal with the main arguments posed that the
field is used by the community outside school hours and one of the last central secure
areas in Magor where dogs can be let off a lead.

With regard to key stakeholders the Dogs Trust, Kennel Club and RSPCA did not object to
there being exclusion areas providing there was a specific and reasonable justification for
a designation. In common with their comments on proposed ‘Dogs on Leads’ areas
(Provision Five) they emphasised the need for the areas restricting dog access / use to be
kept to a minimum and for dog owners to provide their dogs with appropriate daily
exercise, including regular opportunities to walk and run. The RSPCA in particular
encouraged a more flexible approach to allowing dogs on council owned marked sports
pitches and that Provision One (pick up dog fouling) goes someway to mitigating the
issues associated with concerns associated with pitches.

Provision Five, Dogs on Leads Areas. Proposal: The introduction of a number of areas
where a dog needs to be kept on a lead of no more than two metres in length.

Maps were provided in Annex 1 of the Draft Order, with a total 17 proposed areas. This
received majority support with 374 (72%) of completed questionnaires in favour.

Again the proposal attracted a range of comments but there was one area in particular
that received negative comment. This was Gilwern recreation ground (which includes the
marked sports pitch referred to in 3.13 and proposed to be excluded). The aforementioned
petition argued that the recreation ground is the only area for dogs to run freely off the lead
and there are no current issues with dogs being off the lead.

Consultation Outcomes — Amendments to the draft PSPO. The findings of the public
consultation summarised in 3.7 to 3.14, which included some amendments to the draft
PSPO, were presented to Place Scrutiny Committee on the 15t February 2024. Members
considered the proposed PSPO and endorsed its progress for consideration by Cabinet.
The main points to highlight for Cabinet are:

- Gilwern sports pitch and recreation ground. The resident’s petition was brought to the
attention of Llanelly Community Council who own the land concerned. The Council
met, considered the points made but have requested that the proposals included in the
2023 public consultation remain i.e. the games areas (children’s play area, multi use
games area, marked sports pitch and cycle track) are included in the PSPO as
Exclusion Areas; the recreation ground, including the skate park, is included as a Dogs
on Leads area. These are shown in maps 108 and 109 respectively in the PSPO
provided in Appendix Two. It should be noted that the Community Council recognises
the need for local residents to exercise their dogs off lead and have indicated intent to
liaise with this Council’s Grounds team to explore the use of a nearby field to help in
this regard.

4
Page 18



Magor Church In Wales School Sports Field / Sycamore Playing Field. This is owned
by Monmouthshire County Council with responsibility primarily with the Children and
Young People (CYP) Directorate. The report to Place Scrutiny 15t February 2024
explained that while concerns of local residents (3.13) have been considered by CYP
management, the view was that given the primary use by school children the field
should be a dog Exclusion Area, as presented in the public consultation, in order to
ensure the safe delivery of the school curriculum and also the range of activities
outside normal school hours. However, since the report to Scrutiny, in recognition of
the terms of a deed made between this Council and Magor with Undy Community
Council in May 2016, which includes for community use of the field for dog walking, the
designation shown in map 139 of the PSPO has been changed from the previously
proposed Exclusion Area to a Dogs on Leads Area.

Additional dog Exclusion maps have been added for the play areas which are part of
the Persimmon Homes development at Rockfield, Monmouth (Maps 167, 168 and 169
respectively). This is in keeping with the theme of providing added protection to such
areas.

Additional dog Exclusion maps have been added for Mardy Park Play Area and Playing
Field, Abergavenny (Maps 126 and 127) on the request of the landowner Llantilio
Pertholey Community Council, again in keeping with the theme of providing added
protection to such areas.

The boundaries for the Castle Dell Park Play Area, Chepstow (Map 61 Exclusion Area)
have been altered to reflect recent planning approval for replacement and slight
relocation of the play area.

Sudbrook Cricket Club, Caldicot, had been included in the draft PSPO as an Exclusion
Area but this designation has been removed on request from the Club who wish to
manage access for dogs themselves.

The changes to the proposed PSPO mean there are 180 Exclusion Areas (of which
122 children’s play areas, 22 marked sports pitches / playing fields, 34 school / leisure
centre grounds) and 20 Dogs on Leads areas (of which 5 Cemeteries, 3 Skateparks
and 2 Castles).

3.16 Implications of the PSPO.

Policy: The proposal will contribute positively to the council’s corporate key priorities. It
will contribute to a cleaner environment and a reduction in the health and safety risks
associated with direct exposure to dog fouling. Focused and proportionate enforcement
action will contribute to positive behaviour change, which will continue to be supported
by the ongoing awareness raising work of the County and Town and Community
Councils through schemes such as the Give Dog Fouling the Red Card working group.

Legal: If the PSPO is adopted the Monmouthshire County Council (Fouling of Land by
Dogs) (Monmouthshire) Designation Order (No 1) 1998 will be revoked. If the PSPO is

5
Page 19



not adopted the existing 1998 Order will remain in force. It is proposed that the PSPO
is made for the maximum allowable period of three years.

Financial: Following approval, the local authority must publish the PSPO on its website
and erect on or adjacent to the public place to which the Order relates sufficient signs
to draw the attention of any member of the public using that place that the PSPO has
been made and its effect. There are 200 proposed Exclusion and Leads Only areas
and it is estimated that approximately 315 signs are needed for these areas. An
additional 300 signs are needed to display where there are no restricted access
controls but are required to bring to the attention of dog walkers the need to pick up.
This total cost of the signs is anticipated to be circa £37000 plus vat. Of the 200
restricted access areas: 28 sites are owned by Town and Community Councils, 5 by
Monmouthshire Housing Association (MHA) and 8 are leased to Sports Clubs. It is
proposed that the site owner / club lessee are requested to meet the cost of the
signage for their individual areas. This leaves circa £30000 plus vat to be met by this
council and discussion has started with Communities and Place and other involved
Directorates as to how best to meet this budget need.

Enforcement: Breach of a PSPO is a criminal offence with a fine liable on prosecution
in court of up to £1000. Authorised Officers can issue a Fixed Penalty Notice (FPN) to
offer the recipient the opportunity to discharge liability for the offence. A report was
presented to Cabinet on the 7 September 2016 to consider the Council's approach to
discharging its responsibilities under the Anti—Social Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act
2014. Cabinet agreed to the recommendations of the report, which is provided as a
background paper, namely:

Delegated authority to the Head of Public Protection, the Head of Waste and Street
Services and the Head of Governance, Engagement and Improvement.
to authorise officers to issue a FPN.

To adopt the general approach to serving FPNs under the provisions of the Act, as set
out in the Authority’s existing enforcement policy for dog fouling / littering.

Agree the FPN enforcement charges of £100 payable within 14 days, reduced to £75 if
paid within 10 days.

These established principles enable a cross directorate approach to enforcement.
Recommendation 2.2 is for the updating of the delegated authority to authorise officers
to issue a FPN for breach of the PSPO to the Head of Public Protection, the Head of
Neighbourhood Services and the Chief Officer People, Performance and Partnerships.

It should be noted that adding FPN responsibilities to officers for this purpose will be
problematic as this is additional to their substantive roles e.g. Environmental Health
Officers and Civic Enforcement Officers. The issue of dog control enforcement will form
part of the litter and parking reviews being led by Communities and Place Directorate.in
the coming months.

6
Page 20



4.

4.1

4.2

5.1

5.2

6.1

6.2

7.1

INTEGRATED IMPACT ASSESSMENT, (includes equality, future generations, social
justice, safeguarding and corporate parenting):

The completed Integrated Impact Assessment is provided in Appendix Three.
The proposal has no implications in relation to any of the protected characteristics:

- Guide/Assistance Dogs are not prohibited from Dog Exclusion Areas.

- Officers will ensure that all PSPO signage is in accordance with the Equality Act 2010.
Appropriate exemptions are included in the PSPO for persons who cannot be
reasonably be expected to pick up after their dog.

OPTIONS APPRAISAL:

To continue using the Monmouthshire County Council (Fouling of Land by Dogs)
(Monmouthshire) Designation Order (No 1) 1998 with regard to fouling or, as proposed, to
introduce a PSPO to deal with dog control issues in the county.

The PSPO is recommended particularly as it will require dog faeces to be picked up from
all public spaces as distinct to just designated areas as under the current 1998 Order; and
it enables targeting and further protection of high public health risk areas such as
children’s play areas and marked sports pitches. The usefulness of a PSPO is reflected in
18 of the Local Authority areas in Wales currently having a PSPO with dog control
measures in place.

EVALUATION CRITERIA:

A progress report to Place Scrutiny Committee one year after implementation of the
PSPO.

A PSPO can be made for a maximum duration of up to three years, after which it may be
extended if certain criteria under the Act are met. This includes that an extension is
necessary to prevent activity recurring. Extensions can be repeated, with each lasting for a
maximum of three years. A further consultation process is required if a PSPO time period
is to be extended.

REASONS:

Despite the efforts of responsible dog owners and collaborative working through initiatives
such as the Give Dog Fouling the Red Card group, dog fouling continues to be a problem.
Requiring people to clean up after their dogs which foul on any public space in the county
and restricting access to certain areas appears to be a justified, proportionate response to
the ongoing issue.

.
Page 21



7.2  To ensure fair, transparent, efficient and effective discharge of powers available to the
Council under the Act.

8. RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS:

8.1  Adirect cost of signage of circa £37000 plus vat. Of this approximately £30000 will need to
be provided from the Council’s budget. The remaining £7000 approx. to be requested from
the private site owners (Town / Community Councils, MHA and sports clubs leasing land).

9. CONSULTEES
Chief Officer Social Care, Safeguarding and Health
Chief Officer Communities and Place
Chief Officer People, Performance and Partnerships
Chief Officer Children and Young People
Chief Officer Law and Governance
Chief Officer Customer, Culture and Wellbeing
Head of Public Protection
Head of Neighbourhood Services
Estates Development Manager, Landlord Services
Environment & Culture Manager
Youth Offending Team Service Manager

10. BACKGROUND PAPERS:

Report to Place Scrutiny Committee, ‘Public Spaces Protection Order for Dog Controls’ 15t
February 2024 including Appendix One Consultation Summary.

Report to Cabinet, ‘Anti-Social Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act 2014’ 7" September
2016.

11 AUTHOR: Huw Owen, Principal Environmental Health Officer,

12 Contact Details: Tel 01873 735433; E-mail: huwowen@monmouthshire.gov.uk

Appendices

Appendix One: Monmouthshire County Council (Fouling of Land by Dogs) (Monmouthshire)

Designation Order (No 1) 1998.

Appendix Two: MCC (Dog Control) Public Spaces Protection Order 2024.
Appendix Three: Integrated Impact Assessment.

8
Page 22


mailto:huwowen@monmouthshire.gov.uk

ki —;[4_,\_4’\_11
DATED I 1998

MONMOUTHSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL (FOULING OF LAND BY DOGS)
(MONMOUTHSHIRE) DESIGNATION ORDER (NO.1) 1998

S.M.W.Andrews

Deputy Chief Executive and Solicitor
Monmouthshire County Council
County Hall

Cwmbran

NP44 2XH

NW/A10.0006

Page 23



THE DOGS (FOULING OF LAND) ACT 1996

MONMOUTHSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL (FOULING OF LAND BY DOGS)

(MONMOUTHSHIRE) DESIGNATION ORDER (NO.1) 1998

Monmouthshire County Council (in this Order called "the Council") hereby make the
following Order:

i

10.

The land described in Part | and Il of the Schedule below and in respect of
the land described in Part Il of the Schedule also shown coloured red on the
maps attached to this Order being land in the area of the Council which is
land to which the Dogs (Fouling of Land) Act 1996 applies, is hereby
designated for the purposes of that Act.
The Order may be cited as the Monmouthshire County Council (Fouling of
Land by Dogs)(Monmouthshire) Designation Order (No.1) 1998 and shall
come into force on 29" June 1998
SCHEDULE
Part |
Land designated by description

Carriageways with a speed limit of 40 m.p.h. or less and adjoining footpaths,
verges and embankments.

Parks, recreation grounds, public walks, pleasure grounds, playing fields and
playgrounds maintained by the Council.

All cemeteries within the County.

Cycle tracks maintained by the Council.
Car parks maintained by the Council.
Grounds surrounding village halls.

Registered village greens but excluding the dog exercise area which forms
part of thppenham Mead Village Green at Monmouth.

Housing amenity areas being parcels of land held by the Council by virtue of
section 12 of the Housing Act 1985 which are not covered by buildings or
included in the curtilage of a building or forming part of a highway.

Land laid or sown with grass or planted with trees, shrubs or plants and
mown or otherwise maintained in an ornamental condition by the Council.

Land which is used as 1n amenity area or for the purpose of public open
space, recreation or lies waste or unoccupied and not being land falling within
the description contained in section 1(3) of the Dogs (Fouling of Land) Act
1996

Page 24




1

12,

10.

11.

12,

18,

14.

15.

1.

18.

19,

20.

21,

Paved areas, steps and subways, shopping precincts and arcades,
pedestrian areas and bridges not comprised in or running alongside a
highway

Lanes, courts, alleys, squares, footways, passages, walkway and all public
rights of way, whether a throughfare or not

Part i

Land designated specifically
Llanbadoc Island
The Island, Usk
Caldicot Castle County Park
The Old Station, Tintern
Angidy Ironworks, Tintern
Black Rock Picnic Site, Portskewett
Bluebell Green Picnic Site, Wentwood
Clydach Picnic Site, Caravan Site and lronworks
Goytre Wood
Vauxhall Fields
Gilwern Picnic Site
Bailey Park, Abergavenny
Belgrave Park, Abergavenny
Linda Vista Gardens, Abergavenny
Rogiet Playing Fields
St Mary Place Playing Field, Caldicot
Hardwick Avenue Playing Field, Chepstow
The Warren, off Alpha Road, Chepstow
Western Avenue Playing Field, Chepstow
Thornwell Playing Fields, Chepstow

Castle Dell, Chepstow

Page 25



22. Chepstow River Bank

23. Playing Fields to the rear of Magor School
24. Undy Playing Fields

25. Llandewi Rhydderch Play Area

26. Llanvapley Cricket and Play Area

27, Llanvair Kilgeddin Play Area

28. Monmouth School Playing Fields

29. Usk Cricket Ground

30.  Abergavenny Cricket Ground

Dated this F 2/~ day of Lone
ninety eight

GIVEN under the COMMON SEAL of )
MONMOUTHSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL )

Member gf the Coundil
! AN A
Deputy Chie Exec:r e and Solicitor
|

¥

Page 26

one thousand nine hundred and




i . SRR A R B

el A A T R T

TON "Odd

00GE B! BIDOS

L9866l £GRLSE 1 UO peJjued

juid

paxoey)

peoDJ]

L68/60/52 oudes UMD g

aefnging jaadeni

*PUD|S] DOPBQUDT

puojs|
aepRquo|y

safinjog YrmyD

JZI060 ¥ CON 30N3DN
qubiAdos umoil @ 801440
Assuo|jols s Ajselow Jey jo
Jejjoajuog 8yj jo usiss|w.ied
ypia dow Apaing eoubUPID
up woJj pesnpoudel useq soy

jord E)qy up [DlaejoWw eyl

,




'ON TOHQ

00G¢ B! B|DOg

$Z0I0Z BRELEE ¢ U0 peJjue]

jutig
pexosyg |

. peoDd]
L6/60/¥C aided umoag B

{punain _4_23.5

puslsi |8yl

"Msn ‘puncug

Uo|jDeJoBy puUD|S| By]

(pumasy tedne sy
puTay i

-

.;2?\\.
= A%ﬁ.\

TZI060 V1 "ON 30N30N
‘jYBlahdon umoin @ ‘@10
Aieuo|ipig e Ajse|op Jey jo .
isjlesjuey ey| jo uoissiwled
yji# doid Amaing eaubuplp
up wody peanpoidel usseg soy :

jeid siyy u] ojdejow eyl Y

—




1 | ~
| @
'. > a
| g UD‘ 7=}
1 1 . ~
| © o ~ X
s 2 =~ x
§ &= 2 5o ] | = @ | 2
|5 23 £ & % | ) b 2
| = = E o » A | o o
o e o= & ¢ M
23803553 5
o £ 5 - v oS 2 =
ol L M| o=
c o 3k 23 B
=L o> =2 4 @ i
—_ o = 5 w O =
5 o 3 [ v c
—_ L N —_ (=]
[ c o @8 = o
£ c 2 2= - i
S e c W N gl Bl < @
E o o= 3 ® e | x el
:t E = u = z © ] fre -
e » T T ¥ W ol o| @| E| &
£ 0 b B w = 2 “ gl e ] - o
- £ O a o O 4 [=] = L&) o (%)
Eame -
‘-"'_“‘\ 7,
““'3.--“ 4
"‘“\:\ 1{
13/
’
B/
K
- 2
Py
oy =
-, # =
)

i
H
!

-

e

TR s T

Caldicet Castle

Country Pork

B4I7

E
T
5%
=8
=3
=3

H
(5]




¢ R

TON "OHd

elelen 4 B 8jDog

¥£/00Z ZTOREGE ! U0 padjusj

juidd

CISELE

peoDJ]

L6/60/5T oided ump.uQg

‘udsiull 'UBDIS PIO Bl

TZLW0B0 ¥ CON 30N30N
pyBlakdoa umeoany @ ‘edyjo
Atoualjois s AjER|DN e }O
isfjoajuoy ey| jo uojssjwied
Ujim doul Aeaing AIUDURID
uUp wol} pesnposdes ueeq Eoy

jold £lyy U [pldejow eyl

-




"ON "Od0

0057 B 8|D0S

[¥Z002 Zl¥IGE + WO peljue]

juldd

pex28uQ

peoDJ]

L6/60/vT cude umouq

‘udejul|‘syiomuod) Apibuy

poopm UKo

TZL060 V1 'ON 3ON30N
“jybjaddos umoldny @ ‘8310
Aseucpipjg s Ajselop a8y jo
Jejjodjucy euyj jo uolsspuded
yym dow ARAINg e3UDUPIQ
up wod} pesnposdes useq soy

tojd €|y} u| [ojJejpus ey]

i
Bupidg « ¢

<A S Ve

\ sbeqien
\

)

.m o1

\

«

poopm 214onyg




TON "9yd

0szl o 8025

Q/088] (LLZIGE ! U0 peJjUB]

juldd

penosyg

[ peona)

umoag

L6/60/%T ouded

jremexsiiod

‘ellS 0ludld A00Y AI0IH

JZI060 ¥ CON 3DN30N
‘pyBladdoo umouny @ eo|o

Aieuo|ipis £ A)ER[ON J8H O
Jejjedjuosy eyl jo uolssjuied
jim dow Aaaing AAUBURID

up wody pesnpoldel ueeq soy

foid sjy4 Ul [ojdejow ey

. . =

aibuiyg

Loy
o1UdId

=

A

D0y

$oDIg

Page 32




R F L M e S s st i S T B G T3 L P e S

RTINS PIURNISIESSS ML

‘oM "2da

00o0s i 8|D2g

6¥1961 DGZZ¥E + uo panue)

jultd

pexoey)

peooJ|

16/60/92 oade. umDlu(

‘poomiuB . ‘84S

D|uDld ueels ||egen|g

JybiAdon umou]y @ ‘8010
Aspuc|jois &,Ajeelop JeH jo
Jejoajucg ey] jo uajssiwied
Yim dowl Aeaing esubupuQ
uo woJj peonpoadels useq soy

joid sy} Ul [orejoWw eyl

1ZI060 ¥ "ON 30N3JNT




'ON "9dd

D0SY il LA

ZEETIZ BTISTE t UO peue)

julid

pexaey)

peapi]

[6/60/%T oidel umouq

*s}Jomuod|
puUD 84|S UDADIDD

‘ajis ojuold yooph|n

JZI060 ¥ "OM 3JON3ON
Jybladdos umoin @  'eo|4j0
Aisuo|jpjs s, Ajse|op JBH jo
ae|jodjuoy eyl jo uolssjwied
Yia dow AsAJng eouDUPID

uo wouj pesnposdes useq soy

joid S|y} U] [DlaejDW BY]




PR .

'ON "Odd

poos i ej00g

|RZ00Z LE9lEE @ U0 peJjued

jurdd

peyasy)

peopnJd]

16/60/92 oide. UMD g

e T

S

‘!‘r,:p—:“-

b=

wom

‘poop Bljecq

qZI06G ¥ "ON 30N32N
"jyBjiAdes umoug @ '®240
hisun|jojs s Ajselon Jey jo
Jsjosjuon eyl jo uo|sswied
yiim dous ApAung eoauDUPIQ

up woJj pesnpoldss uesq EDY

jord sjuy Ul |o|Jejou euyL

f - N ..} ety ®



The material In this plot

has bean reproduced from an

Ordnance Survey mup with

permission of The Controller

of Her Majesty's Stationery

Offlce,

@ Crown copyright.

Monmouth.

] Vauxhall Flelds,

I
i

]‘ LICENCE NO. LA 08012L

&

¢

-
!
e,

%
N

o

AT

W

"
N

e

~
o
‘\.\ -
a o
S~ i o
ot AL
o™ | ™~ o
? e (=]
| 0 [
| ™~
| 2
2 | 2
@ e
el
=
o
o S
o
c| 3| X : =
x o 6| =] = | 2 %
o o o | © = [] &)
o | = o) ] o | &
(=] - (8] o, o wv [a)
e —




AT RS

'ON "9¥Q - /Uuw.A At et P N BT
— i U TR R - e \ A
e ] e NG
00sZ i RIS \ ] lm,..u\-...\ TN
|||||| n o /,

85010

CYLYIZ G¥EVEL - U0 padjue) paDy2IQ

jurad
pPe3aeyy .
peopJ] B e 83014 PIOYDID
e /\\ef
L6/60/62 oided umpag =
_ e

D | __.Jr‘_q mlu abuaads 8

Ojieay

rADM|R]

f,.../;.__

1uog—& -ung

‘8IS oludld ulem|in Juog—A—un(]

limpeiopm

JZI06C ¥ "ON 3ON3ON
yblaAdos umougy @  ‘eoy)0

Adeuolipys s Ajselow Jey jo

Jejnajuesy eyl jo uoisspwied

yjim dow Asadng esubuplig juog—A-—-usg

uo woJ) pesnpoddes useq spy

1o1d Ejuyj | |Dl4ejow ey) TEIE




AP »
/4
i
//:)‘..._
i U
i

JOBTITLE
BIEECIOR OF ENYIRRENERTAL STRYI0ES ' DOGS(FOULING OF LAND) ACT 1996 - DESIGNATION ORDER "
D.J.HARRIS BSc CEng MICE MCIWEM MinstwM |
DEPUTY DIRECTOR O?EN\HRONMENTALSERUICES | BAILEY PARK ABERGAVENNY {
gmglél}hshire ook DDO13 scae  1:2500
¥ DUNCIL 3
A 48 EDME B112\1997 MONMOUTHSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

(¢, Crown copyright LA 090121

Page 38

SRR TR




A.J. DAVIES MCIEH FRSH
DIRECTOR OF ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES

r
JOBTITLE

DOGS(FOULING OF LAND) ACT 1996 - DESIGNATION ORDER
BELGRAVE PARK ABERGAVENNY

D.JHARRIS BSc CEng MICE MCIWEM MinstWh
DEPUTY DIRECTOR OF ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES

fnouthshire

SLYCOUNCIL

iDHAWING No  DDO14 SCALE 1:2500

] I
| DATE iRl MONMOUTHSHIRE COUMTY COUNCIL
: 197 =, Crown copyright LA 090120

Page 39

(72

e

T ST T T S R S T R T T TR e e o




A TES il SN
i TR/ Sir SN S _}‘u -".‘:'::.

% ST TS

=1 &S
..._.-o— :l i
5
%
BR,|

1}
=

i L
= . =
1-‘. PR
1
. i 8 P =
i, = Ty STREE Fore g

TRpart 3TRE
T

L

.
| i
i A s ,
[ ) - ___“‘_:,
o \ 5
A
! \k._
Jlr.’
_f"; Illi
AJ.DAVIES MCIEH FRSH | JOBTITLE . o B _ . a
BIREGTOR OF EHVIRONMENTAL DERVIOES DOGS(FOULING OF LAND) ACT 1996 - DESIGNATION ORDER |
D.J.HARRIS BSc CEng MICE MCIWEM MinstWh |
DEPUTY DIRECTOR OQ?ENVIRONMENTALSER\'!CES LINDA VISTA GARDENS ABERGAVENNY i
e ——— T — Vo

lnmw:sc No DDO15 SCALE 1:2500

Nouthshir
; SNire
TV COUNC,

"’ ]Dms 8\1211997 ,"‘_ON'EUUTHSHIRE(;?'U:?fg%h;o“-‘.z[_
) i (€. Crown copyng

Page 40

T e — T " AT




R IDAWES_MCEFRSH-__ - soBTITLE . I
DIRECTOR OF ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES DOGS(FOULING OF LAND) ACT 1996 - DESIGNATION ORDER N
D.JHARRIS BSc CEng M'"E MCIWEM MinstWM ,
\A ¥ cerurTYDIRECTOR o?sﬂvmon:dsmuggnwces ROGIET PLAYING FIELD '
e e —— 2 — e 'l w ": E

'I'Unmouthshire 3 \DRAMNGNG DDO16 scale  1:2500 \

“OUNTY COUNCILL
e RS DATE 811211997 MONMOUTHSHIRE COUNTY COURCIL
c; Crown copyright LA 090 12L

Page 41




Llantarry Secunda
Manor

%,

N > 5 ‘."\\\ 2N
2 " N o
( '\\ ; s ’r\\ N
3 \/ Y

g
o
<
\
-
-
-

b
o
i

%
>

76

~
e
S

_\_: ~
v
oy 7
T 2
P

A

N
>§/‘\//
e \
f/ \\\/\ ~
N

P

e s

A.J. DAVIES MCIEH FRSH | | JOBTITLE
DIRECTOR OF ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES |

; | DOGS(FOULING OF LAND) ACT 1996 - DESIGNATION ORDER ‘ |

D.J.HARRIS BSc CEng MICE MCIWEM MinstwM .
Q : DEPUTY DIRECTOR OF ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES | 1 ST MARY PLACE PLAYlNG FIELD CALD*COT ‘
| . - ey e ) 5 S—
1‘(3_[[‘}1[_1]3]]11-3 (oRAWNG Yo DDO1T scALE  1:2500
NCILL '
= |
‘ | patE Bi1211997 MONMOUTHSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

€, Crown copyright LA 090121

Page 42




no re
Roubshire

k.

A.J. DAVIES MCIEH FRSH
DIRECTOR OF ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES

D.J.HARRIS BSc CEng MICE MCIWEM MinstWM
DEPUTY DIRECTOR OF ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES

|| 4OBTITLE

Rockwsod
CoRages

DOGS(FOULING OF LAND) ACT 1996 - DESIGNATION ORDER
HARDWICK AVENUE PLAYING FIELD CHEPSTOW

\ DRAWING No ppota SCALE 12wl

‘ AT 811211997 MONMOUTHSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL
® i ¢ Crown copyright LA 090 12L

Page 43

“ X {
\ o, |
) |
A R
\ %
Y
%N
\.\
\ .\
Nk \\ \
\ W
\
LY
I\ Y
4
Y
N
Y
\\
A} \'.
yh
N
\.
|
I'
|
I'
|
/
f
{
b
= A




NTy

/‘\

Mouthshire

CouNet,

s #
Wil e gév,f"\ 4
He- \ ¢ /

A.J. DAVIES MCIEH FRSH
DIRECTOR OF ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES

D.JHARRIS BSc CEng MICE MCIWEM MinstWM
DEPUTY DIRECTOR OF ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES

;

JOBTITLE
DOGS(FOULING OF LAND) ACT 1996 - DESIGNATION ORDER

DRAWING No Dno19 SCALE 1:2500

DATE Bi1241997 MONMOUTHSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL
‘&, Crown copyright LA 090120

Page 44




P
,.,/ «\
N
.\‘\\ e =

e

A.J. DAVIES MCIEH FRSH
DIRECTOR OF ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES

D.J HARRIS BSc CEng MICE MCIWEM MinstWM
DEPUTY DIRECTOR OF ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES

Noy i
i\-m&&;ﬁh*re

it ALt
.

ke

JOBTITLE

DOGS(FOULING OF LAND) ACT 1996 - DESIGNATION ORDER
WESTERN AVENUE PLAYING FIELD CHEPSTOW

DRAWINGNo.  DDOZ20 1:2500

DATE 811214997 MONMOUTHSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

=1 ‘e, Crown copyright LA 090 12L

Page 45

g

T




A.J. DAVIES MCIEH FRSH
DIRECTOR OF ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES

D.J.HARRIS BSc CEng MICE MCIWEM MinstWM
DEPUTY DIRECTOR OF ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES

§houthshire

Y Counery,

JOBTITLE

DOGS(FOULING OF LAND) ACT 1996 - DESIGNATION ORDER
THORNWELL PLAYING FIELDS CHEPSTOW

DRAWING No DDo21 SCALE 1:2500

DAT 941211997 MONMOUTHSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL
; : ‘c, Crown copyright LA 090 121

Page 46

W

(7]

BT Y W AT




Diell Primary Schac!

A.J. DAVIES MCIEH FRSH
DIRECTOR OF ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES

D.J.HARRIS BSc CEng MICE MCIWEM MinstWM
DEPUTY DIRECTOR OF ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES

“-“) Hhir b
W Muthshire

| | CASTLE DELL CHEPSTOW

i
t

- r.:‘(
s
b .’I
/ s
|'fl -
T
- ”'./._ \\.

e k]
4 J—— I R |

| JOBTITLE

DOGS(FOULING OF LAND) ACT 1996 - DESIGNATION ORDER |

SCALE 1:2500

i DRAWING No DDo22

MONMOUTHSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL
¢ Crown copyright LA 090121

DATE 8\1211987

Page 47

Y

T,

s S

e A

i e 1ot

PR




i
|
.
|
|
|
.
|
—=

feni
f
|
| —_—

|
b

-

//

Coftages

Pree Tuns nn

i [
A.J, DAVIES MCIEH FRSH | JOBTITLE
EIRERIOR BECMIUMITAL OB GRS " | DOGS(FOULING OF LAND) ACT 1996 - DESIGNATION ORDER !

0.J HARRIS BSc CEng MICE MCIWEM MinstWM ‘ CHEPSTOW RlVER BANK |
DEPUTY DIRECTOR OF ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES y

‘ DRAWING No DDOo23 SCALE 1:2500

E MONMOUTHSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL
| DATE suzast ¢ Crown copyright LA 090 121

MOt hek e
NTy (.ﬂllll}:?ll‘] 11 ¢

Page 48

T by

TR T T

- ey T




Wm) uthshire
nodthshire

A, DAVIES MCIEH FRSH
DIRECTOR OF ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES

D.J.HARRIS BSc CEng MICE MCIWEM MinstWM
DEPUTY DIRECTOR OF ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES

OGS(FOULING OF LAND) ACT 1996 - DESIGNATION ORDER
LAYING FIELDS TO THE REAR OF MAGOR SCHOOL

| DRAWINGNe  DDO24 SCALE 1:2500

| paTe 121997 MONMOUTHSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

‘¢ Crown copyright LA 090 121

Page 49

M




e [ o

<. o | II r‘"‘ ' 2

—_— - et l___._'__;J-._\;-._____-_:‘"

A.J. DAVIES MCIEH FRSH JOBTITLE

DIRECTOR OF ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES

D.J.HARRIS BSc CEng MICE MCIWEM MinstWM
DEPUTY DIRECTOR OFQENVIRONMENT.&LSERVICES UNDY PLAYING FIELDS
. i p—— S
wgr]\(}uthshlre P | prawiNG N0 DDO25
: { = B

3

OUNCIL
5 DATE 811211997

Page 50

-

DOGS(FOULING OF LAND) ACT 1996 - DESIGNATION ORDER

SCALE 1:2500

MONMOUTHSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL
€, Crown copyright LA 090 121

Sair Martin's

Farm




A.J. DAVIES MCIEH FRSH
DIRECTOR OF ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES

D.J.HARRIS BSc CEng MICE MCIWEM MinstwM
DEPUTY DIRECTOR OF ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES

"outhshire

OrNer,

| JOBTITLE

. w5
“ F.
v /
P
“. g
Ty Pt |

W —

o

-

| DOGS(FOULING OF LAND) ACT 1996 - DESIGNATION ORDER

| DRAWING No

| DATE

DDO26

B\1211997

Page 51

SCALE 1:2500

MONMOUTHSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL
¢ Crown copyright LA 090 121

M

o

/‘ .-/.




€ e
Camw
\ o
..\
y N
k
!

A.J. DAVIES MCIEH FRSH
DIRECTOR OF ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES

D.JHARRIS BSc CEng MICE MCIWEM MinstWM
DEPUTY DIRECTOR OF ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES

Moy
‘\'r ¥ (i()ltill%h e

|

| \‘ :
| LU
| W
WL
]J II- ".\
i \
\
\
X
\
i ,
\..
“ I|
L i
E g L y J |
\ =T : IIII
e B | |
I kY
| \
1
= v |
0 R i | lt‘
' AN
) e
¥ Y Crwach
i (
|' :,- <y v:l-.l:;.lh |
i L S
. SR S
e e - = "1l _—
; | o= e ]
i g o
Fed bar 1 :I | L
| '.‘
i |
i & !
| i ! |
||
] I
I [ |
F 1 |
| |
| l |
[ | \. /
[ '[ ’/
i | } e
It
| ,'"II f
— Lrtie
o = N | \ Tan
{ ot ]
|
=3
|! II'II
!’I /
[
L Ii |
I |
ST = AR l -

DOGS(FOULING OF LAND) ACT 1996 - DESIGNATION ORDER

ORAWING No ppoz7 SCALE 1:2500

T 112\1997 MONMOUTHSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL
. . ¢, Crown copyright LA 090 12L

Page 52

JOBTITLE ‘

LLANVAPLEY CRICKET AND PLAY AREA |

A e R

s o

s R o S

S

S




\ {
1 ! I
| / |
| / “ |I
I
3 I _I
f.-" i'll '
/ I | |
\ f |
\ | I| [ |
\ I |
Il iy
' - y Il
T I RS
| | 0 — ]
B ) -l | | II I.LI- /
ll I /II II.III IIII
i s I -: |II.'I 'Ilull
Y Il ;i
/ A If ¥
{ ~ _II||| I(,' 5 —
.'II /"/-,I;. Jlf.' |||II = // B
S s g Ve
fl ==K+ ¥
e =S A / " lll{i,-"'ll' i //\‘ ; ' Glan Lisk
| R
.’Jlrl
\ ,’/
v W TR J.-"
i " ;"'r
Ii Stud b : iy
Hurgalow i \ S T 4 '-.I
\\_\ I.I
R P Ltantar Kilgeddin |
‘-\__ FE - Jurnoe Mized |
% Lbzrfair Kageddin
Jurior Mxed ,n"l
and Infam School _r'l
PP
y %
\\“\.
x'f. -
f f
| 1
|
| ’
[ 1
| .'J |
II A ||I
[ f ._,r' I'.
/ II'II:
: ; =1
= JI. ) Ill
. i | e e = e l"____ e - e,
; = T T — R p——
A.J, DAVIES MCIEH FRSH [ [OBTITLE
UIRECTOR.CF ENVIRGNMENTAL SERVIER ‘ DOGS(FOULING OF LAND) ACT 1996 - DESIGNATION ORDER |
D J.HARRIS BSc CEng MICE MCIWEM MinstWM 1 1 ‘
DEPUTY DIRECTOR OF ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES | | LLANVAIR KILGEDDIN PLAY AREA | ‘
n s | ! - o ) - 1
H{)U[hshlre | DRAWING N0 DDO2B SCALE 1.2500 [ |
II[H.N('I[, i |
MONMOUTHSHIRE COUNTY COUNGIL L
MRy €. Crown copyright LA 090 12L [ 1

Page 53




Moyt

MY oy

hs

NCn

A.J. DAVIES MCIEH FRSH
DIRECTOR OF ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES

D.JHARRIS BSc CEng MICE MCIWEM MinstWM
DEPUTY DIRECTOR OF ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES

hire

pe
| JOBTITLE

! DOGS(FOULING OF LAND) ACT 1996 - DESIGNATION ORDER
|  MONMOUTH SCHOOL PLAYING FIELDS

| GRAWING No DDO30 SCALE 1:2500

MONMOUTHSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

orAhar ©, Crown copyright LA 090121

DATE

Page 54




A.J.DAVIES MCIEH FRSH
DIRECTOR OF ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES

D.JHARRIS BSc CEng MICE MCIWEM MinstWM
DEPUTY DIRECTOR OF ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES

Mouthshire
OuNe,

ST

¥,
X
\
N,
\
\\
3
\
.\
A
\
N . e

v

LY

.'\..I
IIII
|
|
|
1 .
b Y
| R
1
/
/
i
JOBTITLE

DOGS(FOULING OF LAND) ACT 1996 - DESIGNATION ORDER
USK CRICKET GROUND

| DRAWING No DoDo3t SCALE 1:2500

AT 1997 MONMOUTHSHIHE COUNTY COUNCIL
OATE s ¢ Crown copyright LA 090 120

Page 55

1)




% " A

R LA
P T
/\

R
e, N
/’\\\}/ 2R,

W

=

thshire

A.J.DAVIES MCIEH FRSH
DIRECTOR OF ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES

D.J.HARRIS BSc GEng MICE MCIWEM MinstWh
DEPUTY DIRECTOR OF ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES

ABERGAVENNY CRICKET GROUND

JOBTITLE

DOGS(FOULING OF LAND) ACT 1996 - DESIGNATION ORDER

DDo32

DRAWING No SCALE 1:2500

MONMOUTHSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL
& Crown copyright LA 090 121

DATE 811211997

Page 56




(@ monmouthshire
\JP sir fynwy

MONMOUTHSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

ANTI-SOCIAL BEHAVIOUR, CRIME & POLICING ACT 2014

MONMOUTHSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL (DOG CONTROL) PUBLIC SPACES PROTECTION

ORDER 2024

Monmouthshire County Council (“the Council”) hereby makes the following Public Spaces
Protection Order (“the Order”) in exercise of its powers under Section 59 of the Anti-Social
Behaviour, Crime & Policing Act 2014 (“the Act”).

1)

2)

3)

a)

b)

c)

d)

e)

This Order may be cited as the Monmouthshire County Council (Dog Control) Public
Spaces Protection Order 2024.

This Order will come into force on XXXXX and will remain in force for a period of three
years unless varied or discharged by further orders of the Council.

INTRODUCTION

People who fail to clean up after their dogs on publicly accessible land cause
nuisance to others. The presence of dog faeces is a potential hazard to all members
of the public, it presents a risk to health, defaces land and has the potential to
deface people and their property.

When not properly supervised and kept under control, dogs that are allowed off a
lead in public areas may cause road traffic accidents and may cause nuisance or
injury to members of the public and to other animals.

There are certain locations, which because of their use, dog faeces pose a
particularly high level of concern. These are typically children’s play areas, marked
sports pitches and school / leisure centre grounds.

This Order is made because the Council is satisfied on reasonable grounds that the
behaviour set out above has had, and is likely to continue to have, a detrimental
effect on the quality of life of people within Monmouthshire.

This Order seeks to prevent or reduce the detrimental effects referred to above, by
imposing reasonable restrictions and requirements on people while in charge of
dogs on publicland. It seeks to facilitate the safe sharing of our public spaces, while
recognisingthat people should be able to exercise their dogs off lead in public areas,
providing their dogs are under control and behaving appropriately.

Page 57



4) Definitions and Interpretation

a) Inthe followingprovisions of this Order, the followingterms shall have the meanings
hereby respectively ascribed to them:

“Authorised Person” means a Police Constable or a person authorised in writing by
the Council for the purposes of this Order.

“Police Constable” means any person lawfully designated and authorised by a Chief
Officer of Police to exercise the powers and duties of a Police Constable.

“Person in Charge” means the person who has the dog in their possession, care or
company at the time the offence is committed or otherwise, the owner or person
who habitually has the dog in their possession.

“Public Space” means any place to which the public or any section of the public has
access, on payment or otherwise, as of right or by virtue of express or implied
permission.

“Appropriate Receptacle” means any bag, or receptacle which is designed for the
purpose of holding dog faeces for disposal.

“ For the purposes of this Order, a “disability” means a condition that qualifies as a
disability forthe purposes of the Equality Act 2010 and a “disabled person” means a
person who has such a disability.

b) Except when the context otherwise requires, the singular includes the plural and
vice-versa.

c) Reference to an Act of Parliament, statutory provision or statutory instrument
includes a reference to that Act of Parliament, statutory provision or statutory
instrument as amended, extended or re-enacted from time to time and to any
regulations made under it.

5) RESTRICTIONS AND REQUIREMENTS

a) The effect of the Order is to impose the restrictions and requirements as set out in
Parts 1 to 5 below.

PART 1 - DOG FOULING

1) If a dogdefecatesat any time on land to which this part of the Order applies, and the
person who is in charge of the dog at that time fails to remove the faeces from the
land forthwith, that person shall be guilty of an offence unless they can show that:

a) they have a reasonable excuse for failing to do so; or

Page2 58



2)

3)

b) the owner, occupier, or other person or authority having control of the land has
consented (generally or specifically) to the person failing to do so.

This part of the Order applies to all public places in the County of Monmouthshire.
For the purpose of this part of the Order:

a) placingthe faeces in a receptacle on the land which is provided for this purpose,
or for the disposal of waste, shall be a sufficient removal from the land;

b) beingunaware of the defecation (whether by reason of not being in the vicinity
or otherwise), or not havinga device for or other suitable means of removing the
faeces, shall not be a reasonable excuse for failing to remove the faeces.

PART 2 — APPROPRIATE RECEPTACLE FOR PICKING UP DOG FAECES.

1)

2)

If a person who is in charge of a dog at any time on land to which this part of the
Order applies does not have or produce when requested by an Authorised Person an
appropriate receptacle to pick up any faeces deposited by that dog, that person shall
be guilty of an offence unless they can show that:

a) they have a reasonable excuse for failing to do so; or

b) the owner, occupier, or other person or authority having control of the land
has consented (generally or specifically) to the person failing to do so.

This part of the Order applies to all public places in the County of Monmouthshire.

PART 3 — DOGS ON LEADS BY DIRECTION.

1)

2)

A personin charge of a dog will be guilty of an offence if at any time on land to which
this part of the Order applies, they fail to put a dog on a lead, of no more than 2
metres length, when directed to do so by an Authorised Person where the dog is
considered to be out of control, or causing alarm or distress or to prevent a
nuisance, unless they can show that:

a) they have a reasonable excuse for failing to do so; or

b) the owner, occupier, or other person or authority having control of the land
has consented (generally or specifically) to the person failing to do so;

For these purposes, a “lead” means any rope, cord, leash or similar item used to
tether, control or restrain a dog, but does not include any such item which is not
actively being used as a means of restraint so that the dog remains under a person’s
close control.

Paae 59



3)

This part of the Order applies to all public places in the County of Monmouthshire.

PART 4 — DOGS ON LEADS.

1)

2)

A personin charge of a dog will be guilty of an offence if at any time on land to which
this part of the Order applies, they fail to keep the dog on a lead of no more than 2
metres in length unless they can show that:

a) they have a reasonable excuse for failing to do so; or

b) the owner, occupier, or other person or authority having control of the land
has consented (generally or specifically) to the person failing to do so;

This part of the Order appliesto the land in the County of Monmouthshire identified
as “Leads Only (LO)” in the Reference List annexed hereto and further identified by
the plans referred to therein.

PART 5 - DOG EXCLUSION.

1) A personin charge of a dog will be guilty of an offence if at any time that person
takes the dog onto, or permits the dog to enter or remain on, any land to which
this part of the Order applies, unless they can show that:

a) they have a reasonable excuse for doing so; or

b) the owner, occupier, or other person or authority having control of the land
has consented (generally or specifically) to the person doing so;

2) This part of the Order applies to the land in the County of Monmouthshire.
identified as “Exclusion (E)” in the Reference List annexed hereto and further
identified by the plans referred to therein.

EXEMPTIONS

1)

b)

The provisionsin Parts 1 and 2 of this Order (fouling/ appropriate receptacle) do not
apply to a person who:

is registered as partially sighted or blind, in a register compiled under Section 29 of
the National Assistance Act 1948; or

is registered as “sight-impaired”, “severely sight-impaired” or as “having sight and
hearingimpairments which in combination, have a significant effect on their day to
day lives”, in a register compiled under Section 18 of the Social Services and
Wellbeing (Wales) Act 2014; or

Pagé 60



c) hasa disability which affects their mobility, manual dexterity, physical co-ordination,
or ability to lift, carry, or otherwise move everyday objects, such that they cannot
reasonably be expected to remove the faeces; or

d) hassome otherdisability, such that they cannot reasonably be expected to remove
the faeces.

2) The dogexclusion provisions in Part 5 of this Order shall not apply to a dog trained
by a registered charity to assist a person with a disability and upon which a disabled
person relies for assistance.

3) Nothinginthis Order shall applyto the normal activities of a working dog, whilst the
dog is working.

Thisincludes dogs that are being used for work in connection with emergency search
andrescue, law enforcement and the work of His Majesty’s armed forces; farm dogs
thatare beingused to herd or drive animals; dogs that are being lawfully used for the
capture or destruction of vermin and dogs that are being lawfully used for the
purposes of hunting.

4) Where the personin charge of a dog wishes to rely upon any of the exemptions set
out in this Order, the burden will be on that person to prove that they satisfy the
requirements of the exemptions being relied upon.

OFFENCES

It is an offence for any person without reasonable excuse to:

(a) do anything that a person is prohibited from doing by this Order; or

(b) fail to comply with a requirement to which a person is subject to under this Order.

Any person guilty of an offence under this Section is liable on summary conviction to a fine
not exceeding level 3 on the standard scale.

A Constable or an Authorised Person may under S.68 of the Anti-Social Behaviour, Crime
and Policing Act 2014, issue a fixed penalty noticeto anyone they have reason to believe has
committed an offence under S.67 of that Act in relation to this Order. Failure to pay the
fixed penalty will result in prosecution.

APPEALS

Any challenge to this Order must be made in the high Court by an interested person within
six weeks of it being made. An interested person is someone who lives in, regularly works in,
or visits any of the areas affected by this Order. This means that only those who are directly
affected by the restrictions have the power to challenge. The right to challenge also exists
where an Order is varied by the Council.

PagEje 61



Interested persons can challenge the validity of this Order on two grounds: that the Council
did not have power to make the Order, or to include particular prohibitions or
requirements; orthat a requirement of the legislation was not complied with in relation to
the Order.

Dated this xxxxx day of xxxxx 2024.
The COMMON SEAL of MONMOUTHSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

was hereunto affixed in the presence of:

Authorised Officer Sealing Number xxxxxxx

Page(:5 62



Annex 1

Public Spaces Protection Order — Dog Controls Reference List

Exclusion (E)

Reference and Link or Lead Only
to Map Location (LO)
Abergavenny
ABVY-PSPO-001 Swan Meadows Play Area, Cross Street, Abergavenny E
ABVY-PSPO-002 Waterside Play Area, Abergavenny E
ABVY-PSPO-003 Bailey Park Play Area, Abergavenny E
ABVY-PSPO-004 Union Road East Play Area, Abergavenny E
ABVY-PSPO-005 Belgrave Park Play Area, Abergavenny E
ABVY-PSPO-006 Maes Y Llarwydd Play Area, Abergavenny E
ABVY-PSPO-007 Beaupreau Place Play Area, Abergavenny E
Underhill Playing Field Play Area, Old Hereford Rd,
ABVY-PSPO-008 Abergavenny E
ABVY-PSPO-009 Rother Avenue Play Area, Abergavenny E
ABVY-PSPO-010 Glan Gavenny Play Area, Abergavenny E
ABVY-PSPO-011 Croesonen Gardens Play Area, Abergavenny E
ABVY-PSPO-012 Skate Park, Old Hereford Rd, Abergavenny LO
ABVY-PSPO-013 Bailey Park Sports Pitches, Abergavenny E
ABVY-PSPO-014 Lower Meadow Sports Pitches, Abergavenny E
ABVY-PSP0O-015 Old Hereford Road Cemetery, Abergavenny LO
ABVY-PSPO-016 Linda Vista Gardens, Tudor Street, Abergavenny LO
ABVY-PSPO-017 Abergavenny Castle, Castle Street, Abergavenny LO
King Henry VIII School and Leisure Centre, Old Hereford
ABVY-PSPO-018 Rd, Abergavenny E
ABVY-PSPO-019 Deri View Primary School, Liwynu Lane, Abergavenny E
ABVY-PSPO-020 Cantref Primary School, Harold Rd Abergavenny E
Our Lady and St Michael's School, Pen y Pound Road,
ABVY-PSPO-021 Abergavenny E
Caerwent
CWT-PSPO-022 Kilpale Close Play Area, Caerwent E
CWT-PSPO-023 Merton Green Play Area, Caerwent E
CWT-PSPO-024 Lawrence Crescent Play Area, Caerwent E
CWT-PSPO-025 Green Lane Farm Play Area, Ash Tree Road Caerwent E
CWT-PSPO-026 Trewen Sports Pitch and Play Area, Caerwent E
CWT-PSPO-027 Llanfair Discoed Playing Fields E
CWT-PSPO-028 Caerwent Playing Fields and Play Area at Village Hall LO
Caldicot
CDT-PSP0O-029 Caldicot Skate Park, Mill Lane LO
CDT-PSP0O-030 Spine Footpath Play Area off Margretts Way, Caldicot E
CDT-PSPO-031 Clos Ystwyth Play Area Caldicot E
CDT-PSPO-032 Birbeck Road Play Area, Caldicot E
CDT-PSP0O-033 Heol Teifi Play Area, Caldicot E
CDT-PSP0O-034 Rear of Neddern Court, Play Area, Caldicot E

Paée 63



https://maps.monmouthshire.gov.uk/custom/PSPO.html?SearchLayer=PSPO_Draft_Proposal&SearchField=reference&SearchValue=ABVY-PSPO-001&StartZoom=500
https://maps.monmouthshire.gov.uk/custom/PSPO.html?SearchLayer=PSPO_Draft_Proposal&SearchField=reference&SearchValue=ABVY-PSPO-002&StartZoom=501
https://maps.monmouthshire.gov.uk/custom/PSPO.html?SearchLayer=PSPO_Draft_Proposal&SearchField=reference&SearchValue=ABVY-PSPO-003&StartZoom=502
https://maps.monmouthshire.gov.uk/custom/PSPO.html?SearchLayer=PSPO_Draft_Proposal&SearchField=reference&SearchValue=ABVY-PSPO-004&StartZoom=503
https://maps.monmouthshire.gov.uk/custom/PSPO.html?SearchLayer=PSPO_Draft_Proposal&SearchField=reference&SearchValue=ABVY-PSPO-005&StartZoom=504
https://maps.monmouthshire.gov.uk/custom/PSPO.html?SearchLayer=PSPO_Draft_Proposal&SearchField=reference&SearchValue=ABVY-PSPO-006&StartZoom=505
https://maps.monmouthshire.gov.uk/custom/PSPO.html?SearchLayer=PSPO_Draft_Proposal&SearchField=reference&SearchValue=ABVY-PSPO-007&StartZoom=506
https://maps.monmouthshire.gov.uk/custom/PSPO.html?SearchLayer=PSPO_Draft_Proposal&SearchField=reference&SearchValue=ABVY-PSPO-008&StartZoom=507
https://maps.monmouthshire.gov.uk/custom/PSPO.html?SearchLayer=PSPO_Draft_Proposal&SearchField=reference&SearchValue=ABVY-PSPO-009&StartZoom=508
https://maps.monmouthshire.gov.uk/custom/PSPO.html?SearchLayer=PSPO_Draft_Proposal&SearchField=reference&SearchValue=ABVY-PSPO-010&StartZoom=509
https://maps.monmouthshire.gov.uk/custom/PSPO.html?SearchLayer=PSPO_Draft_Proposal&SearchField=reference&SearchValue=ABVY-PSPO-011&StartZoom=510
https://maps.monmouthshire.gov.uk/custom/PSPO.html?SearchLayer=PSPO_Draft_Proposal&SearchField=reference&SearchValue=ABVY-PSPO-012&StartZoom=511
https://maps.monmouthshire.gov.uk/custom/PSPO.html?SearchLayer=PSPO_Draft_Proposal&SearchField=reference&SearchValue=ABVY-PSPO-013&StartZoom=512
https://maps.monmouthshire.gov.uk/custom/PSPO.html?SearchLayer=PSPO_Draft_Proposal&SearchField=reference&SearchValue=ABVY-PSPO-014&StartZoom=513
https://maps.monmouthshire.gov.uk/custom/PSPO.html?SearchLayer=PSPO_Draft_Proposal&SearchField=reference&SearchValue=ABVY-PSPO-015&StartZoom=514
https://maps.monmouthshire.gov.uk/custom/PSPO.html?SearchLayer=PSPO_Draft_Proposal&SearchField=reference&SearchValue=ABVY-PSPO-016&StartZoom=515
https://maps.monmouthshire.gov.uk/custom/PSPO.html?SearchLayer=PSPO_Draft_Proposal&SearchField=reference&SearchValue=ABVY-PSPO-017&StartZoom=516
https://maps.monmouthshire.gov.uk/custom/PSPO.html?SearchLayer=PSPO_Draft_Proposal&SearchField=reference&SearchValue=ABVY-PSPO-018&StartZoom=517
https://maps.monmouthshire.gov.uk/custom/PSPO.html?SearchLayer=PSPO_Draft_Proposal&SearchField=reference&SearchValue=ABVY-PSPO-019&StartZoom=518
https://maps.monmouthshire.gov.uk/custom/PSPO.html?SearchLayer=PSPO_Draft_Proposal&SearchField=reference&SearchValue=ABVY-PSPO-020&StartZoom=519
https://maps.monmouthshire.gov.uk/custom/PSPO.html?SearchLayer=PSPO_Draft_Proposal&SearchField=reference&SearchValue=ABVY-PSPO-021&StartZoom=520
https://maps.monmouthshire.gov.uk/custom/PSPO.html?SearchLayer=PSPO_Draft_Proposal&SearchField=reference&SearchValue=CWT-PSPO-022&StartZoom=521
https://maps.monmouthshire.gov.uk/custom/PSPO.html?SearchLayer=PSPO_Draft_Proposal&SearchField=reference&SearchValue=CWT-PSPO-023&StartZoom=522
https://maps.monmouthshire.gov.uk/custom/PSPO.html?SearchLayer=PSPO_Draft_Proposal&SearchField=reference&SearchValue=CWT-PSPO-024&StartZoom=523
https://maps.monmouthshire.gov.uk/custom/PSPO.html?SearchLayer=PSPO_Draft_Proposal&SearchField=reference&SearchValue=CWT-PSPO-025&StartZoom=524
https://maps.monmouthshire.gov.uk/custom/PSPO.html?SearchLayer=PSPO_Draft_Proposal&SearchField=reference&SearchValue=CWT-PSPO-026&StartZoom=525
https://maps.monmouthshire.gov.uk/custom/PSPO.html?SearchLayer=PSPO_Draft_Proposal&SearchField=reference&SearchValue=CWT-PSPO-027&StartZoom=526
https://maps.monmouthshire.gov.uk/custom/PSPO.html?SearchLayer=PSPO_Draft_Proposal&SearchField=reference&SearchValue=CWT-PSPO-028&StartZoom=527
https://maps.monmouthshire.gov.uk/custom/PSPO.html?SearchLayer=PSPO_Draft_Proposal&SearchField=reference&SearchValue=CDT-PSPO-029&StartZoom=528
https://maps.monmouthshire.gov.uk/custom/PSPO.html?SearchLayer=PSPO_Draft_Proposal&SearchField=reference&SearchValue=CDT-PSPO-030&StartZoom=529&layers=RightOfWay
https://maps.monmouthshire.gov.uk/custom/PSPO.html?SearchLayer=PSPO_Draft_Proposal&SearchField=reference&SearchValue=CDT-PSPO-031&StartZoom=530
https://maps.monmouthshire.gov.uk/custom/PSPO.html?SearchLayer=PSPO_Draft_Proposal&SearchField=reference&SearchValue=CDT-PSPO-032&StartZoom=531
https://maps.monmouthshire.gov.uk/custom/PSPO.html?SearchLayer=PSPO_Draft_Proposal&SearchField=reference&SearchValue=CDT-PSPO-033&StartZoom=532
https://maps.monmouthshire.gov.uk/custom/PSPO.html?SearchLayer=PSPO_Draft_Proposal&SearchField=reference&SearchValue=CDT-PSPO-034&StartZoom=533

CDT-PSP0O-035 Caldicot Castle Country Park, Play Area, Caldicot E
CDT-PSP0O-036 Clos Rheidol Play Area, Caldicot E
CDT-PSPO-037 Longfellow Road Play Area, Caldicot E
CDT-PSPO-038 Clos Alwen Play Area, Caldicot E
CDT-PSP0O-039 Heol Towy Play Area, Caldicot E
CDT-PSP0O-040 Heol Teifi Play Area, Caldicot E
CDT-PSPO-041 Oakley Close Play Area, Caldicot E
CDT-PSPO-042 Moorlands View Play Area, Caldicot E
CDT-PSP0O-043 Railway View Play Area, Caldicot E
CDT-PSPO-044 George V Playing Fields Play Area, Caldicot E
CDT-PSPO-045 George V Playing Fields, Caldicot E
CDT-PSPO-046 Mill Lane pitches E
CDT-PSPO-047 Caldicot Castle LO
CDT-PSP0O-048 Caldicot Castle, Football Club Sports Pitches, Caldicot E
CDT-PSP0O-049 Caldicot Castle Country Park Lake (1) E
CDT-PSP0O-050 Caldicot Castle Country Park Lake (2) LO
CDT-PSPO-051 Castle Park Primary School, Caldicot E
CDT-PSPO-052 Dewstow Primary School, Green Lane, Caldicot E
CDT-PSPO-053 Durand Primary School, Caldicot E
CDT-PSP0O-054 Ysgol Gymraeg y Ffin, Caldicot E
CDT-PSPO-055 Caldicot School and Leisure Centre E
Chepstow

CHW-PSPO-056 Bulwark Park Play Area, Bulwark Road, Chepstow E
CHW-PSPO-057 Meadow Walk play area, Chepstow E

Piggy's Hill Skate Park, Bulwark Park, Bulwark,

CHW-PSPO-058 Chepstow LO
CHW-PSPO-059 Penterry Park Play Area, Chepstow E
CHW-PSPO-060 Hardwick Avenue Play Area Chepstow E
CHW-PSPO-061 Castle Dell Park Play Area, Chepstow E
CHW-PSPO-062 Western Avenue Play Area, Bulwark, Chepstow E
CHW-PSPO-063 Rear of Larkfield Play Area, Chepstow E
CHW-PSPO-064 St Kingsmark Avenue Play Area, Chepstow E
CHW-PSPO-065 Summerhouse Lane Play Area, Chepstow E
CHW-PSPO-066 Garvey Close Play Area, Chepstow E
CHW-PSPO-067 Phoenix Drive Play Area, Chepstow E
CHW-PSPO-068 Woolpitch Wood Play Area (1), Chepstow E
CHW-PSPO-069 Wallwern Wood Play Area, Chepstow E
CHW-PSPO-070 Castle Wood Play Area, Chepstow E
CHW-PSPO-071 St Lawrence Park Play Area (1), Chepstow E
CHW-PSPO-072 St Lawrence Park Play Area (2), Chepstow E
CHW-PSPO-073 Alcove Wood Play Area, Chepstow E
CHW-PSPO-074 Woolpitch Wood Play Area (2), Chepstow E
CHW-PSPO-075 Bayfield Wood Close Play Area, Chepstow E
CHW-PSPO-076 Strongbow Road Play Area, Chepstow E
CHW-PSPO-077 Fishermans Walk Play Area, Bulwark, Chepstow E

Pageéz3 64



https://maps.monmouthshire.gov.uk/custom/PSPO.html?SearchLayer=PSPO_Draft_Proposal&SearchField=reference&SearchValue=CDT-PSPO-035&StartZoom=534
https://maps.monmouthshire.gov.uk/custom/PSPO.html?SearchLayer=PSPO_Draft_Proposal&SearchField=reference&SearchValue=CDT-PSPO-036&StartZoom=535
https://maps.monmouthshire.gov.uk/custom/PSPO.html?SearchLayer=PSPO_Draft_Proposal&SearchField=reference&SearchValue=CDT-PSPO-037&StartZoom=536
https://maps.monmouthshire.gov.uk/custom/PSPO.html?SearchLayer=PSPO_Draft_Proposal&SearchField=reference&SearchValue=CDT-PSPO-038&StartZoom=537
https://maps.monmouthshire.gov.uk/custom/PSPO.html?SearchLayer=PSPO_Draft_Proposal&SearchField=reference&SearchValue=CDT-PSPO-039&StartZoom=538
https://maps.monmouthshire.gov.uk/custom/PSPO.html?SearchLayer=PSPO_Draft_Proposal&SearchField=reference&SearchValue=CDT-PSPO-040&StartZoom=539
https://maps.monmouthshire.gov.uk/custom/PSPO.html?SearchLayer=PSPO_Draft_Proposal&SearchField=reference&SearchValue=CDT-PSPO-041&StartZoom=540
https://maps.monmouthshire.gov.uk/custom/PSPO.html?SearchLayer=PSPO_Draft_Proposal&SearchField=reference&SearchValue=CDT-PSPO-042&StartZoom=541
https://maps.monmouthshire.gov.uk/custom/PSPO.html?SearchLayer=PSPO_Draft_Proposal&SearchField=reference&SearchValue=CDT-PSPO-043&StartZoom=542
https://maps.monmouthshire.gov.uk/custom/PSPO.html?SearchLayer=PSPO_Draft_Proposal&SearchField=reference&SearchValue=CDT-PSPO-044&StartZoom=543
https://maps.monmouthshire.gov.uk/custom/PSPO.html?SearchLayer=PSPO_Draft_Proposal&SearchField=reference&SearchValue=CDT-PSPO-045&StartZoom=544&layers=RightOfWay
https://maps.monmouthshire.gov.uk/custom/PSPO.html?SearchLayer=PSPO_Draft_Proposal&SearchField=reference&SearchValue=CDT-PSPO-046&StartZoom=545
https://maps.monmouthshire.gov.uk/custom/PSPO.html?SearchLayer=PSPO_Draft_Proposal&SearchField=reference&SearchValue=CDT-PSPO-047&StartZoom=546
https://maps.monmouthshire.gov.uk/custom/PSPO.html?SearchLayer=PSPO_Draft_Proposal&SearchField=reference&SearchValue=CDT-PSPO-048&StartZoom=547
https://maps.monmouthshire.gov.uk/custom/PSPO.html?SearchLayer=PSPO_Draft_Proposal&SearchField=reference&SearchValue=CDT-PSPO-049&StartZoom=548
https://maps.monmouthshire.gov.uk/custom/PSPO.html?SearchLayer=PSPO_Draft_Proposal&SearchField=reference&SearchValue=CDT-PSPO-050&StartZoom=549
https://maps.monmouthshire.gov.uk/custom/PSPO.html?SearchLayer=PSPO_Draft_Proposal&SearchField=reference&SearchValue=CDT-PSPO-051&StartZoom=550&layers=RightOfWay
https://maps.monmouthshire.gov.uk/custom/PSPO.html?SearchLayer=PSPO_Draft_Proposal&SearchField=reference&SearchValue=CDT-PSPO-052&StartZoom=551
https://maps.monmouthshire.gov.uk/custom/PSPO.html?SearchLayer=PSPO_Draft_Proposal&SearchField=reference&SearchValue=CDT-PSPO-053&StartZoom=552
https://maps.monmouthshire.gov.uk/custom/PSPO.html?SearchLayer=PSPO_Draft_Proposal&SearchField=reference&SearchValue=CDT-PSPO-054&StartZoom=553
https://maps.monmouthshire.gov.uk/custom/PSPO.html?SearchLayer=PSPO_Draft_Proposal&SearchField=reference&SearchValue=CDT-PSPO-055&StartZoom=554&layers=RightOfWay
https://maps.monmouthshire.gov.uk/custom/PSPO.html?SearchLayer=PSPO_Draft_Proposal&SearchField=reference&SearchValue=CHW-PSPO-056&StartZoom=555
https://maps.monmouthshire.gov.uk/custom/PSPO.html?SearchLayer=PSPO_Draft_Proposal&SearchField=reference&SearchValue=CHW-PSPO-057&StartZoom=556
https://maps.monmouthshire.gov.uk/custom/PSPO.html?SearchLayer=PSPO_Draft_Proposal&SearchField=reference&SearchValue=CHW-PSPO-058&StartZoom=557
https://maps.monmouthshire.gov.uk/custom/PSPO.html?SearchLayer=PSPO_Draft_Proposal&SearchField=reference&SearchValue=CHW-PSPO-059&StartZoom=558
https://maps.monmouthshire.gov.uk/custom/PSPO.html?SearchLayer=PSPO_Draft_Proposal&SearchField=reference&SearchValue=CHW-PSPO-060&StartZoom=559
https://maps.monmouthshire.gov.uk/custom/PSPO.html?SearchLayer=PSPO_Draft_Proposal&SearchField=reference&SearchValue=CHW-PSPO-061&StartZoom=560
https://maps.monmouthshire.gov.uk/custom/PSPO.html?SearchLayer=PSPO_Draft_Proposal&SearchField=reference&SearchValue=CHW-PSPO-062&StartZoom=561
https://maps.monmouthshire.gov.uk/custom/PSPO.html?SearchLayer=PSPO_Draft_Proposal&SearchField=reference&SearchValue=CHW-PSPO-063&StartZoom=562
https://maps.monmouthshire.gov.uk/custom/PSPO.html?SearchLayer=PSPO_Draft_Proposal&SearchField=reference&SearchValue=CHW-PSPO-064&StartZoom=563
https://maps.monmouthshire.gov.uk/custom/PSPO.html?SearchLayer=PSPO_Draft_Proposal&SearchField=reference&SearchValue=CHW-PSPO-065&StartZoom=564
https://maps.monmouthshire.gov.uk/custom/PSPO.html?SearchLayer=PSPO_Draft_Proposal&SearchField=reference&SearchValue=CHW-PSPO-066&StartZoom=565
https://maps.monmouthshire.gov.uk/custom/PSPO.html?SearchLayer=PSPO_Draft_Proposal&SearchField=reference&SearchValue=CHW-PSPO-067&StartZoom=566
https://maps.monmouthshire.gov.uk/custom/PSPO.html?SearchLayer=PSPO_Draft_Proposal&SearchField=reference&SearchValue=CHW-PSPO-068&StartZoom=567
https://maps.monmouthshire.gov.uk/custom/PSPO.html?SearchLayer=PSPO_Draft_Proposal&SearchField=reference&SearchValue=CHW-PSPO-069&StartZoom=568
https://maps.monmouthshire.gov.uk/custom/PSPO.html?SearchLayer=PSPO_Draft_Proposal&SearchField=reference&SearchValue=CHW-PSPO-070&StartZoom=569
https://maps.monmouthshire.gov.uk/custom/PSPO.html?SearchLayer=PSPO_Draft_Proposal&SearchField=reference&SearchValue=CHW-PSPO-071&StartZoom=570
https://maps.monmouthshire.gov.uk/custom/PSPO.html?SearchLayer=PSPO_Draft_Proposal&SearchField=reference&SearchValue=CHW-PSPO-072&StartZoom=571
https://maps.monmouthshire.gov.uk/custom/PSPO.html?SearchLayer=PSPO_Draft_Proposal&SearchField=reference&SearchValue=CHW-PSPO-073&StartZoom=572
https://maps.monmouthshire.gov.uk/custom/PSPO.html?SearchLayer=PSPO_Draft_Proposal&SearchField=reference&SearchValue=CHW-PSPO-074&StartZoom=573
https://maps.monmouthshire.gov.uk/custom/PSPO.html?SearchLayer=PSPO_Draft_Proposal&SearchField=reference&SearchValue=CHW-PSPO-075&StartZoom=574
https://maps.monmouthshire.gov.uk/custom/PSPO.html?SearchLayer=PSPO_Draft_Proposal&SearchField=reference&SearchValue=CHW-PSPO-076&StartZoom=575
https://maps.monmouthshire.gov.uk/custom/PSPO.html?SearchLayer=PSPO_Draft_Proposal&SearchField=reference&SearchValue=CHW-PSPO-077&StartZoom=576

Chepstow Cemetery, Bulwark (both old and new

CHW-PSPO-078 sections) LO
CHW-PSPO-079 Chepstow Town AFC Sports Pitches, Larkfield Chepstow | E
Chepstow Rugby Club Sports Pitches, Western Avenue,
CHW-PSPO-080 Chepstow E
CHW-PSPO-081 Thornwell Football pitch, Chepstow E
CHW-PSPO-082 Hardwick Recreation Ground, Chepstow E
CHW-PSPO-083 Chepstow School and Leisure Centre E
Pembroke Primary School, Fairfield Rd, Bulwark,
CHW-PSPO-084 Chepstow E
CHW-PSPO-085 Chepstow School and Leisure Centre Car Park LO
St Mary's Roman Catholic Primary, Bulwark Rd,
CHW-PSPO-086 Chepstow E
CHW-PSPO-087 The Dell Primary School, Welsh St, Chepstow E
CHW-PSPO-088 Thornwell Primary School, Thornwell Rd, Chepstow E
Crucorney
Llanvihangel Crucorney Primary School, Wern Gifford,
CRC-PSP0O-089 Pandy E
CRC-PSP0O-090 Wern Gifford Play Area, Pandy E
Devauden
DEV-PSP0O-091 Wesley Way Play Area, Devauden, Chepstow E
Gobion Fawr
GOF-PSP0O-092 St David's Crescent Play Area, Llanddewi Rhydderch E
GOEF-PSPO-093 The Bungalows Play Area, The Bryn, Abergavenny
GOF-PSP0O-094 Llanvapley Sports Ground LO
Goetre Fawr
GYF-PSPO-095 Goytre Recreation Ground and Play Area
GYF-PSPO-096 Clos Telyn Play Area, Goytre E
GYF-PSPO-097 Goytre Fawr Primary School, School Lane, Penperlleni E
Llanbadoc
LLB-PSPO-098 Llanbadoc Island Play Area, Llanbadoc E
LLB-PSPO-099 Usk Island Play Area, Usk E
LLB-PSPO-100 Pocket Park Play Area, Little Mill E
LLB-PSPO-101 Glascoed Common Play Area, Glascoed, Usk E
LLB-PSPO-102 Cae Melin Play Area, Little Mill E
LLB-PSPO-103 Usk Island Sports Pitch, Usk E
Llanelly
LLY-PSPO-104 Clydach Recreation Ground Play Area E
LLY-PSPO-105 Llanelly Hill Playing Fields Play Area E
LLY-PSPO-106 Penllwyn Play Area, Llanelly Hill E
LLY-PSPO-107 Llanelly Cemetery, Gilwern LO
LLY-PSPO-108 Gilwern Recreation Ground Games Areas / Pump Track | E
LLY-PSPO-109 Gilwern Recreation Ground and Skate Park LO
LLY-PSPO-110 Clydach AFC sports pitch E
LLY-PSPO-111 Clydach recreation ground LO
LLY-PSPO-112 Gilwern Primary school E

Paae 65



https://maps.monmouthshire.gov.uk/custom/PSPO.html?SearchLayer=PSPO_Draft_Proposal&SearchField=reference&SearchValue=CHW-PSPO-078&StartZoom=577
https://maps.monmouthshire.gov.uk/custom/PSPO.html?SearchLayer=PSPO_Draft_Proposal&SearchField=reference&SearchValue=CHW-PSPO-079&StartZoom=578
https://maps.monmouthshire.gov.uk/custom/PSPO.html?SearchLayer=PSPO_Draft_Proposal&SearchField=reference&SearchValue=CHW-PSPO-080&StartZoom=579
https://maps.monmouthshire.gov.uk/custom/PSPO.html?SearchLayer=PSPO_Draft_Proposal&SearchField=reference&SearchValue=CHW-PSPO-081&StartZoom=580
https://maps.monmouthshire.gov.uk/custom/PSPO.html?SearchLayer=PSPO_Draft_Proposal&SearchField=reference&SearchValue=CHW-PSPO-082&StartZoom=581
https://maps.monmouthshire.gov.uk/custom/PSPO.html?SearchLayer=PSPO_Draft_Proposal&SearchField=reference&SearchValue=CHW-PSPO-083&StartZoom=582
https://maps.monmouthshire.gov.uk/custom/PSPO.html?SearchLayer=PSPO_Draft_Proposal&SearchField=reference&SearchValue=CHW-PSPO-084&StartZoom=583
https://maps.monmouthshire.gov.uk/custom/PSPO.html?SearchLayer=PSPO_Draft_Proposal&SearchField=reference&SearchValue=CHW-PSPO-085&StartZoom=584
https://maps.monmouthshire.gov.uk/custom/PSPO.html?SearchLayer=PSPO_Draft_Proposal&SearchField=reference&SearchValue=CHW-PSPO-086&StartZoom=585
https://maps.monmouthshire.gov.uk/custom/PSPO.html?SearchLayer=PSPO_Draft_Proposal&SearchField=reference&SearchValue=CHW-PSPO-087&StartZoom=586
https://maps.monmouthshire.gov.uk/custom/PSPO.html?SearchLayer=PSPO_Draft_Proposal&SearchField=reference&SearchValue=CHW-PSPO-088&StartZoom=587
https://maps.monmouthshire.gov.uk/custom/PSPO.html?SearchLayer=PSPO_Draft_Proposal&SearchField=reference&SearchValue=CRC-PSPO-089&StartZoom=588
https://maps.monmouthshire.gov.uk/custom/PSPO.html?SearchLayer=PSPO_Draft_Proposal&SearchField=reference&SearchValue=CRC-PSPO-090&StartZoom=589
https://maps.monmouthshire.gov.uk/custom/PSPO.html?SearchLayer=PSPO_Draft_Proposal&SearchField=reference&SearchValue=DEV-PSPO-091&StartZoom=590
https://maps.monmouthshire.gov.uk/custom/PSPO.html?SearchLayer=PSPO_Draft_Proposal&SearchField=reference&SearchValue=GOF-PSPO-092&StartZoom=591&layers=RightOfWay
https://maps.monmouthshire.gov.uk/custom/PSPO.html?SearchLayer=PSPO_Draft_Proposal&SearchField=reference&SearchValue=GOF-PSPO-093&StartZoom=592
https://maps.monmouthshire.gov.uk/custom/PSPO.html?SearchLayer=PSPO_Draft_Proposal&SearchField=reference&SearchValue=GOF-PSPO-094&StartZoom=593
https://maps.monmouthshire.gov.uk/custom/PSPO.html?SearchLayer=PSPO_Draft_Proposal&SearchField=reference&SearchValue=GYF-PSPO-095&StartZoom=594
https://maps.monmouthshire.gov.uk/custom/PSPO.html?SearchLayer=PSPO_Draft_Proposal&SearchField=reference&SearchValue=GYF-PSPO-096&StartZoom=595
https://maps.monmouthshire.gov.uk/custom/PSPO.html?SearchLayer=PSPO_Draft_Proposal&SearchField=reference&SearchValue=GYF-PSPO-097&StartZoom=596
https://maps.monmouthshire.gov.uk/custom/PSPO.html?SearchLayer=PSPO_Draft_Proposal&SearchField=reference&SearchValue=LLB-PSPO-098&StartZoom=597
https://maps.monmouthshire.gov.uk/custom/PSPO.html?SearchLayer=PSPO_Draft_Proposal&SearchField=reference&SearchValue=LLB-PSPO-099&StartZoom=598&layers=RightOfWay
https://maps.monmouthshire.gov.uk/custom/PSPO.html?SearchLayer=PSPO_Draft_Proposal&SearchField=reference&SearchValue=LLB-PSPO-100&StartZoom=599
https://maps.monmouthshire.gov.uk/custom/PSPO.html?SearchLayer=PSPO_Draft_Proposal&SearchField=reference&SearchValue=LLB-PSPO-101&StartZoom=600
https://maps.monmouthshire.gov.uk/custom/PSPO.html?SearchLayer=PSPO_Draft_Proposal&SearchField=reference&SearchValue=LLB-PSPO-102&StartZoom=601
https://maps.monmouthshire.gov.uk/custom/PSPO.html?SearchLayer=PSPO_Draft_Proposal&SearchField=reference&SearchValue=LLB-PSPO-103&StartZoom=602&layers=RightOfWay
https://maps.monmouthshire.gov.uk/custom/PSPO.html?SearchLayer=PSPO_Draft_Proposal&SearchField=reference&SearchValue=LLY-PSPO-104&StartZoom=603
https://maps.monmouthshire.gov.uk/custom/PSPO.html?SearchLayer=PSPO_Draft_Proposal&SearchField=reference&SearchValue=LLY-PSPO-105&StartZoom=604
https://maps.monmouthshire.gov.uk/custom/PSPO.html?SearchLayer=PSPO_Draft_Proposal&SearchField=reference&SearchValue=LLY-PSPO-106&StartZoom=605
https://maps.monmouthshire.gov.uk/custom/PSPO.html?SearchLayer=PSPO_Draft_Proposal&SearchField=reference&SearchValue=LLY-PSPO-107&StartZoom=606
https://maps.monmouthshire.gov.uk/custom/PSPO.html?SearchLayer=PSPO_Draft_Proposal&SearchField=reference&SearchValue=LLY-PSPO-108&StartZoom=607
https://maps.monmouthshire.gov.uk/custom/PSPO.html?SearchLayer=PSPO_Draft_Proposal&SearchField=reference&SearchValue=LLY-PSPO-109&StartZoom=608
https://maps.monmouthshire.gov.uk/custom/PSPO.html?SearchLayer=PSPO_Draft_Proposal&SearchField=reference&SearchValue=LLY-PSPO-110&StartZoom=609
https://maps.monmouthshire.gov.uk/custom/PSPO.html?SearchLayer=PSPO_Draft_Proposal&SearchField=reference&SearchValue=LLY-PSPO-111&StartZoom=610
https://maps.monmouthshire.gov.uk/custom/PSPO.html?SearchLayer=PSPO_Draft_Proposal&SearchField=reference&SearchValue=LLY-PSPO-112&StartZoom=611

Llanfoist Fawr

LLF-PSPO-113 Thomas Hill Close Play Area, Llanfoist E
LLF-PSPO-114 St Faith's Close Play Area, Llanfoist E
LLF-PSPO-115 Maple Gardens Play Area, Govilon E
LLF-PSPO-116 King George V Field, Govilon E
LLF-PSPO-117 Centenary Field, Llanfoist E
LLF-PSPO-118 Owain Glyndwr Field, Llanellen E
LLF-PSPO-119 Llanfoist Cemetery, Abergavenny LO
LLF-PSPO-120 Llanfoist Fawr Primary School, Llanfoist E
Llangybi
LLG-PSPO-121 St Cybi Avenue Play Area, Llangybi E
Llantilio Pertholey
LLP-PSPO-122 Ysgol Gymraeg Y Fenni, St David's Rd, Abergavenny E
LLP-PSPO-123 Dan Y Deri Play Area, Abergavenny E
LLP-PSPO-124 Charles Crescent Play Area, Abergavenny E
LLP-PSPO-125 Llantilio Pertholey Primary school, Abergavenny E
LLP-PSPO-126 Mardy Park Play Area, Abergavenny E
LLP-PSPO-127 Mardy Park Playing Field, Abergavenny E
Magor with Undy
MAU-PSP0O-128 Rockfield View Play Area, Undy E
MAU-PSP0O-129 Cowleaze Play Area, Magor E
MAU-PSP0O-130 Redwick Road Play Area, Magor E
MAU-PSPO-131 Windsor Park Play Area, Magor E
MAU-PSPO-132 Manor Chase Play Area, Undy E
MAU-PSPO-133 Windsor Drive Play Area, Magor E
MAU-PSPO-134 Kensington Park Play Area, Magor E
MAU-PSPO-135 Undy Football Club Play Area, Undy E
MAU-PSPO-136 Sycamore Terrace Play Area, Magor E
MAU-PSPO-137 Millfield Park Play Area, Magor E
MAU-PSPO-138 Yew Tree Close Play Area, Undy E
MAU-PSPO-139 Sycamore Playing Field, Magor LO
Magor Church In Wales Primary School, Sycamore
MAU-PSPO-140 Terrace, Caldicot NP26 3EG E
Undy Primary School, 3 Pennyfarthing Lane, Undy NP26
MAU-PSPO-141 3LZ E
Mitchel Troy
MTR-PSPO-142 Mitchel Troy Play Area E
Monmouth
MON-PSPO-143 Chippenham Mead Play Area Monmouth E
MON-PSPO-144 Monnow Keep Play Area, Monmouth E
MON-PSPO-145 Troy Gardens Play Area, Monmouth E
MON-PSPO-146 Rockfield Estate Play Area, Monmouth E
MON-PSPO-147 Tudor Road Play Area, Wyesham, Monmouth E
MON-PSPO-148 Woodland View Play Area, Wyesham, Monmouth E
MON-PSPO-149 Hendre Close Play Area, Monmouth E

10
Page 66



https://maps.monmouthshire.gov.uk/custom/PSPO.html?SearchLayer=PSPO_Draft_Proposal&SearchField=reference&SearchValue=LLF-PSPO-113&StartZoom=612
https://maps.monmouthshire.gov.uk/custom/PSPO.html?SearchLayer=PSPO_Draft_Proposal&SearchField=reference&SearchValue=LLF-PSPO-114&StartZoom=613
https://maps.monmouthshire.gov.uk/custom/PSPO.html?SearchLayer=PSPO_Draft_Proposal&SearchField=reference&SearchValue=LLF-PSPO-115&StartZoom=614
https://maps.monmouthshire.gov.uk/custom/PSPO.html?SearchLayer=PSPO_Draft_Proposal&SearchField=reference&SearchValue=LLF-PSPO-116&StartZoom=615
https://maps.monmouthshire.gov.uk/custom/PSPO.html?SearchLayer=PSPO_Draft_Proposal&SearchField=reference&SearchValue=LLF-PSPO-117&StartZoom=616
https://maps.monmouthshire.gov.uk/custom/PSPO.html?SearchLayer=PSPO_Draft_Proposal&SearchField=reference&SearchValue=LLF-PSPO-118&StartZoom=617&layers=RightOfWay
https://maps.monmouthshire.gov.uk/custom/PSPO.html?SearchLayer=PSPO_Draft_Proposal&SearchField=reference&SearchValue=LLF-PSPO-119&StartZoom=618
https://maps.monmouthshire.gov.uk/custom/PSPO.html?SearchLayer=PSPO_Draft_Proposal&SearchField=reference&SearchValue=LLF-PSPO-120&StartZoom=619
https://maps.monmouthshire.gov.uk/custom/PSPO.html?SearchLayer=PSPO_Draft_Proposal&SearchField=reference&SearchValue=LLG-PSPO-121&StartZoom=620
https://maps.monmouthshire.gov.uk/custom/PSPO.html?SearchLayer=PSPO_Draft_Proposal&SearchField=reference&SearchValue=LLP-PSPO-122&StartZoom=621
https://maps.monmouthshire.gov.uk/custom/PSPO.html?SearchLayer=PSPO_Draft_Proposal&SearchField=reference&SearchValue=LLP-PSPO-123&StartZoom=622
https://maps.monmouthshire.gov.uk/custom/PSPO.html?SearchLayer=PSPO_Draft_Proposal&SearchField=reference&SearchValue=LLP-PSPO-124&StartZoom=623
https://maps.monmouthshire.gov.uk/custom/PSPO.html?SearchLayer=PSPO_Draft_Proposal&SearchField=reference&SearchValue=LLP-PSPO-125&StartZoom=624
https://maps.monmouthshire.gov.uk/custom/PSPO-cym.html?SearchLayer=PSPO_Draft_Proposal&SearchField=reference&SearchValue=LLP-PSPO-126&StartZoom=520
https://maps.monmouthshire.gov.uk/custom/PSPO-cym.html?SearchLayer=PSPO_Draft_Proposal&SearchField=reference&SearchValue=LLP-PSPO-127&StartZoom=520
https://maps.monmouthshire.gov.uk/custom/PSPO.html?SearchLayer=PSPO_Draft_Proposal&SearchField=reference&SearchValue=MAU-PSPO-128&StartZoom=625
https://maps.monmouthshire.gov.uk/custom/PSPO.html?SearchLayer=PSPO_Draft_Proposal&SearchField=reference&SearchValue=MAU-PSPO-129&StartZoom=626
https://maps.monmouthshire.gov.uk/custom/PSPO.html?SearchLayer=PSPO_Draft_Proposal&SearchField=reference&SearchValue=MAU-PSPO-130&StartZoom=627
https://maps.monmouthshire.gov.uk/custom/PSPO.html?SearchLayer=PSPO_Draft_Proposal&SearchField=reference&SearchValue=MAU-PSPO-131&StartZoom=628
https://maps.monmouthshire.gov.uk/custom/PSPO.html?SearchLayer=PSPO_Draft_Proposal&SearchField=reference&SearchValue=MAU-PSPO-132&StartZoom=629
https://maps.monmouthshire.gov.uk/custom/PSPO.html?SearchLayer=PSPO_Draft_Proposal&SearchField=reference&SearchValue=MAU-PSPO-133&StartZoom=630
https://maps.monmouthshire.gov.uk/custom/PSPO.html?SearchLayer=PSPO_Draft_Proposal&SearchField=reference&SearchValue=MAU-PSPO-134&StartZoom=631
https://maps.monmouthshire.gov.uk/custom/PSPO.html?SearchLayer=PSPO_Draft_Proposal&SearchField=reference&SearchValue=MAU-PSPO-135&StartZoom=632
https://maps.monmouthshire.gov.uk/custom/PSPO.html?SearchLayer=PSPO_Draft_Proposal&SearchField=reference&SearchValue=MAU-PSPO-136&StartZoom=633
https://maps.monmouthshire.gov.uk/custom/PSPO.html?SearchLayer=PSPO_Draft_Proposal&SearchField=reference&SearchValue=MAU-PSPO-137&StartZoom=634
https://maps.monmouthshire.gov.uk/custom/PSPO.html?SearchLayer=PSPO_Draft_Proposal&SearchField=reference&SearchValue=MAU-PSPO-138&StartZoom=635
https://maps.monmouthshire.gov.uk/custom/PSPO.html?SearchLayer=PSPO_Draft_Proposal&SearchField=reference&SearchValue=MAU-PSPO-139&StartZoom=636
https://maps.monmouthshire.gov.uk/custom/PSPO.html?SearchLayer=PSPO_Draft_Proposal&SearchField=reference&SearchValue=MAU-PSPO-140&StartZoom=637
https://maps.monmouthshire.gov.uk/custom/PSPO.html?SearchLayer=PSPO_Draft_Proposal&SearchField=reference&SearchValue=MAU-PSPO-141&StartZoom=638
https://maps.monmouthshire.gov.uk/custom/PSPO.html?SearchLayer=PSPO_Draft_Proposal&SearchField=reference&SearchValue=MTR-PSPO-142&StartZoom=639
https://maps.monmouthshire.gov.uk/custom/PSPO.html?SearchLayer=PSPO_Draft_Proposal&SearchField=reference&SearchValue=MON-PSPO-143&StartZoom=640&layers=RightOfWay
https://maps.monmouthshire.gov.uk/custom/PSPO.html?SearchLayer=PSPO_Draft_Proposal&SearchField=reference&SearchValue=MON-PSPO-144&StartZoom=641
https://maps.monmouthshire.gov.uk/custom/PSPO.html?SearchLayer=PSPO_Draft_Proposal&SearchField=reference&SearchValue=MON-PSPO-145&StartZoom=642
https://maps.monmouthshire.gov.uk/custom/PSPO.html?SearchLayer=PSPO_Draft_Proposal&SearchField=reference&SearchValue=MON-PSPO-146&StartZoom=643
https://maps.monmouthshire.gov.uk/custom/PSPO.html?SearchLayer=PSPO_Draft_Proposal&SearchField=reference&SearchValue=MON-PSPO-147&StartZoom=644
https://maps.monmouthshire.gov.uk/custom/PSPO.html?SearchLayer=PSPO_Draft_Proposal&SearchField=reference&SearchValue=MON-PSPO-148&StartZoom=645
https://maps.monmouthshire.gov.uk/custom/PSPO.html?SearchLayer=PSPO_Draft_Proposal&SearchField=reference&SearchValue=MON-PSPO-149&StartZoom=646

MON-PSPO-150 King's Fee Play Area, Monmouth E
MON-PSPO-151 Oaklands Drive Play Area, Rockfield, Monmouth E
MON-PSPO-152 Willow Drive Play Area, Rockfield, Monmouth E
MON-PSPO-153 Maple Drive Play Area, Rockfield, Monmouth E
MON-PSPO-154 Jordan Way Play Area, Rockfield, Monmouth E
MON-PSPO-155 Carbonne Close Play Area, Monmouth E
MON-PSPO-156 Goldwire Lane Play Area, Monmouth E
MON-PSPO-157 Cornpoppy Avenue Play Area, Rockfield, Monmouth E
MON-PSPO-158 Osbaston Road Play Area, Osbaston, Monmouth E
MON-PSPO-159 Chippenham Mead Sports Pitches, Monmouth E
MON-PSPO-160 Rockfield Estate Sports Pitch, Monmouth E
MON-PSPO-161 Tudor Road Sports Pitch, Wyesham, Monmouth E
MON-PSPO-162 Monmouth Cemetery, Osbaston, Monmouth LO
Kymin View Primary School, Wyesham Road,
MON-PSPO-163 Monmouth E
Overmonnow Primary School, Rockfield Road,
MON-PSPO-164 Monmouth E
Osbaston Church in Wales School, Osbaston Road,
MON-PSPO-165 Monmouth E
Monmouth Comprehensive School and Leisure Centre,
MON-PSPO-166 Monmouth E
MON-PSPO-167 Harfleur Court Play Area, Rockfield, Monmouth E
MON-PSPO-168 Shrewsbury Avenue Play Area, Rockfield, Monmouth E
MON-PSPO-169 Kemble Road Play Area, Rockfield, Monmouth E
Portskewett
PSK-PSPO-170 Quest Field Play Area and Benches, Portskewett LO
PSK-PSPO-171 Walker Flats Play Area, Sudbrook E
Archbishop Rowan Williams Church in Wales School,
PSK-PSPO-172 Crick Road, Portskewett E
Raglan
RAG-PSPO-173 Prince Charles Road Play Area, Raglan E
Raglan Church in Wales VC Primary School, Station Rd,
RAG-PSPO-174 Raglan E
Rogiet
ROG-PSPO-175 West Way Play Area, Rogiet E
ROG-PSPO-176 Yew Tree Rise Play Area, Rogiet E
ROG-PSPO-177 Barn Owl Road Play Area, Rogiet E
ROG-PSPO-178 Buzzard Close Play Area, Rogiet E
ROG-PSPO-179 Rogiet Recreation Ground, Sports Pitch E
ROG-PSPO-180 West Way, Multi Use Games Area. Rogiet E
ROG-PSPO-181 Rogiet Primary School E
ROG-PSPO-182 Poplar Close Play Area, Rogiet E
St Arvans
STA-PSP0O-183 ‘ King George’s Field Playground, St Arvans | E
Shirenewton
SHN-PSPO-184 ‘ Shirenewton Play Area, Earlswood Road, Shirenewton | E

11
Page 67



https://maps.monmouthshire.gov.uk/custom/PSPO.html?SearchLayer=PSPO_Draft_Proposal&SearchField=reference&SearchValue=MON-PSPO-150&StartZoom=647
https://maps.monmouthshire.gov.uk/custom/PSPO.html?SearchLayer=PSPO_Draft_Proposal&SearchField=reference&SearchValue=MON-PSPO-151&StartZoom=648
https://maps.monmouthshire.gov.uk/custom/PSPO.html?SearchLayer=PSPO_Draft_Proposal&SearchField=reference&SearchValue=MON-PSPO-152&StartZoom=649
https://maps.monmouthshire.gov.uk/custom/PSPO.html?SearchLayer=PSPO_Draft_Proposal&SearchField=reference&SearchValue=MON-PSPO-153&StartZoom=650
https://maps.monmouthshire.gov.uk/custom/PSPO.html?SearchLayer=PSPO_Draft_Proposal&SearchField=reference&SearchValue=MON-PSPO-154&StartZoom=651
https://maps.monmouthshire.gov.uk/custom/PSPO.html?SearchLayer=PSPO_Draft_Proposal&SearchField=reference&SearchValue=MON-PSPO-155&StartZoom=652
https://maps.monmouthshire.gov.uk/custom/PSPO.html?SearchLayer=PSPO_Draft_Proposal&SearchField=reference&SearchValue=MON-PSPO-156&StartZoom=653
https://maps.monmouthshire.gov.uk/custom/PSPO.html?SearchLayer=PSPO_Draft_Proposal&SearchField=reference&SearchValue=MON-PSPO-157&StartZoom=654
https://maps.monmouthshire.gov.uk/custom/PSPO.html?SearchLayer=PSPO_Draft_Proposal&SearchField=reference&SearchValue=MON-PSPO-158&StartZoom=655
https://maps.monmouthshire.gov.uk/custom/PSPO.html?SearchLayer=PSPO_Draft_Proposal&SearchField=reference&SearchValue=MON-PSPO-159&StartZoom=656&layers=RightOfWay
https://maps.monmouthshire.gov.uk/custom/PSPO.html?SearchLayer=PSPO_Draft_Proposal&SearchField=reference&SearchValue=MON-PSPO-160&StartZoom=657
https://maps.monmouthshire.gov.uk/custom/PSPO.html?SearchLayer=PSPO_Draft_Proposal&SearchField=reference&SearchValue=MON-PSPO-161&StartZoom=658
https://maps.monmouthshire.gov.uk/custom/PSPO.html?SearchLayer=PSPO_Draft_Proposal&SearchField=reference&SearchValue=MON-PSPO-162&StartZoom=659
https://maps.monmouthshire.gov.uk/custom/PSPO.html?SearchLayer=PSPO_Draft_Proposal&SearchField=reference&SearchValue=MON-PSPO-163&StartZoom=660
https://maps.monmouthshire.gov.uk/custom/PSPO.html?SearchLayer=PSPO_Draft_Proposal&SearchField=reference&SearchValue=MON-PSPO-164&StartZoom=661
https://maps.monmouthshire.gov.uk/custom/PSPO.html?SearchLayer=PSPO_Draft_Proposal&SearchField=reference&SearchValue=MON-PSPO-165&StartZoom=662
https://maps.monmouthshire.gov.uk/custom/PSPO.html?SearchLayer=PSPO_Draft_Proposal&SearchField=reference&SearchValue=MON-PSPO-166&StartZoom=663
https://maps.monmouthshire.gov.uk/custom/PSPO.html?SearchLayer=PSPO_Draft_Proposal&SearchField=reference&SearchValue=MON-PSPO-167&StartZoom=663
https://maps.monmouthshire.gov.uk/custom/PSPO.html?SearchLayer=PSPO_Draft_Proposal&SearchField=reference&SearchValue=MON-PSPO-168&StartZoom=663
https://maps.monmouthshire.gov.uk/custom/PSPO.html?SearchLayer=PSPO_Draft_Proposal&SearchField=reference&SearchValue=MON-PSPO-169&StartZoom=663
https://maps.monmouthshire.gov.uk/custom/PSPO.html?SearchLayer=PSPO_Draft_Proposal&SearchField=reference&SearchValue=PSK-PSPO-170&StartZoom=664
https://maps.monmouthshire.gov.uk/custom/PSPO.html?SearchLayer=PSPO_Draft_Proposal&SearchField=reference&SearchValue=PSK-PSPO-171&StartZoom=665
https://maps.monmouthshire.gov.uk/custom/PSPO.html?SearchLayer=PSPO_Draft_Proposal&SearchField=reference&SearchValue=PSK-PSPO-172&StartZoom=666
https://maps.monmouthshire.gov.uk/custom/PSPO.html?SearchLayer=PSPO_Draft_Proposal&SearchField=reference&SearchValue=RAG-PSPO-173&StartZoom=667
https://maps.monmouthshire.gov.uk/custom/PSPO.html?SearchLayer=PSPO_Draft_Proposal&SearchField=reference&SearchValue=RAG-PSPO-174&StartZoom=668
https://maps.monmouthshire.gov.uk/custom/PSPO.html?SearchLayer=PSPO_Draft_Proposal&SearchField=reference&SearchValue=ROG-PSPO-175&StartZoom=669
https://maps.monmouthshire.gov.uk/custom/PSPO.html?SearchLayer=PSPO_Draft_Proposal&SearchField=reference&SearchValue=ROG-PSPO-176&StartZoom=670
https://maps.monmouthshire.gov.uk/custom/PSPO.html?SearchLayer=PSPO_Draft_Proposal&SearchField=reference&SearchValue=ROG-PSPO-177&StartZoom=671
https://maps.monmouthshire.gov.uk/custom/PSPO.html?SearchLayer=PSPO_Draft_Proposal&SearchField=reference&SearchValue=ROG-PSPO-178&StartZoom=672
https://maps.monmouthshire.gov.uk/custom/PSPO.html?SearchLayer=PSPO_Draft_Proposal&SearchField=reference&SearchValue=ROG-PSPO-179&StartZoom=673&layers=RightOfWay
https://maps.monmouthshire.gov.uk/custom/PSPO.html?SearchLayer=PSPO_Draft_Proposal&SearchField=reference&SearchValue=ROG-PSPO-180&StartZoom=674
https://maps.monmouthshire.gov.uk/custom/PSPO.html?SearchLayer=PSPO_Draft_Proposal&SearchField=reference&SearchValue=ROG-PSPO-181&StartZoom=675
https://maps.monmouthshire.gov.uk/custom/PSPO.html?SearchLayer=PSPO_Draft_Proposal&SearchField=reference&SearchValue=ROG-PSPO-182&StartZoom=676
https://maps.monmouthshire.gov.uk/custom/PSPO.html?SearchLayer=PSPO_Draft_Proposal&SearchField=reference&SearchValue=STA-PSPO-183&StartZoom=677
https://maps.monmouthshire.gov.uk/custom/PSPO.html?SearchLayer=PSPO_Draft_Proposal&SearchField=reference&SearchValue=SHN-PSPO-184&StartZoom=678

SHN-PSPO-185 Shirenewton Primary School E

SHN-PSPO-186 Shirenewton, Playgroup Nature Garden E

Skenfrith

SKN-PSPO-187 Cross Ash Primary School E

Trellech United

TRL-PSPO-188 Llanishen Play Area, by village hall, Llanishen

TRL-PSPO-189 Roman Park View Play Area, Trellech

TRL-PSPO-190 Trellech Primary School, Trellech E

Usk

USK-PSP0O-191 Maryport Street Play Area, Usk E

USK-PSPO-192 Trelawny Close Play Area, Usk E

USK-PSPO-193 Silure View Play Area, Usk E

USK-PSP0O-194 Blestium Drive Play Area, Usk E
Usk Church in Wales Primary School, Monmouth Road,

USK-PSPO-195 Usk E

Whitecastle

WTC-PSPO-196 Llanvihangel Ystern Llewern Churchyard LO

Wye Valley

WYV-PSPO-197 Old Station Play Area, Tintern E

WYV-PSPO-198 Holmfield Drive Play Area, Llandogo E

WYV-PSPO-199 Sylvan View Play Area, Tintern E

WYV-PSPO-200 Llandogo Primary school E

END OF DOG CONTROLS REFERENCE LIST

12
Page 68



https://maps.monmouthshire.gov.uk/custom/PSPO.html?SearchLayer=PSPO_Draft_Proposal&SearchField=reference&SearchValue=SHN-PSPO-185&StartZoom=679&layers=RightOfWay
https://maps.monmouthshire.gov.uk/custom/PSPO.html?SearchLayer=PSPO_Draft_Proposal&SearchField=reference&SearchValue=SHN-PSPO-186&StartZoom=680
https://maps.monmouthshire.gov.uk/custom/PSPO.html?SearchLayer=PSPO_Draft_Proposal&SearchField=reference&SearchValue=SKN-PSPO-187&StartZoom=681&layers=RightOfWay
https://maps.monmouthshire.gov.uk/custom/PSPO.html?SearchLayer=PSPO_Draft_Proposal&SearchField=reference&SearchValue=TRL-PSPO-188&StartZoom=682
https://maps.monmouthshire.gov.uk/custom/PSPO.html?SearchLayer=PSPO_Draft_Proposal&SearchField=reference&SearchValue=TRL-PSPO-189&StartZoom=683
https://maps.monmouthshire.gov.uk/custom/PSPO.html?SearchLayer=PSPO_Draft_Proposal&SearchField=reference&SearchValue=TRL-PSPO-190&StartZoom=684
https://maps.monmouthshire.gov.uk/custom/PSPO.html?SearchLayer=PSPO_Draft_Proposal&SearchField=reference&SearchValue=USK-PSPO-191&StartZoom=685
https://maps.monmouthshire.gov.uk/custom/PSPO.html?SearchLayer=PSPO_Draft_Proposal&SearchField=reference&SearchValue=USK-PSPO-192&StartZoom=686
https://maps.monmouthshire.gov.uk/custom/PSPO.html?SearchLayer=PSPO_Draft_Proposal&SearchField=reference&SearchValue=USK-PSPO-193&StartZoom=687
https://maps.monmouthshire.gov.uk/custom/PSPO.html?SearchLayer=PSPO_Draft_Proposal&SearchField=reference&SearchValue=USK-PSPO-194&StartZoom=688
https://maps.monmouthshire.gov.uk/custom/PSPO.html?SearchLayer=PSPO_Draft_Proposal&SearchField=reference&SearchValue=USK-PSPO-195&StartZoom=689&layers=RightOfWay
https://maps.monmouthshire.gov.uk/custom/PSPO.html?SearchLayer=PSPO_Draft_Proposal&SearchField=reference&SearchValue=WTC-PSPO-196&StartZoom=690
https://maps.monmouthshire.gov.uk/custom/PSPO.html?SearchLayer=PSPO_Draft_Proposal&SearchField=reference&SearchValue=WYV-PSPO-197&StartZoom=691
https://maps.monmouthshire.gov.uk/custom/PSPO.html?SearchLayer=PSPO_Draft_Proposal&SearchField=reference&SearchValue=WYV-PSPO-198&StartZoom=692
https://maps.monmouthshire.gov.uk/custom/PSPO.html?SearchLayer=PSPO_Draft_Proposal&SearchField=reference&SearchValue=WYV-PSPO-199&StartZoom=693
https://maps.monmouthshire.gov.uk/custom/PSPO.html?SearchLayer=PSPO_Draft_Proposal&SearchField=reference&SearchValue=WYV-PSPO-200&StartZoom=694

Gl

monmouthshire

Q) sir fynwy

Name of the Officer completing the evaluation:
Huw Owen, Principal Environmental Health Officer

Phone no: 01873 735433
E-mail: huwowen@monmouthshire.gov.uk

Partnerships.

Please give a brief description of the aims of the proposal

For Cabinet to consider the proposed Public Spaces Protection Order,
(PSPO), for dog controls in Monmouthshire and approve its adoption.

For Cabinet to approve updating the Council’s constitution to give
delegated authority to Officers for enforcement powers for breach of the
PSPO, namely the Head of Public Protection, the Head of
Neighbourhood Services and the Chief Officer People, Performance and

;E\Iame of Service area Date

@ . ) :
MPublic Protection 10" April 2024
(0))]

O

1. Areyour proposals going to affect any people or groups of people with protected characteristics? Please explain the impact, the

evidence you have used and any action you are taking below.

Protected

Characteristics

Describe any positive impacts your
proposal has on the protected
characteristic

Describe any negative impacts
your proposal has on the
protected characteristic

What has been/will be done to
mitigate any negative impacts or
better contribute to positive
impacts?

dog fouling on streets, pathways etc.

being able to pick up dog faeces.

Age Young children are most likely to be | Concern regarding impact of Public consultation feedback fully
exposed to dog fouling through their | restricting access to parks, playing considered in drafting PSPO and in
outside play activities and potential health | fields etc may have on elderly dog particular restricted access areas.
impacts if personal hygiene has not fully | owners, particularly those with
developed. mobility issues.

Disability Wheelchair users particularly affected by | Concerns for persons with disabilities | Appropriate exemptions in the draft

PSPO




Protected
Characteristics

Describe any positive impacts your
proposal has on the protected
characteristic

Describe any negative impacts
your proposal has on the
protected characteristic

What has been/will be done to
mitigate any negative impacts or
better contribute to positive

impacts?

Gender None None N/A

reassignment

Marriage or civil None None N/A

partnership
g regnancy or None Potential accessibility issues for Accessibility of alternative public
@maternity parks, playing fields etc designated spaces for dog exercise considered
P Dog Exclusion Areas. where Exclusion areas are proposed.
3

Race .None None N/A

Religion or Belief .None None N/A

Sex None None N/A

Sexual Orientation .None None N/A




2. The Socio-economic Duty and Social Justice
The Socio-economic Duty requires public bodies to have due regard to the need to reduce inequalities of outcome which result from socio-
economic disadvantage when taking key decisions This duty aligns with our commitment as an authority to Social Justice.

Describe any positive impacts your
proposal has in respect of people
suffering socio economic
disadvantage

Describe any negative impacts
your proposal has in respect of
people suffering socio economic
disadvantage.

What has been/will be done to
mitigate any negative impacts or
better contribute to positive
impacts?

Socio-economic
Duty and Social
Justice

T] "\RV\ ]
L2 outqg

None

None

N/A




3. Policy making and the Welsh language.

How does your proposal impact
on the following aspects of the
Council’s Welsh Language
Standards:

Describe the positive impacts of
this proposal

Describe the negative impacts
of this proposal

What has been/will be done
to mitigate any negative
impacts or better contribute
to positive impacts

2] 2aANhY 1|

Use of Welsh language in service
delivery

Promoting use of the language

continue. Letters for example contain:

Mae’r Cyngor yn croesawu gohebiaeth
yn Gymraeg, Saesneg neu yn y ddwy
iaith. Byddwn yn cyfathrebu & chi yn 6l
eich dewis. Ni fydd gohebu yn
Gymraeg yn arwain at oedi.

Policy Making PSPO and signage will need to be bi None N/A
lingual — promotes Welsh language.
Effects on the use of the Welsh
language,
Promoting Welsh language
Treating the Welsh language no
Eess favourably
D
DOperational No new posts foreseen, but if created None N/A
q L. . .
Recruitment & Training of commgnlcatlng in Welsh desirable, not
workforce essential.
Service delivery This is standard practice and will None N/A




The Council welcomes correspondence
in English or Welsh or both, and will
respond to you according to your
preference. Corresponding in Welsh
will not lead to delay.

4. Does your proposal deliver any of the well-being goals below? Please explain the impact (positive and negative) you expect, together
with suggestions of how to mitigate negative impacts or better contribute to the goal. There’s no need to put something in every box if it is not
relevant!

Does the proposal contribute to this goal? What actions have been/will be taken to
Describe the positive and negative impacts. mitigate any negative impacts or better

Well Being Goal . e
contribute to positive impacts?

i Positive: Aim is to ensure the Council uses N/A
;Eﬁ‘ prosperous Wales , legislative tools available to be efficient and
«xEfficient use of resources, skilled, o : _ —

Meducated people, generates wealth, effective |.n carrying out its respoQS|b|I|t|es to
Ej)rovides jobs help provide a clean, healthy environment.

Positive: To help secure a behavioural change N/A

N . ) so that dog fouling is socially unacceptable and
Maintain and enhance biodiversity and g g y P

land, river and coastal ecosystems that reduce p.ressure 9” the county, t?"V” and
support resilience and can adapt to community councils to deal with it. Resources

change (e.g. climate change) then freed up to deal with other priorities.

A resilient Wales

Positive: PSPO will contribute positively to the N/A

A healthier Wales council’s corporate key priorities. It will
People’s physical and mental contribute to a cleaner environment and a
wellbeing is maximized and health reduction in the health and safety risks

impacts are understood associated with direct exposure to dog fouling.

Positive: dog fouling is considered to be the N/A

A Wales of cohesive communities environmental problem which has the greatest




Well Being Goal

Does the proposal contribute to this goal?

Describe the positive and negative impacts.

What actions have been/will be taken to
mitigate any negative impacts or better
contribute to positive impacts?

Communities are attractive, viable,
safe and well connected

impact on the look and feel of a neighbourhood.

PSPO will assist in changing behaviour.

PN 2% W |
N

A globally responsible Wales Positive: setting an example for developing N/A
Taking account of impact on global communities which are attractive, viable and
well-being when considering local safe.
social, economic and environmental
wellbeing
. Positive: aim is to ensure sports and play areas | N/A
A V_Va_lles of vibrant culture and in Monmouthshire are free from dog fouling
thriving Welsh language
Culture, heritage and Welsh language
are promoted and protected. People
Pare encouraged to do sport, art and
precreation
~d
M more equal Wales N/A N/A

People can fulfil their potential no
matter what their background or
circumstances

5. How has your proposal embedded and prioritised the sustainable governance principles in its development?




Sustainable Development

Does your proposal demonstrate you have met

Are there any additional actions to be taken to

Involvement

- Public consultation 26" July to 26" October
2021 on plans to introduce a PSPO.

- Public consulation 2" October to 251
November 2023 on draft PSPO,

Principle this principle? If yes, describe how. If not explain mitigate any negative impacts or better
why. contribute to positive impacts?
Balancing Proposed PSPO is the best way to reduce fouling and | Close collaboration with Town and Community
short term other dog control issues in public areas for its duration | Councils to continue particularly through Give Dog
need with — 3 years. Fouling the Red Card Working Group.
long term and
planning for
Long Torm the future
Working Ongoing liaison with stakeholders responsible for Ongoing consideration of impacts, particularly of
together with | public spaces in the county to ensure it is properly restricted access areas. PSPO will need appropriate
M‘ other publicised to raise full awareness of the dog controls. | Publicity to assist in its introduction.
partners to
deliver
Follaboration objectives
D PSPO consideration process has included the Phased approach to raising awareness of PSPO
EI following engagement: inpluding cor_nmunications in social media and
N signage setting out controls, dog control awareness
_ - Reborts to Strona Communities Select days through Give Dog Fouling the Red Card.
Involving por " 9 N Residents / key stakeholders feedback will be
tho_se with Committee, 12" March 2020, 10" March 2022 important to consider throughout the process.
an interest - Reports to Place Scrutiny Committee, 19t April
W and seeking 2023, 25 May 2023 and 15t February 2024,
their views




Sustainable Development
Principle

Does your proposal demonstrate you have met
this principle? If yes, describe how. If not explain
why.

Are there any additional actions to be taken to
mitigate any negative impacts or better
contribute to positive impacts?

Putting
resources
into
preventing
problems
occurring or
getting
worse

Prevention

Intention is to use the legislative tools available with
the aim of helping to achieve behavioural change in
the small percentage of dog owners who are not acting
responsibly.

Phased approach to enforcement of PSPO including
communications in social media and signage setting
out controls, dog control awareness days through
Give Dog Fouling the Red Card.

Considering
impact on all
wellbeing
goals
together and
on other
bodies

Vo W | "\RV\ 1
9/ oucg

Integration

The PSPO has been amended where considered
appropriate following public consultation on the draft
Order, feedback from members in Place Scrutiny 15t
February 2024 and subsequently with key
stakeholders.

Await Cabinet feedback and decision. Ongoing
consideration of public feedback will be needed on
implementation of PSPO.




6. Council has agreed the need to consider the impact its decisions has on the following important responsibilities: Corporate
Parenting and Safeguarding. Are your proposals going to affect any of these responsibilities?

Describe any positive impacts your Describe any negative impacts What will you do/ have you done
proposal has your proposal has to mitigate any negative impacts
or better contribute to positive
impacts?
Safeguarding Having the legislative powers available .None N/A
helps protect the public health of all age
groups.
Corporate Parenting | None None N/A

7. What evidence and data has informed the development of your proposal?

pComplaints received by Environmental Health, Waste and Street Services and participants in Give Dog Fouling The Red Card Working Group;
2pyblic consultation 26™ July to 26" October 2022 — 1334 responses; Public consultation on draft PSPO 2nd October to the 25th November

| 2023 - 516 completed questionnaires.

N

| . | "\RV\ ]
© d

8. SUMMARY: As aresult of completing this form, what are the main positive and negative impacts of your proposal, how have
they informed/changed the development of the proposal so far and what will you be doing in future?

Relevant exemptions to offences required for disabled persons, where disability effects ability to pick up dog faeces; partially sighted;
assistance dogs. See PSPO for detail of exemptions.




9. ACTIONS: As aresult of completing this form are there any further actions you will be undertaking? Please detail them below, if

applicable.

What are you going to do

When are you going to do it?

Who is responsible

Await and the consider Cabinet decision 10" April 2024.

April 2024

Huw Owen. Environmental Health

10.VERSION CONTROL: The Equality and Future Generations Evaluation should be used at the earliest stage, such as informally
within your service, and then further developed throughout the decision making process. Itis important to keep a record of this
process to demonstrate how you have considered and built in equality and future generations considerations wherever

possible.
LY
«@Version | Decision making stage Date considered Brief description of any amendments made following
‘D!\Io. consideration
0e3] Cabinet 10" April 2024 10t April 2024 Exemptions detailed in proposed PSPO.




APPENDIX 1
Public Spaces Protection Order Consultation

516 consultation responses

1. 1 am competing this consultation as:

500
. ) 450
. A resident of Monmouthshire 481
400
. A business 8 350
@ A Town and Community Councilor 12 =00
or County Councillor 230
. Representing a charity or 6 200
organisation 150
. Representing a sports club or 3 100
association -
50
@ Other 20 0 — S —— ]

2. If responding as a business, Town & Community Council Councillor, county
Councillor, charity or organisation, sports club or association please provide your
details here:

There were 32 responses, which included 12 Town and Community Councils.

3. Are you a dog owner?

® v 331

® no 185

4. What is your postcode?

There were 516 responses, with the map below illustrating distribution in the county.

Page 79



Public Spaces Protection Order Consultation

N
ABERGAVENNY / b

~ Y FENNI
N AAQ)
MONMOUTH /.
TREFYNWY

A oYL
#A4136]

Pontypool

Cwmbran CHEPSTOW /

CAS-GWENT

o

CALDICOT /
CIL-Y-COED

MAGOR and UNDY /
MAGWYR a GWNDY

Response Rate from
Consultation '

1:130,000

|© Crown copyright 2024 OS 100023415 .

Page 80

2/9



Public Spaces Protection Order Consultation

PROVISION ONE: DOG FOULING

Proposal: Require person in charge of a dog to clean up if the dog defecates on any
public land in the county.

Reason: The current dog controls in the county only cover certain public areas.
Besides the un- pleasant smell and the mess created by dog fouling when it gets on
shoes, clothing, bicycle or wheelchair wheels etc., the dangers to health from dog
faeces are well documented. Toxocariasis is a disease found in the dog faeces which
can be passed to humans through contact and is caused by the eggs of the toxocara
roundworm. Children are particularly at risk and infection can lead to illness and
even loss of sight.

5. Do you agree with the Provision One proposal? (Please tick one)

. Yes 479
@ No 32

Don't know 5
®

6. Please give reasons for your answer in the box below.

There were 385 responses of which 357 comments in support, 18 comments against and 10
neutral comments.

Overwhelmingly the comments in support were based on the unpleasant nature of dog mess
and it being the responsibility of the dog owner to pick up.

The comments against included reasons that its not necessary in the countryside, woodland
etc.

Page 81

3/9



Public Spaces Protection Order Consultation

PROVISION TWO: DOG POO BAGS

Proposal: Require person in charge of a dog to have an appropriate means (E.g., a
dog poo bag) to pick up any faeces deposited by that dog and to show they have
bag(s) if requested to do so by an authorised officer.

Reason: There is no such control currently in place. It is reasonable to expect a
person in charge of a dog to have a dog bag or other means to pick up the dog
faeces. Not having a dog bag is clearly indicative that any dog faeces will not be
collected and will remain on the land and be a hazard to others.

. Do you agree with the Provision Two proposal? (Please tick one)

® Yo 456
® o 50

Don't know 10
®

. Please give reasons for your answer in the box below.
There were 363 responses.

Common themes in support include responsible dog ownership and carrying bags is a basic
thing to do if a dog owner intends to pick up.

The common theme of comments not in support included — concern that dog owner may have
picked up using last bag prior to being asked by officer (18 comments); the provision is too
draconian / over the top (18 comments) and concerns around practicality of enforcement (7
comments).

Page 82

4/9



Public Spaces Protection Order Consultation

PROVISION THREE: DOG ON LEAD BY DIRECTION

Proposal: Require person in charge of a dog when in any public space to put the
dog on a lead, of no more than two metres length, when directed to do so by an
authorised officer, where the dog is considered to be out of control, or causing
alarm or distress or to prevent a nuisance.

Reason: Dog owners need to have areas to exercise their dogs off a lead. This is
particularly important for dog welfare. However, if not properly supervised and kept
under control dogs can cause nuisance or injury to members of the public and to
other animals. Having the power to require someone to place their dog on a lead
when it is causing a nuisance provides a flexible, visible tool to tackle problems
when they occur.

9. Do you agree with the Provision Three proposal? (Please tick one)

® Vo 440
@ No 60

Don't Know 16
®

10. Please give reasons for your answer in the box below.

There were 359 responses.

Common theme in support is that it is common sense to put your dog on a lead if its out of
control; if walking a dog the owner should have a lead available to put in on; needed to keep
children safe.

Concerns not in support included interpretation of the definition of nuisance, alarm, or distress by
enforcement officers.

Page 83

5/9



05/01/2024, 16:05 Public Spaces ProtBetiisromnege PrEssangfisn Consultation

11.

PROVISION FOUR: DOG EXCLUSION AREAS

Proposal: The introduction of a number of dog exclusion areas, identified through
consultation as high public health risk areas and requiring further protection from
dog fouling. These are typically children’s play areas, marked sports pitches and
school / leisure centre grounds. These are shown in Annex 1 of the Draft Order

Reason: It is likely even where dog faeces are collected that some residue will
remain on the grass, soil etc. There are some locations which are more sensitive
because of their use and need additional measures to protect the enjoyment and to
minimise any public health risk.

Do you agree with the Provision Four proposal? (Please tick one)

® Ve 330
@ No 155
. Don't know 30

12. Please give reasons for your answer in the box below. If you are going to

comment on a specific area it would be helpful if you could clarify the area
using PSPO reference number or the site name as provided in Annex 1 of the
Draft Order.

There were 389 responses, overwhelmingly in favour of the principle of exclusion areas to
provide safe children’s play area, sports pitches etc. A number of comments though
highlighted certain areas which respondents did not consider appropriate exclusion areas for
their specific local reason. The main locations commented on: Magor Church in Wales School
Sports Field (Map 137) with 30 comments against; Gilwern Playing Fields (Maps 108 + 109)
with 11 comments against.

13. Do you wish to suggest any further area(s) for consideration as Dog

Exclusion Area(s)?

® ves 92

® No 426

14. If you answered yes to the previous question, please provide as much

detail as possible in the box below, such as the site name, location and
reason(s).

There were 114 responses which inclpﬂa gag@ys to include the following as Exclusion areas:
Bailey Park Gardens, Abergavenny (2), CaStle Meadows, Abergavenny (2).
6/9



Public Spaces Protection Order Consultation

PROVISION FIVE: DOG ON LEAD AREAS

Proposal: The introduction of a number of areas where a dog needs to be kept on a
lead of no more than two metres in length.

Reason: The Council recognises the need for dogs to be exercised off the lead in
open spaces but is mindful through public engagement that there are certain
public spaces where this is not appropriate, and a dog needs to be kept under
close control.

Cemeteries are sensitive areas - owners taking their dogs into these locations and
allowing them to wander freely can lead to dogs defecating and urinating on graves,
which is unacceptable and results in an unpleasant environment where peace and
respect should be paramount.

Skate parks are designed for a specific recreational use and a dog off the lead has the
potential to cause accidents.

Other areas shown in Annex 1 of the Draft Order have been considered on a case-
by-case basis and in consultation with the landowner / leaseholder.

15. Do you agree with the Provision Five proposal? (Please tick one)

® Ve 374
® no 98

Don't Know 44
®

16. Please give reasons for your answer in the box below. If you are going to
comment on a specific area it would be helpful if you could clarify the area
using PSPO reference number or the site name as provided in Annex 1 of the
Draft Order.

There were 280 Responses, the majority of which supported the provision.

Page 85

719



Public Spaces Protection Order Consultation

17. Do you wish to suggest any further area(s) for consideration as a Dog on

18.

19.

20.

21.

Lead Area(s)?
® o 65
® o 450

If you do, please provide as much detail as possible in the box below, such
as the site name, location and reason(s).

There were 71 responses of which 20+ proposed including pavements, footpaths, town
centres, public spaces.

Do you feel that any of these proposals will affect you as an individual (for
example in relation to: disability, age, pregnancy, maternity)?

® Yo 205

® o 269

@ Don't know 42
Please provide details below

There were 207 responses, a significant portion of which took the opportunity to
comment further on their general support / lack of support for the controls.

Approximately 25 comments raised concern that have disability/ health conditions and
approximately 15 restricted mobility as elderly so restricting locations where they can
take their dog locally will impact on them.

Please use the box below to make any additional comments you may have
relating to the proposed Order including any suggested
variations/amendments.

There were 185 responses, of which approximately: 30 generally supported the provisions;
25 did not support the provisions and 20 raised concerns regarding how the PSPO would
be enforced.

Page 86

8/9



Public Spaces Protection Order Consultation

Page 87

919



This page is intentionally left blank



“ monmouthshire

WO sir fynwy

SUBJECT: PUBLIC SPACES PROTECTION ORDER FOR DOG CONTROLS
MEETING: Place Scrutiny Committee
DATE: 15t February 2024

DIVISION/WARDS AFFECTED: All

1.

11

1.2

1.3

2.1

2.2

2.3

3.1

PURPOSE:

To inform Members of the findings of a public consultation on the draft Public Spaces
Protection Order, (PSPO), for dog controls in Monmouthshire under the provisions of the
Anti—Social Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act 2014 (the Act).

To provide Committee with an opportunity to scrutinise the proposed PSPO, amended
following public consultation.

To seek endorsement from Members to progress the PSPO to Cabinet or Individual
Cabinet Member, (Cabinet Member for a Sustainable Economy & Deputy Leader), for
decision.

RECOMMENDATIONS:

Members consider and comment on the findings of the public consultation (Appendices
One and Two) on the draft PSPO for dog controls in Monmouthshire.

Members consider the proposed PSPO, amended following the public consultation
(Appendix Three) and endorse its progress, subject to any recommendations made, for
consideration by Cabinet or Individual Cabinet Member, (Cabinet Member for a
Sustainable Economy), for decision.

Members consider the proposed allocation of costs for implementation of the PSPO
signage (as detailed in 3.15) and agree to apportion to respective landowners.

KEY ISSUES:

The Anti-social Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act 2014 introduced new powers for use by
Councils to address anti-social behaviour, including PSPOs. Under the provisions of the
Act, local authorities must be satisfied on reasonable grounds that the activity subject to
an Order:

- has, oris likely to have, a detrimental effect on the quality of life of those in the locality.
- is, oris likely to be, persistent or continuing in nature.

1
Page 89



3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

3.7

3.8

- is, oris likely to be, unreasonable.
- justifies the restrictions being imposed.

The aim is to stop the unreasonable behaviour in public spaces by introducing restrictions
on the use of an area. A public space is defined in the Act as ‘any place to which the
public or any section of the public has access, on payment or otherwise, as of right or by
virtue of express or implied permission.’

When assessing what is ‘unreasonable’ activity, there is a need to balance the rights of the
community to enjoy public spaces, with the civil liberties of individuals and groups who
may be affected by any restrictions imposed.

This is the fifth report to Scrutiny Committee on the potential introduction of a PSPO for
dog controls in the county. The process commenced in March 2020 when Members
endorsed a public consultation on the potential introduction of a PSPO. That initial
consultation, undertaken between July and October 2021, resulted in over 1330
responses, broadly supporting the plans to introduce a PSPO. The subsequent reports to
Scrutiny and further engagement with key stakeholders, including Town and Community
Councils, helped guide the development of a draft PSPO.

The draft PSPO was open to public consultation from the 2" October to the 25t
November 2023.

Public Consultation. This was undertaken in accord with the requirements of the Act and
included the following bilingual documents:-

- the draft PSPO.
- a consultation questionnaire.
- asummary of the proposals including a frequently asked questions page.

The consultation was provided on the Council’s website for completion online, with a
paper copy available on request. Awareness to the survey was raised on the Council’s
social media accounts and direct messaging to key stakeholders including to:

- Chief Superintendent and Chief Inspector for the East Gwent Local Policing Area

- Police and Crime Commissioner for Gwent

- Elected Members including County Councillors, MP and AM

- Town and Community Councils

- Dogs Trust, Kennel Club and RSPCA

- Registered Social Landlords

- Local business forums

- Key large landowning organisations - CADW, National Trust, Woodland Trust, Natural
Resources Wales, Bannau Brycheiniog, Canal and Rivers Trust.

- Relevant MCC sections with responsibility for public spaces.

Results of the Public Consultation. There were 516 completed questionnaires, of which

515 were completed online and 1 paper copy return. The vast majority 481 (93%), were
marked as completed by residents; 331 (62%) of the returns by dog owners. In addition,

2
Page 90



3.9

3.10

3.11

3.12

there were a number of direct responses from the aforementioned key stakeholders. A
detailed analysis of the results has been provided in Appendix One and direct responses
from the Dogs Trust, Kennel Club and RSPCA in Appendix Two, but a summary of the
headlines with regard to the proposed dog controls is as follows:-

Provision One, Dog Fouling. Proposal: Require person in charge of a dog to clean up if
the dog defecates on any public land in the county.

This received strong support with 479 (93%) of completed questionnaires and also key
stakeholders in favour.

Provision Two, Dog Bags. Proposal: Require person in charge of a dog to have an
appropriate means (e.g., a dog poo bag) to pick up any faeces deposited by that dog and
to show they have bag(s) if requested to do so by an authorised officer.

This received strong support with 456 (88%) of completed questionnaires in favour. The
Dogs Trust though questioned whether this is practical to enforce; and the Kennel Club in
particular raised concern of the potential for responsible dog owners to be penalised
unfairly if they were perhaps approached at the end of a walk having collected their dog’s
faeces and disposed of it and in doing so used the last of their bags. These concerns are
understood, but it is hoped that the provision in particular will enable ‘intel’ led enforcement
for officers to approach dog walkers where concern has been raised that they routinely do
not pick up and enable early engagement with them.

Provision Three, Dog on Lead by Direction. Proposal: Require person in charge of a
dog when in any public space to put the dog on a lead, of no more than two metres length,
when directed to do so by an authorised officer, where the dog is considered to be out of
control or causing alarm or distress or to prevent a nuisance.

This received strong support with 440 (85%) of completed questionnaires and also key
stakeholders in favour.

Provision Four, Dog Exclusion Areas. Proposal: The introduction of a number of dog
exclusion areas, identified through consultation as high public health risk areas and requiring
further protection from dog fouling.

Maps were provided in Annex 1 of the Draft Order, with a total 178 proposed exclusion
areas, mainly children’s play areas, marked sports pitches and school / leisure centre
grounds.

This received majority support with 330 (64%) of completed questionnaires in favour. As
expected though the proposal attracted a range of views broadly summarised in Appendix
One. Two proposed exclusion areas, in particular, attracted significant comment which
therefore merit bringing to the attention of Members:

- Gilwern sports pitch. A petition was received, signed by over 130 households, arguing
against the proposed exclusion area on the football pitch on the basis of it not currently
being used by a football team and the pitch being mainly used to exercise dogs.

3
Page 91



3.13

3.14

- Magor Church In Wales School, Sports / Community Field. There were 30 completed
guestionnaires against this proposal with the main arguments posed that the field is
used by the community outside school hours and one of the last central secure areas in
Magor where dogs can be let off a lead.

With regard to key stakeholders the Dogs Trust, Kennel Club and RSPCA did not object to
there being exclusion areas providing there was a specific and reasonable justification for
a designation. In common with their comments on proposed ‘Dogs on Leads’ areas
(Provision Five) they emphasised the need for the areas restricting dog access / use to be
kept to a minimum and for dog owners to provide their dogs with appropriate daily
exercise, including regular opportunities to walk and run. The RSPCA in particular
encouraged a more flexible approach to allowing dogs on council owned marked sports
pitches and that Provision One (pick up dog fouling) goes someway to mitigating the
issues associated with concerns associated with pitches.

Provision Five, Dog on Leads Areas. Proposal: The introduction of a number of areas
where a dog needs to be kept on a lead of no more than two metres in length.

Maps were provided in Annex 1 of the Draft Order, with a total 17 proposed areas. This
received majority support with 374 (72%) of completed questionnaires in favour.

Again the range of comments submitted are summarised in Appendix One. There was one
area in particular that received negative comment:

- Gilwern recreation ground. The aforementioned petition in 3.12 argued that the
proposed leads only area, shown hatched on the map, is the only area for dogs to run
freely off the lead; and there are no current issues with dogs being off the lead.

Consultation Outcomes — Amendments to the draft PSPO. The consultation feedback
has been considered and the draft PSPO amended and provided in Appendix Three. The
main points to highlight for Members are:

- Gilwern sports pitch and recreation ground. The resident’s petition was brought to the
attention of Llanelly Community Council who own the land concerned. The Council
met, considered the points made and have requested, in recognition that there is no
current football team using the pitch, that the designation of the pitch is changed from
Exclusion to Leads Only. However, they consider the area of the recreation ground
marked as Leads Only in the consultation should remain as such as the area is widely
used by children and all dogs should therefore be under close control. These
amendments are shown in Maps 110 and 111 in the proposed PSPO provided in
Appendix Three. The Community Council recognise the need for local residents to
exercise their dogs off lead and have indicated intent to liaise with this Council’s
Grounds team to explore the use of a nearby field to help in this regard.

- Magor Church In Wales School, Sports Field. This is owned by Monmouthshire County
Council with responsibility primarily with the Children and Young People (CYP)
Directorate. The concerns of local residents (3.12) have been considered by CYP
management but the view is that given the primary use by school children the field
should be a dog Exclusion area in order to ensure the safe delivery of the school

4
Page 92



curriculum and also the range of after school activities plus those during school
holidays. The area is shown in Map 139 in Appendix Three.

Additional dog Exclusion maps have been added for the play areas which are part of
the Persimmon Homes development at Rockfield, Monmouth (Maps 167, 168 and 169
respectively). This is in keeping with the theme of providing added protection to such
areas.

Additional dog Exclusion maps have been added for Mardy Park Play Area and Playing
Field, Abergavenny (Maps 22 and 23) on the request of the landowner Llantilio
Pertholey Community Council, again in keeping with the theme of providing added
protection to such areas.

Members are requested to note that Map 63 relating to the Castle Dell Park Play Area,
Chepstow, may change before any formal adoption of the Order, subject to the
outcome of Planning Application DM/2023/01562 for replacement and slight relocation
of the play area.

The changes to the proposed PSPO mean there are 183 Exclusion Areas (of which
120 children’s play areas, 22 marked sports pitches / playing fields, 35 school / leisure
centre grounds) and 17 Dogs on Leads areas (of which 5 Cemeteries, 3 Skateparks
and 2 Castles).

3.15 Implications of the PSPO.

Policy: The proposal will contribute positively to the council’s corporate key priorities. It
will contribute to a cleaner environment and a reduction in the health and safety risks
associated with direct exposure to dog fouling. Focused and proportionate enforcement
action will contribute to positive behaviour change, which will continue to be supported
by the ongoing awareness raising work of the County and Town and Community
Councils through schemes such as the Give Dog Fouling the Red Card working group.

Legal: As set out in recommendation 2.2 it is proposed for the PSPO to go to Cabinet
or Individual Cabinet Member for decision, date to be determined. Should the PSPO
not be adopted the Council’s existing dog fouling controls remain in place under
Monmouthshire County Council (Fouling of Land by Dogs) (Monmouthshire)
Designation Order (No 1) 1998. Note, this 1998 Order is to be revoked if the PSPO is
adopted.

Financial: Following approval, the local authority must publish the PSPO on its website
and erect on or adjacent to the public place to which the Order relates sufficient signs
to draw the attention of any member of the public using that place that the PSPO has
been made and its effect. There are 200 proposed Exclusion and Leads Only areas
and it is estimated that approximately 315 signs are needed for these areas. An
additional 300 signs are needed to display where there are no restricted access
controls but are required to bring to the attention of dog walkers the need to pick up.
This total cost is anticipated to be circa £37000 plus vat. Of the 200 restricted access

5
Page 93



4.1

4.2

areas: 28 sites are owned by Town and Community Councils, 5 by Monmouthshire
Housing Association (MHA) and 8 are leased to Sports Clubs. It is proposed that the
site owner / club lessee are requested to meet the cost of the signage for their
individual areas. This leaves circa £30000 plus vat to be met by this council and
discussion has started with Communities and Place and other involved Directorates as
to how best to meet this budget need, but at present no budget has been identified for
these costs in 2024/25.

- Enforcement: Breach of a PSPO is a criminal offence with a fine liable on prosecution
in court of up to £1000. Authorised Officers can issue a Fixed Penalty Notice (FPN) to
offer the recipient the opportunity to discharge liability for the offence. A report was
presented to Cabinet on the 7 September 2016 to consider the Council's approach to
discharging its responsibilities under the Anti—Social Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act
2014. Cabinet agreed to the recommendations of the report, which is provided as a
background paper, namely:

- Delegated authority to the Head of Public Health and Protection, the Head of Waste
and Street Services and the Head of Policy and Engagement to authorise officers to
issue a FPN.

- To adopt the general approach to serving Fixed Penalty Notices under the provisions of
the Act, as set out in the Authority’s existing enforcement policy for dog fouling /
littering.

- Agree the Fixed Penalty Notice enforcement charges of £100 payable within 14 days,
reduced to £75 if paid within 10 days.

These established principles enable a cross directorate approach to enforcement,
although the delegated authority will need updating for consideration and approval of
Cabinet / Individual Cabinet Member when the PSPO is presented for decision.

It should be noted that adding FPN responsibilities to officers for this purpose will be
problematic as this is additional to their substantive roles e.g. Environmental Health
Officers and Civic Enforcement Officers. The issue of dog control enforcement will form
part of the litter review being led by Communities and Place Directortate.in the coming
months.

INTEGRATED IMPACT ASSESSMENT, (includes equality, future generations, social
justice, safeguarding and corporate parenting):

The completed Integrated Impact Assessment is provided in Appendix Four.

The proposal has no implications in relation to any of the protected characteristics:

- Guide/Assistance Dogs are not prohibited from Dog Exclusion Areas.

- Officers will ensure that all PSPO signage is in accordance with the Equality Act 2010.

Appropriate exemptions are included in the PSPO for persons who cannot be
reasonably be expected to pick up after their dog.

6
Page 94



5.1

6.1

6.2

7.1

7.2

8.1

OPTIONS APPRAISAL:

To continue using the Monmouthshire County Council (Fouling of Land by Dogs)
(Monmouthshire) Designation Order (No 1) 1998 with regard to fouling or, as proposed, to
introduce a PSPO to deal with dog control issues in the county.

EVALUATION CRITERIA:
A progress report to Place Scrutiny Committee one year after implementation of a PSPO.

A PSPO can be made for a maximum duration of up to three years, after which it may be
extended if certain criteria under the Act are met. This includes that an extension is
necessary to prevent activity recurring. Extensions can be repeated, with each lasting for a
maximum of three years. A further consultation process is required if a PSPO time period
is to be extended.

REASONS:

Despite the efforts of responsible dog owners and collaborative working through initiatives
such as the Give Dog Fouling the Red Card group, dog fouling continues to be a problem.
Requiring people to clean up after their dogs which foul on any public space in the county
and restricting access to certain areas appears to be a justified, proportionate response to
the ongoing issue.

To enable further scrutiny on the draft PSPO prior to going to Cabinet / Individual Cabinet
Member (Cabinet Member for a Sustainable Economy), for decision. To ensure fair,
transparent, efficient and effective discharge of powers available to the Council under the
Act.

RESOURCE IMPICATIONS:

A direct cost of signage of circa £37000 plus vat. Of this approximately £30000 will need to
be provided from the Council’s budget. The remaining £7000 approx. to be requested from
the private site owners (Town / Community Councils, MHA and sports clubs leasing land).

CONSULTEES

Chief Officer Social Care, Safeguarding and Health
Chief Officer Communities and Place

Head of Public Protection

Estates Development Manager, Landlord Services
Head of Waste & Street Services

Chief Officer People and Governance

Chief Operating Officer for Mon Life

Chief Officer Children and Young People
Environment & Culture Manager

.
Page 95



Youth Offending Team Service Manager
10. BACKGROUND PAPERS:

Report to Place Scrutiny Committee, ‘Public Spaces Protection Order for Dog Controls
25" May 2023.

Report to Cabinet, ‘Anti-Social Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act 2014’ 7t September
2016.

11 AUTHOR: Huw Owen, Principal Environmental Health Officer,

12 Contact Details: Tel 01873 735433; E-mail: huwowen@monmouthshire.gov.uk

Appendices
Appendix One: Public Spaces Protection Order Consultation

Appendix Two: Consultation Responses from Dogs Trust, Kennel Club and RSPCA
Appendix Three: Public Spaces Protection Order
Appendix Four: Integrated Impact Assessment.

8
Page 96


mailto:huwowen@monmouthshire.gov.uk

MONMOUTHSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL
REPORT

SUBJECT: ANTI — SOCIAL BEHAVIOUR, CRIME AND POLICING ACT 2014
DIRECTORATE: CHIEF EXECUTIVES

MEETING: CABINET

Date to be considered: 71" September 2016

DIVISION/WARDS AFFECTED: All Wards

1. PURPOSE:

1.1 To inform Cabinet of required changes to legal powers and to consider the Council's
approach to discharging its responsibilities under the Anti—Social Behaviour, Crime and
Policing Act 2014

2. RECOMMENDATIONS:

2.1 To amend the Council’s constitution to give delegated authority to Officers for
enforcement powers introduced under the Act as set out in Appendix 1. The Officers are
the Head of Public Protection, the Head of Waste and Street Services and the Head of
Governance, Engagement and Improvement.

2.2 To adopt the general approach to serving Fixed Penalty Notices under the provisions
of the Act, as set out in the Authority’s existing enforcement policy for dog fouling /
littering provided in Appendix 2.

2.3 Agree the Fixed Penalty Notice enforcement charges set out in Appendix 3.

3. KEY ISSUES

3.1 The Anti-Social Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act 2014 came into force on 20
October 2014.

3.2 The Act has repealed a number of powers and introduced a new range of powers to
help tackle anti—social behaviour affecting communities. This report is concerned with
three specific areas:

e Community Protection Notices (CPN)
e Public Spaces Protection Orders (PSPOSs)
e Closure Notices

3.3 Community Protection Notices replace Litter Clearing Notices, Street Litter Control
Notices and Graffiti Removal Notices. They are intended to be able to stop a person
aged 16 or over, business or organisation committing anti-social behaviour which spoils
the community’s quality of life. They may be used to tackle a wide range of problem
behaviours such as graffiti, litter and noise. The behaviour has to:

- have a detrimental effect on the quality of life of those in the locality;
- be of a persistent or continuing nature; and
- be unreasonable.

3.4 Prior to serving a CPN an initial Ww3a@g Btfer must be sent. A CPN must specify the
matter to be resolved and the timescale to achieve it. Non - compliance with a notice is a




criminal offence punishable in a magistrates’ court by a fine of up to £2500 for
individuals, or £20,000 for businesses. Alternatively a Fixed Penalty Notice may be
served where a CPN has been breached to give the recipient the opportunity to
discharge their liability to conviction for the offence. Remedial work in default of the
notice may also be undertaken the cost of which can be recharged.

3.5 The potentially wide ranging application of CPN’s means that there are a number of
different teams in the Council that may find it appropriate to make use of them,
specifically Environmental Health, Waste and Street Services, and Policy and
Partnerships.This is reflected in the proposed delegation of powers set out in Appendix
1, Table B.

3.6 Public Spaces Protection Orders replace Designated Public Place Orders
(DPPQO’s), Gating Orders and Dog Control Orders, with a three year subsistence period
from the commencement of the Act for existing orders in place. There are currently three
DPPOQO’s in the County:

e One covering the whole of Monmouth town, including Chippenham Mead and St
Thomas’ Square, concerned with the consumption of alcohol where related to anti-
social behaviour.

e Two in Abergavenny covering Bailey Park and parts of the town centre, again
controlling consumption of alcohol related to anti- social behaviour.

These will automatically ‘convert’ to PSPOs on 20" October 2017 although the
legislation does allow for these to be reviewed ahead of that transition to simplify the
enforcement landscape.

3.7 PSPOQO’s are designed to stop individuals or groups committing anti-social behaviour
in a public space and can be potentially used to deal with a wider range of anti — social
behaviour issues than current Orders. The behaviour being restricted has to:

- be having, or be likely to have, a detrimental effect on the quality of life of those in
the locality;

- be persistent or continuing nature; and

- be unreasonable.

3.8 Before making a PSPO, the Council must consult with the local Police, the Police and
Crime Commissioner and appropriate community representatives.

3.9 Breach of a PSPO is criminal offence punishable in a magistrates’ court by a fine of
up to £1000. Alternatively a fixed penalty notice may be served to give the recipient the
opportunity to discharge their liability to conviction for the offence.

3.10 As for CPNs the potentially wide application of PSPOs may make their use
appropriate to a number of sections in the Council including Environmental Health,
Waste and Street Services and Policy and Partnerships.

3.11 Closure Notices may be issued ordering the closure of premises, the use of which
has, or is likely to, result in disorder or nuisance to members of the public. They are
intended to provide a fast, flexible power and can be issued for 24 or 48 hours in the first
instance or otherwise extended from 24 hours to 48 hours. A notice may cover any land
or premises including residential or business related and be issued by a designated
Local Authority officer or the Police.

3.12 Breach of a Closure Notice is Padppa®®8 by up to three months in prison or an
unlimited fine.



3.13 The report proposes that the day to day enforcement powers in relation to
Community Protection Notices and Public Spaces Protection Orders be delegated to
appropriate Officers as set out in Appendix 1 Table B. These include the issue of Fixed
Penalty Notices.

3.14 Any proposals for the making, extending, varying and discharging Public Space
Protection Orders are to be submitted to Cabinet or Cabinet Member as appropriate for
consideration and decision.

3.15 With regard to the issue of a Closure Notice the proposed designations for Officers,
as provided in Appendix 1, Table B are:

e Up to 24 hours Head of Public Protection.
e Up to 48 hours Chief Executive Officer or Officers duly designated by the Chief
Executive Officer

3.16 Fixed Penalty Notices (FPNs) are encouraged by Welsh Government as part of an
effective and efficient enforcement approach for dealing with anti- social behaviour and
environmental offences. In discharging any enforcement powers it is good regulatory
practice for an authority to set out its approach in an ‘enforcement policy’. The Authority
has a Corporate Enforcement Policy which applies good regulatory principles in line with
the Enforcement Concordat and has a specific policy for dog fouling/littering which
includes for the service of FPN’s.

3.17 The proposed approach for issuing FPN'’s for a breach of a CPN/ PSPO is to adopt
the key principles of the existing fouling/littering policy which is provided in Appendix 2
and specifically:

A distinction in the approach dependent upon the age of the offender.

For persons aged 18 or over a FPN to be issued to give the opportunity to discharge
liability to conviction;

- For persons under 18 the FPN to be commuted to a warning in the first instance.
FPNs issued for second offences following a warning, with the intervention of the
Council’s Youth Offending Service to be invited prior to consideration of any case for
prosecution.

e The FPN amount payable within 14 days to reduce if paid within 10 days to
encourage early payment.

e Prosecution proceedings to be taken in cases of non-payment by an offender aged
18 or over.

3.18 The proposed FPN levels for a breach of a CPN/ PSPO is £100 to be paid within 14
days reducing to £75 if paid within 10 days, as set out in Appendix 3. This is an increase
on the fouling / littering penalty levels (£75 reducing to £50 if paid within 10 days) but in
accord with the other Local Authorities in Gwent for offences under the Act.

REASONS

4.1 To ensure fair, transparent, efficient and effective discharge of the Council's
obligations under the Act.

Page 99



5. RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS:

5.1 None directly arising from the authorisation of Officers under this Act since additional
workload will be absorbed within existing staff resources. Any revenue obtained from the
payment of FPN’s will be very limited which are to be punitive and not of significance in
terms of income generation.

6. Future Generations Evaluation

6.1 The Future Generations Evaluation, including equalities and sustainable impact
assessments, is provided in Appendix 4. The revisions have a positive impact on these
issues, for the reasons provided.

7. CONSULTEES:

SLT

Cabinet Members

Chairs of Select Committees

Monitoring Officer and Head of Legal Services

Head of Finance

Head of Operations

Youth Offending Team Manager (J Richards)

Head of Waste and Street Services

Head of Public Protection

Head of Governance, Engagement and Improvement.

8. BACKGROUND PAPERS:
None.

9. AUTHOR:
Huw Owen Principal Environmental Health Officer
CONTACT DETAILS:

Tel: 01873 735433
huwowen@monmouthshire.gov.uk

Page 100


mailto:huwowen@monmouthshire.gov.uk

Agenda Iltem 5

"l monmouthshire
MW sir fynwy
SUBJECT: SCHOOL ADMISSIONS POLICY 2025/26 INCLUDING REVIEW OF
SCHOOL CATCHMENT AREAS
MEETING: CABINET
DATE: 10t April 2024
PURPOSE:

This report seeks to provide Members with an update on the recently
concluded public consultation to review the catchment area for Usk Church in
Wales Primary School as part of the September 2025/26 School admission
arrangements.

This report also seeks to provide members with a copy of the consultation
report analysing the responses received from consultees regarding the
proposed changes.

RECOMMENDATIONS:

2.1 That Members review and agree the full content of this report, the attached
consultation report (appendix 1) and the proposed School Admissions
Policy 2025/26 (appendix 2).

2.2  Onreviewing section 2.1, that Members agree to implement the following
changes to determine the primary catchment school for the affected areas
as part of the Council’'s school admission arrangements for the academic
year 2025/26:

To extend the catchment area for Usk Church in Wales Primary
School to incorporate the villages of Tredunnock, Llanhennock and
Llandegveth. A map detailing the affected area is presented in the
consultation report (appendix 1)

2.3  For Members to acknowledge that, in line with the admission
arrangements for Charles Williams Church in Wales Primary School, the
affected area will also remain within catchment for Charles Williams CIW

Page 101




3.

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

Primary until such time that the governing body consult to amend their
catchment area. Monmouthshire County Council’s admission
arrangements will determine the catchment school for the affected area to
be Usk CIW Primary School.

KEY ISSUES:

The Council is the admission authority for all secondary schools and
almost all primary schools within the county. It is therefore responsible for
the admission arrangements that underpin the decision made for allocating
school places.

Within the county, there are 4 Voluntary Aided Schools where the
governing body form the admission authority for their school. These
schools are:

Archbishop Rowan Williams Church in Wales Primary School
Magor Church in Wales Primary School

Our Lady and St Michaels Roman Catholic Primary School
St Marys Roman Catholic Primary School

All other schools within the county fall under the admission
arrangements published by the Council.

The School Admissions Code Wales (July 2013) requires admission
authorities to consult on its admission arrangements on an annual basis.
In circumstances where significant changes are proposed, a more wider
consultation is required with those affected by proposals. School
catchment areas form part of the Council’'s admission arrangements, and
any proposed changes should be undertaken within this framework.

School catchment areas were last reviewed in 2019, where the Council
consulted on changes to secondary school catchment areas. The review
undertaken focussed on two key factors:

e To ensure that Monmouthshire residents had a designated
secondary catchment school within the County.

e To improve the alignment of primary and secondary catchment
areas in support of transitional arrangements

The findings of this consultation were presented to Cabinet in March 2019
where a decision was made to implement the changes as proposed. The

Page 102



3.6

3.7

3.8

3.9

3.10

catchment area for Goytre Fawr Primary school was aligned to King Henry
VIII Comprehensive School, and the catchment area for Llandogo, Trellech
and Usk Primary Schools were aligned to Monmouth Comprehensive
School. The decision has resulted in all secondary age children now
falling within the catchment area for a school that’s within the county.

The next stage of the review of school catchment areas focuses on our
primary school provision, where the maijority of primary school catchment
areas have been in place in their current form since local government
reorganisation in 1996. In some cases, it could be questioned whether
there is a rationale behind how some catchment areas are formed e.g.
they may not be aligned to the nearest school, or in some cases may
divide communities.

On 13t December 2023, the Council’s Cabinet agreed to undertake a
rolling programme of reviewing primary school catchment areas across the
county. The Cabinet also agreed to commence this review by entering into
consultation process on the following proposal:

e To amend the primary school catchment area for Usk Church in Wales
Primary School to include the areas of Tredunnock, Llanhennock and
Llandegveth as part of the 2025/26 admission arrangements. The
affected area does not currently fall within the catchment for any
primary school within Monmouthshire.

The Council engaged in an extensive consultation with all affected parties
including the affected schools, governing bodies, parents and other
interested parties to seek views on the above proposal.

The consultation commenced on 8th January 2024 and lasted for a period
of 6 weeks, concluding on 19" January 2024. A consultation document
was produced providing full details of the proposals and was made
available to all relevant consultees.

During the consultation period, the Council provided consultees with the
opportunity to share their views on proposals by completing an online
survey published on the Council’s website. Officers also arranged two
public consultation sessions to allow consultees to ask any questions and
raise any concerns on the proposals. Unfortunately, there were no
consultees in attendance at these sessions.

Page 103



3.11  On conclusion of the formal consultation, officers have produced a
consultation report which sets out the consultation methodology together
with the responses received to the proposals. This report is available
under appendix 1 of this report for Members perusal.

3.12 Members are asked to review the content of the consultation report,
acknowledging the key themes of support and concern towards the
proposals. The consensus drawn from the consultation responses is that
there is sufficient support to justify the implementation of proposals in
readiness for September 2025/26 admission arrangements. Whilst there
were a small number of concerns raised during the consultation, it is felt
that the responses provided to the concerns can be mitigated and enable
proposals to proceed.

EQUALITY AND FUTURE GENERATIONS EVALUATION (INCLUDES
SOCIAL JUSTICE, SAFEGUARDING AND CORPORATE PARENTING)

An integrated impact assessment associated with the proposals has been
completed and can be found under appendix 3. This assessment will be
reviewed and updated to incorporate the feedback received during the
consultation period.

OPTIONS APPRAISAL

The options considered are to implement the proposed changes as
presented, or maintain the status quo. Proposals have been formed in order
to provide Monmouthshire families with the opportunity to access a school
within the county. The results of the consultation suggest that the Council
would be acting reasonably should proposals be implemented.

REASONS:

The School Admissions Code Wales (July 2013) requires admission
authorities to consult on an annual basis on its admission arrangements.
Where significant changes are proposed, a detailed consultation with affected
parties is required. Changes to school catchment areas forms part of the
admission arrangements and therefore any changes requires consultation
under this framework.

The consultation process was undertaken to allow the Council to receive a
public view on the previously raised concerns received over recent years
relating to the primary school catchment arrangements within the affected
area. The response received has enabled the council to consider an
amendment to existing policy based on an informed consultation.

Page 104



The recommendations put forward would achieve alignment between Primary
and Secondary School catchment areas and provide the Monmouthshire
families residing in the affected areas with Primary School catchment within
the county.

RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS:

Tredunnock, Llanhennock and Llandegveth

Charles Williams CIW Primary School is currently the designated catchment
school for the affected area. Should the children known to be residing within
the affected area chose to attend their catchment school and require home to
school transport assistance, the home to school transport costs would be in
the region of £41,580 per annum. However, there are no children currently
receiving transport from the affected area to Charles Williams CIW Primary
School so the costs of current provision is zero.

Usk CIW Primary School is the proposed new catchment school for the
affected area. Should the children known to be residing within the affected
area chose to attend their proposed new catchment school, they would
receive an entitlement to free home to school transport, with the costs
estimated to be in the region of £41,580 per annum.

In light of the above, the immediate financial impact associated with this
proposal is thought to be in the region of £41,580 per annum.

Important: It is important to note that the above costs are estimates provided
on the basis of current home to school transport costs, which are likely to
increase by the implementation date of September 2025. Its also important to
note that the Council may still have a duty to provide transport to the schools
currently designated as catchment in circumstances where its deemed
nearest and there is a parental preference. This will increase the costs over
those quoted above.

CONSULTEES:
CYP DMT

SLT
Cabinet Member for Education

Page 105



People Scrutiny Committee — 5" March 2024

“The committee acknowledged the background, rationale and consultation process for
the proposed change of catchment area for Tredunnock, Llanhennock and
Llandegvedd from Charles Williams Primary School in Newport to Usk Church in Wales
School in Monmouthshire. The committee had heard that most responses were
supportive of the change, although some had raised concerns about distance and
travel options. Members recognised that the primary school catchment areas review
will be a rolling programme, looking at each area of the county and assessing their
suitability and need for change. The committee asked to be involved in the process
through workshops and highlighted the need for the ward member to be engaged
throughout Members supported the proposals outlined in the report”

9. BACKGROUND PAPERS:

Welsh Government School Admission Code 2013
10. AUTHOR:

Matt Jones, Access Unit Manager
11. CONTACT DETAILS:

Tel: 01633 644585
E-mail: matthewdjones@monmouthshire.gov.uk

Page 106



A

N

monmouthshire
sir fynwy

Review of Primary School catchment areas in
Monmouthshire (Phase 1)

Consultation period:

8t January 2024 to 19" February 2024

Page 107




1. Introduction

On 13" December 2023, the Council’s Cabinet agreed to commence an ongoing
review of primary school catchment areas across the county. This decision follows
on from the review of secondary school catchment areas undertaken in 2019.

The first stage of this review was launched on 8" January 2024, where the Council
entered into a public consultation on some proposed changes to primary school
catchment areas. The consultation on the proposed changes was open for a period
of 6 weeks, concluding on 19" February 2024.

The areas affected by this review were confirmed as:

. Review area 1 — Tredunnock, Llanhennock and Llandegveth
This consultation report now seeks to inform consultees and other interested parties
of the outcome of the consultation by means of firstly summarising each of the
responses received by consultees, and secondly responding to these by means of

clarification, amendment to the proposal, or rejection to the concerns with supporting
reasons.

2.  Distribution of the Consultation report

This consultation report has been published on the Monmouthshire Council Council
website . The following consultees and interested
parties will be contacted and advised of the availability of this report

The governing body of the relevant schools

* Governing bodies of schools affected by proposals:

- Usk Church in Wales Primary School
- Charles Williams Church in Wales Primary School

Page 108 2



http://www.monmouthshire.gov.uk/
http://www.monmouthshire.gov.uk/

Neighbouring Local Authorities affected by the proposals

* Newport City Council

Parents of Children Likely to be affected

Parents of children residing within the affected areas

Other key parties

*  Members of the School Admission Forum
» County Councillors

* Ward Members for the affected areas

* All Monmouthshire Primary School

¢ Church in Wales Diocese

* Roman Catholic Diocese

3. Background into the review of catchment areas

The majority of primary school catchment areas within Monmouthshire have been in
place in their current form since the reorganisation of local government in 1996, and
it is thought that they have been in place for many years prior to this. In some cases,
it is thought that the catchment areas do not seem to follow a specific rationale. For
example, they are not in all cases either based on nearest school or alternatively
through connecting communities. Some primary school catchment areas are also
show trends of regular overpopulation based on the birth data from Health.

A review of secondary school catchment areas was undertaken in 2018, with a
particular focus on the provision within the North / Central parts of the County. There
were two key principles that underpinned this review:

1) To ensure that secondary school catchment areas are both supportive and
reflective of transitional arrangements between primary and secondary
schools.

2) To ensure that Monmouthshire residents have access to a secondary school
that falls within the County boundaries.

As a result of the above consultation, the catchment boundaries for Monmouth and
King Henry VIII Comprehensive Schools were extended to absorb the areas of Usk,
Goytre and surrounding areas that previously fell within the catchment of Caerleon
Comprehensive School, Newport. The catchment area for Monmouth

Page 169




Comprehensive School was also aligned to that of Trellech and Llandogo Primary
Schools to support transitional arrangements.

We are now seeking to build on the work undertaken so far by commencing a review
of primary school catchment areas. On 26" July 2023, a scrutiny workshop was
held with Elected Members, forming an opportunity to highlight any areas of concern
for review. Alongside this, the Council is in the process of implementing a new
revised local development plan (RLDP), which proposes housing developments in
most corners of the County. It's clear that primary school catchment areas will need
to be reviewed in each cluster as the RLDP unfolds between 2025 and 2033, as we
build our education provision to meet the demands of this plan.

This consultation kick starts this programme with further consultations to follow in
response to our duty to ensure we have a sufficient number of school places in the
right areas of the County.

4. Reminder of the Proposals

The Council has consulted on proposals to amend their school admission
arrangements to accommodate the villages of Tredunnock, Llanhennock and
Llandegveth into the catchment area for Usk Church in Wales Primary School.

The affected area currently forms part of the catchment area for Charles Williams
Church In Wales Primary School, Newport, and does not have a designated primary
catchment that falls within Monmouthshire. A map detailing the affected area can be
shown below:

s -y -paer owell /,Llanllyw

Charles Williams CIW Primary

© Crown copyright and database rights 2023 OS AC0000823719

Page 110 4




Through this consultation, the Council sought the views of consultees and interested
parties on whether the primary school catchment boundary should be amended for
the specified areas (area identified above), to form part of the catchment area for
Usk CIW Primary school.

The data that is available to us suggests that there are 28 children currently of
primary school age living within the affected area that would be impacted by
proposals should they proceed. The table below provides a summary of the school
preferences for those residing within the affected area.

Charles Williams 13 46.4
Primary

Usk CIW Primary 9 32.1
School

Private School 2 7.1

Other 4 14.2
Total 28

The below table provides information received from Aneurin Bevan University Health
Board (ABUHB) and identifies the children living within the affected area who will
become of primary school age seeking places in Reception between September
2024 and September 2027.

September 2024 35 2
September 2025 27 4
September 2026 25 2
September 2027 30 1

The current capacity of Usk Church in Wales Primary School allows for 40 children
into each year group.

Page 131




5. Why did we consult on this proposal?

No designated catchment school within Monmouthshire.

One of the identified aims of our catchment review has been to consider the areas of
Monmouthshire that do not currently have a designated catchment School that falls
within County. The primary catchment school is presently one that falls within the city
of Newport. The proposed changes to the affected areas would allow children
resident in Monmouthshire to access a primary school that is within the county in
which they live.

Transitional arrangements between Primary and Secondary School.

Charles Williams Primary School is the designated primary school for the affected
area, with Monmouth Comprehensive School being the designated secondary school
catchment. The current arrangements do not align with our transition arrangements
between primary and secondary school, as the current primary catchment school is
not a feeder school for the designated secondary catchment school. The proposed
changes would see an alignment between the primary and secondary school
catchments for the affected areas, enabling the cohorts of children to remain
together when entering into that daunting transition between Primary to Secondary
School.

Access to School places

The parents of children and young people currently residing within the affected area
have the opportunity to express a preference for a school at which they wish for their
child to attend. This preference does not need to be for the designated catchment
school, however, children residing within the catchment area for a preferred school
receive a priority in the event of oversubscription.

Those residing within the affected area are not afforded with the above priority for a
Monmouthshire School as they do not have a designated primary catchment school
within the county in which they live. The proposals would address this matter.

Provision of Home to School Transport

A further consideration of the proposed change is the current provision for home to
school transport that currently serves the affected area. The council’s current policy
provides free home to school transport to the nearest or catchment school if residing
1.5 miles (primary) or 2 miles (secondary) or more from the home address.

The affected area does not currently qualify for free home to school transport to a
Monmouthshire School.

Page 112 6




6. Consultation arrangements

Background

The School Admissions Code Wales (July 2013) confirms that Local Authorities must
consult on the admission arrangements for those schools for which it is the
admissions authority. Where changes to existing arranges are proposed, including
school catchment areas, consultation must be undertaken with those likely to be
affected by the proposals.

The Council has been required to undertake this consultation by 1t March 2024 and
determine the outcome of the proposals by 15" April 2024 should it wish to
implement the proposals for September 2025 onwards.

Methodology

On 13t December 2023, the Council’ Cabinet approved proposals to engage with
key stakeholders on proposed changes to the School admissions Policy, namely a
review of primary school catchment areas.

On 8™ January 2024, the council engaged in the first stage of its review of primary
school catchment areas, which focussed on the areas of Tredunnock, Llandegveth
and Llanhennock. The formal consultation period lasted for 6 weeks, concluding on
19t February 2024.

The consultation document and key information was either circulated to or made
available to the consultees listed under appendix 1 of this report. The consultation
information was also published on the Council’s website via Consultation on School
Admission Arrangements 2025/26 - Monmouthshire

The Council raised awareness of the consultation through directly targeting those
affected by proposals. Usk Church in Wales Primary School and Charles Williams
Church in Wales Primary school also arranged for the circulation of correspondence
to all of their parents.

Consultees were advised of the following opportunities to respond to the consultation
proposals:

1) Attending one of the dedicated public consultation sessions.

2) Completing the consultation questionnaire, which was made available
on our website at Consultation on School Admission Arrangements
2025/26 - Monmouthshire

Page 113



https://www.monmouthshire.gov.uk/admissionconsultation/
https://www.monmouthshire.gov.uk/admissionconsultation/
https://www.monmouthshire.gov.uk/admissionconsultation/
https://www.monmouthshire.gov.uk/admissionconsultation/

Consultees were also advised that they could contact us via 01633 644508 or by
emailing accesstolearning@monmouthshire.gov.uk if they had any questions on the
proposals.

Public Consultation Meetings

During the consultation process, the Council facilitated public consultation sessions

with the communities likely to be affected by these proposals. The purpose of these
sessions were to engage with the community who may wish to hear more about the

proposals, ask any questions or share their views.

The public consultation sessions took place on the following dates:

Review Area Date Venue

Tredunnock, Llanhennock | 6" February 2024. Open | County Hall, Usk
and Llandegveth drop in session between
4pm — 6pm

7t February 2023. Open | County Hall, Usk
drop in session between
1pm — 4pm

All of the consultation meetings were attended by officers of the councils’ directorate
for children and young people, and provided interested parties with an opportunity to
learn more about the proposals and ask any questions / raise any concerns.

Copies of the full consultation document and feedback proformas were made
available at each of the consultation sessions.

Unfortunately, there were no consultees in attendance at either of the above
sessions.

7. Formal responses to this consultation

The Council have received a number of formal responses to this proposal, submitted
either via the online survey. The table below offers a broad profile of the consultees
responding to the consultation, together with a view on whether they are in support of
or against the proposals.

Page 114 8




Respondent

Total number of

Total number in

Total number not

category responses support of in support of
proposals proposals
Parent / Carer 10 7 3
School Governor 5 5 0
Councillor 1 1 0
Other 1 0 1
Total 17 13 4

Officers have studied the formal responses received in relation to this proposal and
has extracted the key themes for consideration in determining how the proposal
moves forward. A copy of the full responses can be found under appendix 1.

The themes coming through from those in favour of the proposals are:

Theme

Comment

. Connecting
Communities

A view that the affected area has a greater association
with Usk than it does with Newport, with an increasing
number of children wishing to attend Usk CIW Primary
School

. Access to A view that children residing within Monmouthshire
Monmouthshire | should be able to access a school within Monmouthshire
Schools

. Benefitto Usk | A view that the numbers on roll at Usk CIW primary
CIW Primary school are reducing and are likely to continue to reduce

over coming years, so extending the catchment for the
school will have a positive impact

. Increase in A view that residents of the affected area will have an
choice increase in the options available to them, with both

Charles Williams CIW Primary and Usk CIW Primary
being options should proposals be implemented

. Home to school

A view that the proposals would provide equity, with

transport Monmouthshire children able to receive free home to
school transport to a Monmouthshire Primary School, as
this isn’t currently the case under existing arrangements
. Ministerial A view that the affected areas are at the heart of the
Links ministerial area of the church in Wales, which has many

other churches which feed into Usk CIW Primary School.
The proposals would provide a Church commonality for
children, parents and grandparents.

Page 135




The themes coming through from the consultation from those who were not in favour

of proposals were:

Theme

Concern summary

LA Response

1. Capacity of Usk
CIw

A concern Usk CIW primary
school is currently
overflowing and it can
already be difficult to obtain
a place without adding to the
catchment

The capacity of Usk CIW
Primary School is currently
280, with an intake number
of 40 per year group. There
are currently 256 children on
roll, with only 2 of the 7
classes that have met its
admission number of 30.
There are presently no
children of the waiting list for
Usk CIW Primary School.

Within the consultation
document, the Council
published projected
numbers for Usk CIW
Primary School that gives
some confidence that
children residing within the
affected area (who are
eligible to start Reception
over the coming years) can
be accommodated.

2. Secondary
travelling
distances

A concern that travelling
distances to secondary
schools in particular is
significant for the affected
area which creates
environmental issues

This consultation is relevant
to the primary provision
within the county. The
affected area already has a
designated secondary
catchment school for a
school within the county.
However, there is currently
no primary school
catchment for a
Monmouthshire school.

The Secondary School
catchments were reviewed
in 2019 and following an
extensive consultation,
affected areas were

Page 11610




assigned either Monmouth
or King Henry VIII Schools
as their new catchment.
This decision did not and
still does not remove the
opportunities for parents to
apply for a school that is
closer to their home
address.

3. Increased
travelling times
and distances

A concern that Charles
Williams CIW Primary
School is significantly closer
for some children within the
affected areas and
encourages active travel
rather than transporting
children to Usk CIW Primary
via bus / car. Requiring
children to travel to Usk
daily would not comply with
the Well Being and Future
Generations Act

The Councils proposals
have been formed to enable
children living in
Monmouthshire to access a
school within the county,
should they wish to do so.
There would be no
requirement for any child
living within the affected
area to attend Usk CIW
Primary School, as families
will continue to have the
right to express a
preference for their child’s
school. The Council’s
proposals are unable to
amend the admission
arrangements for Charles
Williams Primary School, so
the existing admission
arrangements for this school
would continue to operate.

4. Accessing the
proposed new
catchment
school

A concern that some parents
may not wish for their young
children to travel on school
transport to Usk and would
be required to inherit the
travelling costs of taking
them themselves. Also,
concern re increase in
congestion around the
school as a result

The Council is proposing
these changes so that
families residing in
Monmouthshire have
access to a Monmouthshire
school. Parents residing
within the affected area can
continue to express a
preference for their child’s
school, and we respect that
travelling arrangements may
have an impact on a
parent’s decision.

Page 1117




The governing body of
Charles Williams CIW
Primary School are
responsible for the
admission arrangements for
the school, and this
consultation does not impact
on those arrangements.
Therefore, parents who wish
to attend this school can
apply for places in the same
way that families previously
have.

8. Consultation with Newport City Council

The Council consulted with Newport City Council as a key party affected by these
proposals. Whilst Newport City Council are not the admission authority for Charles
Williams Church in Wales Primary School, it is a school that resides within their City.

The closing date for consultation responses was 19" February 2024 and a response
has not been received from Newport City Council in relation to this consultation.

9. Consultation with Charles Williams Church in Wales Primary

The Council consulted with the Headteacher and governing body of Charles Williams
Church in Wales Primary School. The governing body are the admission authority
for Charles Williams Church in Wales Primary School and determine the catchment
for their school.

As mentioned in the consultation document, these proposals are unable to amend
the admission arrangements (including catchment) for Charlies Williams CIW
Primary but proposes to amend the catchment for Usk Church in Wales Primary
School.

The closing date for consultation responses was 19" February 2024 and a response
has not been received from the governing body of Charles Williams Church in Wales
Primary School in relation to this consultation.

10. Financial Implications

Charles Williams CIW Primary School is currently the designated catchment school
for the affected area. Should the children known to be residing within the affected

Page 11812




area chose to attend their catchment school and require home to school transport
assistance, the home to school transport costs would be in the region of £41,580 per
annum. However, there are no children currently receiving transport from the
affected area to Charles Williams CIW Primary School so the costs of current
provision is zero.

Usk CIW Primary School is the proposed new catchment school (in line with
Monmouthshire’s admission arrangements) for the affected area. Should the
children known to be residing within the affected area chose to attend their proposed
new catchment school, they would receive an entitlement to free home to school
transport, with the costs estimated to be in the region of £41,580 per annum.

In light of the above, the immediate financial impact associated with this proposal is
thought to be £41,580.

Important: It is important to note that the above costs are estimates provided on the
basis of current home to school transport costs, which are likely to increase by the
implementation date of September 2025. Its also important to note that the Council
will still have a duty to provide transport to Charles Williams CIW Primary School in
circumstances where its deemed nearest and there is a parental preference. This
will increase the costs over those quoted above.

11. General overview and consensus

The consultation process undertaken by the Council has without question been a
useful exercise, providing a full and open opportunity to test and critic the proposals
put forward.

Through analysis of the feedback received from the formal consultation responses,
the Council can confidently draw an overall conclusion of general support for the
following proposal:

To amend the catchment area for Usk Church in Wales Primary School to
incorporate the villages of Tredunnock, Llanhennock and Llandegveth

Whilst this consultation has overall been able to evidence support from the majority
of those responding to the consultation, it is acknowledged that there were some
concerns towards the proposals as identified under section 7 of this report. This
report has enabled us to remind consultees that the existing arrangements for
obtaining places at Charles Williams CIW Primary School are not impacted by these
proposals and parents can therefore continue to apply for places should this be their
preference.

Whilst we acknowledge that some children and young people may be travelling
further to access a place at Usk Church in Wales Primary, such a decision would be

Page 119




in line with a parent’ preference of wishing for their child to access a school within the
county.

The concluding matter arising from this report is that a recommendation to proceed
to implement the proposals as consulted upon (with effect from September 2025)
should be put forward to the Councils Cabinet on 10" April 2024. Such a decision
will ensure that the arrangements for both primary and secondary education within
the affected area are aligned, and will provide equity across the county through
ensuring that all children and young people across the county fall within the
catchment area for a Monmouthshire School.

Page 120 14




12. Appendix 1 - full consultation responses

Respondents in favour of proposals:

Respondent

Full response

In the 7.5 years we've lived in the area, we're not aware
of any children that have actually attended Charles
William school and instead they have attended Usk. It is
the case that residents of Tredunnock tend to associate
themselves more with Usk than Caerleon for shopping,
healthcare, leisure etc. and so that probably informs
parents choices of where they want their children to go
to school. From this perspective it makes perfect sense
for Tredunnock to come into catchment for Usk primary.

People living within Monmouthshire, should be attending
schools within their county.

Usk Primary School has falling roll and would benefit
from more students. It is also good for students that live
in Monmouthshire to attend a school in Monmouthshire
where they can be fully support.

I'm very pleased to see this consultation, and | offer my
support to the proposals. | feel its important for
Monmouthshire residents to have access to
Monmouthshire schools.

| think there should be more options for children living in
this area, | think the secondary school catchment needs
careful consideration- travelling half hour each way to a
school isn’t ideal

We live in the Monmouthshire county and as a resident
of Monmouthshire | feel it is only correct that our
children go to a Monmouthshire school, the closest at
Primary age being Usk Church in Wales Primary School.
| did initially have issues with the passenger transport
not wanting to let my children go onto the school bus
even though they go to Usk Primary school, apparently it
was out of catchment area but eventually due to them
not 'getting in' to Charles Williams they were then
allowed to use the school bus, i wouldn't want any other
parent to have to experience this.

The proposal will give parents the choice of Primary
School with both providing opportunity to receive home
to school transport therefore a better option for families.
The proposal will also increase the potential intake for

Page 1%1




Usk CiW Primary School which will assist in the
management of provision going forwards with reducing
intakes over the next few years.

Treddunock, Llanhennock and Llandegfedd are part of
the Heart of Monmouthshire ministry Area which also
includes Usk. As a foundation Governor | welcome the
opportunity for pupils to attend a CIW school within
Monmouthshire and the Ministry Area

Would allow access to an excellent School, and assist
with the school admission numbers. Children would not
be disadvantaged by attendance at the Usk CiW
Primary School and it should not inconvenience parents/
children if transport is provided.

10.

the villages affected are in the Heart of Monmouthshire
Ministry Area of the Church in Wales which has many
other churches in its catchment area, which also feed
Usk primary school. Therefore there is a Church
commonality for children, parents and grandparents.

11.

No reason provided

12.

No reason provided

13.

No reason provided

Respondents not in favour of proposals:

Respondent Full response
1. usk is at overflowing currently and can be difficult for a
child to get a place. can the school and its facilities cope
with more children there is no option to extend, and
however many children currently qualify please consider
the fact that the areas could easily be built on.
2. Caerleon is within easy cycling distance from

Llanhennock - approximately 2 miles. Most days,
therefore we are able to cycle to school.

Usk is approximately 6.5 miles away. Getting to school
would either require use of a car, or provision of a school
bus.

Page 122 16




There are numerous infant and primary aged children
within Llanhennock. To the best of my knowledge all of
the local children either attend CWP, or private school.

Given the significantly closer distance from Llanhennock
to CWP, shorter travel times and ability to easily travel
using active travel, | would argue that changing the
school catchment to Usk, is neither reasonable nor
sustainable.

For a number of reasons, requiring children in
Llanhennock, to travel daily to Usk for school, would
have a negative impact on them and does not comply
with the Well Being of Future Generations Act.

1. Distance the children will travel. Primary school is a
good distance but secondary schools in Monmouthshire
is considerably further.

2. Cost for the travel, as stated about. The current
distance to a Newport school warrants travel as it is over
the suggested miles but as you are moving the
catchment to a school within Monmouthshire the
mileage is considerably more.

3. Environmental issues with travel. Again linked with
my two points above, as we are living in a society where
we are trying to reduce the carbon foot print the amount
of travel adds to this considerably. | am not just thinking
of the primary provision within MCC but the secondary
provision. Both King Henry in Abergavenny and
Monmouth Comp are a very long way from the villages
you are considering. | very much doubt school transport
will be electric, so an old diesel mini bus chugging
around the authority will have an impact.

Increased distance of travel and subsequent cost of
providing transport. Accessing the entitled school
transport is a difficult process for those who wish to use
it.

Parents of children that are of reception age and young
primary may feel the children are too young to travel on
school transport and would have increased costs for
transporting children to a school further away and
worries regarding safety of the children.

Usk is exceptionally busy with heavy traffic at school
start and finish times increasing air pollution and no
adequate system for dropping off & collecting young
children means people park dangerously and encroach
upon private residential parking areas.

Page 193




Page 12418




2025/26

School Admissions Policy

i |
‘ .
monmouthshire

sir fynwy

Monmouthshire County Council

Page 125 January 2024



Contents

1. INTRODUCTION .......ooiiiiiiiciiiiste ettt ettt ettt b ettt s et b s e st e s esese s ebesanessesene 3
1.1 Summary of proposed CRANGES ..................ccccoouiiiiineiiieiieieeee e 4
1.2 CONSUILALION PIrOCESS ...........ccooeeueiieieiiieeeeee ettt ettt b ettt 4
1.3 AdMISSION NUIMDETS .............c.oouoeeeieeieeetiieteeeeeseee sttt et st s et b se s esestesessenessenens 5
2. PROVISION OF EDUCATION IN MONMOUTHSHIRE ...........ccooovieiiiineieeiieieeesee e 5
2.1 NUISEry EAUCALION................c.ccooueeerieetieeeeeeeeeeeeee ettt ettt ettt ne 5
2.2 Primary SChOOl ProViSion (4=11) ...ttt 6
2.3 Secondary SChool ProvisSion (11=19) ...ttt 6
2.4 SPeCial EAUCALION ...ttt sttt 6
2.5 Welsh Medium Secondary EAUCALION ...................c.ccocoeecveeceeiceeiereeeeeeeeeeee e 7
3. PARENTAL RESPONSIBILITY ......cociiioieteiiieieecistete ettt et se e s et sennnes 7
4. EXPRESSING A PREFERENCE FOR A COMMUNITY / VOLUNTARY CONTROLLED SCHOOL
OR NURSERY IN MONMOUTHSHIRE ........cccootiietiiieicteiieietiie ettt nesans 7
4.1 Timetable for the Normal Admission RouNd.....................cccccoueeeeeveieeseieeeeeecesereenens 8
4.2 Distribution of application fOrMS ...................cccooooiiieceieieeiceeeeeeee e 9
5. ALLOCATION OF NURSERY SCHOOL PLACES ..........coccooiieeeieieieeeeieteeeeeeie e 9
5.1 Oversubscription Criteria - NUISEIY ................ccouiiiieiieeeieieeeeeseeee e ssens 10
6. ALLOCATION OF SCHOOL PLACES - COMMUNITY AND VOLUNTARY CONTROLLED
PRIMARY SCHOOLS ...ttt ettt sttt ettt b e et e sttt esa e s esesenenas 11
6.1 Oversubscription criteria - community and voluntary controlled schoois................. 12
7. ALLOCATION OF SCHOOL PLACES - COMMUNITY SECONDARY SCHOOLS ............ccccceuunee. 13
7.1 Oversubscription criteria - community secondary schooils......................cccccceeeuenn... 13
8. PROCESS FOR VALIDATING APPLICATIONS ..ottt 15
8.1 Home address validatioNns....................ccccocoouinneiininieeieeieets ettt ens 15
8.2 Parents in the process of MOVING ProPerty..............eeveeieseceeeeeeeseeeeseesseessenns 15
8.3 Unexpected change of home address...................cccoouiiveneneiieeeiesisese e 16
8.4 SNATed reSIAENCY ............cooueieiieieeeeeee ettt sttt e et sese s esensens 16
8.5 Applications on the grounds of medical needs.......................ccccooevueeevececececeeseeeenerenne 17
8.6 SIDUINGS ...ttt ettt b ettt et et aenens 17

1
Page 126



8.7  SCROOI CALCHM@NIE AT@QS ..........coooeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee ettt s e ettt e s e et e e s reateesseaeeesesaaeessanes 17

8.8  FEeder SCROOIS .............cc.ccoviiiiiiiiiie ettt 18
8.9 Distance between Home and SChOOL ....................cccccccoooiniiininniiinseee s 19
9. ADMISSION OF MULTIPLE BIRTH CHILDREN (E.G. TWINS OR TRIPLETS) .....cccccovueueiririennne. 20
10.  LOOKED AFTER CHILDREN.........c.ccetiiiiiiininirrr ettt 20
11.  CHILDREN OF UK SERVICE PERSONNEL ..........cccsiiiiiiririninieieieieieeieeieeeeeseses e 20
12, CROWN SERVANTS .. ..ottt e st e st esnsesenenas 21
13.  GYPSY, ROMA AND TRAVELLER CHILDREN ..........ccccooiiiiiiiieeiecee e 21
14. DEFERRED ENTRY INTO PRIMARY SCHOOL ...........ccocoiirieieieieieieieeeeceeeesesessesese e 21
15, SUMMER TERM BIRTHS .....cocoiiiiiiiiiiiit ettt 22
16.  LATE APPLICATION ARRANGEMENTS ........ooiiiiiiiiriieieieeiee e 22
17.  NOTIFYING PARENTS ......oooiioiieeeeecc sttt et s s sesenas 23
18.  ACCEPTANCE OF A SCHOOL PLACE ..........coooiiiieieeeee et 24
19.  ADMISSION INTO OTHER YEAR GROUPS - SEPTEMBER 2024...............cccooooveiireie, 24
20. IN YEAR TRANSFERS (ADMISSIONS OUTSIDE THE NORMAL ADMISSION ROUND.............. 24
21. REQUEST FOR ADMISSION OUTSIDE OF CHRONOLOGICAL YEAR GROUP ........................ 25
22.  REFUSAL OF ADMISSION TO PREFERRED SCHOOL ..........cccoeoiiimiriiiirieeeeieeeseeie e 26
23, WAITING LISTS ..ottt sttt ettt et b et s s snnens 27
24, APPEALS ...ttt 27
24.1 Time frame for hearing apPPeAQLs .....................ccoccuoeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e s e 28
25.  INFANT CLASS SIZE INITIATIVE ..ottt 28
25.1 Exceptions to the Infant class size initiative..................ccccccovvevvveveeeceseceseeeeeeees 29
26.  KEY STAGE 2 CLASS SIZE LIMITS ..ottt 30
Appendix A - Coordinated Admission Scheme Primary Schools............c.ccooeeiiiiiiiicccnecenen, 31
Appendix B - Coordinated Admission Scheme Secondary Schools...............ccccooveviiinenennnnen. 34
Appendix C - Admission AULhOTIties...............ccooviiiiiicic e 37
Appendix D - Admission Numbers for SChools ... 39

2
Page 127



1. INTRODUCTION

The School Admissions Code (2013) gives parents the right to express a preference for
their child to be admitted to any school maintained from public funds. The Authority’s
admission policy sits within the parameters of the School Admissions Code of Practice
and School Admissions Appeals Code of Practice July 2013

This policy is in place to cover the following:

i) Admission Round applications

- The application process to be followed for children that are eligible to start
Nursery

- The application process to be followed for children that are eligible to start
Primary School

- The application process to be followed for children eligible to transfer from
Primary to Secondary School.

i) In year transfers between Schools

The application process to be followed for children that are already of school age,
but wish to transfer from one school to another.

3
Page 128



1.1 Summary of proposed changes

The Local Authority is required to consult on its admission arrangements on an annual
basis. The content of this policy is relevant for implementation for the 2025/26
academic year. The proposed changes to existing arrangements can be summarised
as:

1) To extend the catchment area for Usk Church in Wales Primary School to include
the areas of Tredunnock, Llanhennock and Llandegveth

1.2 Consultation process

In accordance with the School Admissions Code of practice (2013) the Local Authority
consults upon its admission arrangements on an annual basis, attempting where
possible to mirror the admission round timescales of neighbouring admission
authorities.

The coordinated admission arrangements will determine the date at which application
forms are sent to parents as well as the publication of an agreed closing date. The
Authority will ensure that this timeframe between distribution and closing date is no
shorter than six weeks.

Consultation will take place between 15t September and 15t March beginning two years
before the school year in which the arrangements will apply. The arrangements will
then be confirmed by 15" April and published within 14 days of this date.

The Local Authority will ensure that the following information is provided during the
consultation process:

i) Admission numbers for each school

i) Application procedures and the timetable for the admission process

iii) The criteria to be applied to applications in the event that there are more
applications than places for a School

iv) Arrangements for waiting lists and how they operate

V) Arrangements for the processing of late applications

Vi) Details of how parents will be notified of a decision on their application, as
well as appeal procedures should their application be unsuccessful.

The Local Authority will consult with the following parties on its admission
arrangements:

4
Page 129



Governing body of relevant Schools All governing bodies of community
Schools in Monmouthshire

All neighbouring Local Authorities within | Torfaen County Council

the area Newport City Council

Powys County Council

Blaenau Gwent County Council
Gloucestershire County Council
Herefordshire County Council

Admission Authorities for all other All governing bodies of voluntary Aided
schools in the area schools in Monmouthshire

Brynmawr Foundation School

St Albans RC School

St Joseph’s RC School

In the case of Schools with a religious Diocesan Director, Church in Wales
character, such body or person Diocesan Director, Roman Catholic
representing the religion or religious
denomination in question

Consultees may respond to this consultation by completing the response proforma
available here. The closing date for responses is 191" February 2024.

1.3 Admission Numbers

Prior to the consultation, the admission numbers for all schools are determined and
form part of this consultation. The admission numbers for the schools are derived from
the physical capacity of the school which is calculated in accordance with the Welsh
Government’s ‘Measuring the Capacity of Schools in Wales’.

2. PROVISION OF EDUCATION IN MONMOUTHSHIRE

The Local Authority offers the following provision for children and young people wishing
to be educated within the County:

2.1 Nursery Education

The Local Authority has twelve nursery units attached to mainstream schools. The
Authority maintains these nurseries that provide free part time early years education for
pupils from the term following their third birthday, if there are spaces available.
Monmouthshire also supports many private day nurseries, pre-prep Schools,

5
Page 130


https://forms.office.com/Pages/ResponsePage.aspx?id=eQBNLCzFs0uzytjq8ba31ajfe8ZX4CxBgm7sHyCUSNZUMUozSzVTNEdUWEtNSVIwMTlLWUFFN1gzOS4u

playgroups, creches and cylch meithrin (playgroups using the medium of welsh). These
settings are approved providers of early year’s education.

2.2 Primary School provision (4-11)

The Local Authority offers a number of educational establishments at Primary level:

Primary Community (English) - 20
Primary Community (Welsh) - 2
Primary Church in Wales VC - 4
Primary Church in Wales VA - 2
Primary Roman Catholic VA - 2

The Local Authority is the admitting authority for all Primary Community Schools
(English and Welsh) and Voluntary Controlled Schools within Monmouthshire, and are
responsible for the admission arrangements at each of these Schools.

The Governing Bodies of the 4 Voluntary Aided Schools in Monmouthshire are
responsible for the admission arrangements within their schools.

2.3 Secondary School Provision (11-19)

All mainstream secondary schools in Monmouthshire are mixed Comprehensive
Schools and serve 11 — 19 year olds. These are situated close to the four major towns
in Monmouthshire.

2.4 Special Education

Overmonnow Primary School (Monmouth), Pembroke Primary School (Chepstow), King
Henry VIII 3-19 School (Abergavenny), Monmouth Comprehensive School and Caldicot
School all have Specialist Resource Bases to accommodate those children whose
needs cannot be met in mainstream education.

Admission to these settings will be determined via the Local Authority Statutory Panel.

6
Page 131



2.5 Welsh Medium Secondary Education

Monmouthshire have developed close links with neighbouring Authorities, in particular
Torfaen County Council with Ysgol Gymraeg Gwynllyw and Newport City Council with
Ysgol Gyfun Gwent Is Coed, to ensure that Welsh Medium Education is available at
Secondary level to the children within our County.

3. PARENTAL RESPONSIBILITY

Only persons holding parental responsibility for the named child are able to make an
application and they will be required to make a declaration to this effect as part of the
application process.

It is expected that parents will agree on school preferences for a child before an
application is made. The Local Authority is not in a position to intervene in disputes
between parents over school applications and will request that these are resolved
privately.

If parents are unable to agree to an application for a preferred School, the Local
Authority will be unable to proceed with the application until such time that a mutual
agreement has been made, or alternatively legal proceedings determine which parent
should make the application for a school place.

4. EXPRESSING A PREFERENCE FOR A COMMUNITY / VOLUNTARY
CONTROLLED SCHOOL OR NURSERY IN MONMOUTHSHIRE

In line with the School Admissions code of practice (2013), parents must complete an
application form in order to obtain a nursery / school place. Parents / carers will have
the opportunity to complete an application online or alternatively via a paper application.
The local authority will only accept an application request submitted by the person(s)
that hold parental responsibility for the child concerned.

All parents will be invited to express a preference on a common application form,
regardless of the status of the schools for which they wish to apply and whether the
school is infout of county. The application form will provide an opportunity for parents to
give reasons for their preferences. All completed online application forms will be
submitted directly to the Local Authority. Paper application forms should be sent
directly to the School & Student Access Unit (SSAU). An exception to this is if
parents wish to apply for a School that resides within Newport City Council —in
such circumstances the parent is required to apply directly to Newport City
Council under their admission arrangements.

7
Page 132



Although individual school admission authorities (Voluntary Aided) may require you to
complete their own admission forms, all applicants must also complete a “Common
Application Form”.

The Local Authority operates an equal preference scheme, which means that all
preferences are considered equally in line with the Local Authority’s oversubscription
criteria, and not on the basis of the order in which they are listed on the application. In
the event that more than one preference can be met, the highest rank preference as
declared on the application form will be offered.

4.1 Timetable for the Normal Admission Round

The Local Authority will consult and agree on a timetable for the Admission Round
intake on an annual basis. This will outline the date by when application forms will be
made available to parents, the closing date for applications, as well as the date by when
parents will be informed of a decision on their application.

The dates for the September 2025 Admission Round will be:

Primary to 25th 13th November 14.11.24 - | 3rd March
Secondary September 2024 at 17:00 02.03.25 2025
2024
Reception 6th November | 9th January 2025 | 10.01.25 — 16th April 2025
2024 at 17:00 15.04.25
Nursery 4t July 2024 12th September 12.09.24 - 11th November
2024 at 17:00 10.11.24 2024
(September

2025 intake)

11th November
2024 (Rising 3
children eligible
for January
2025 intake)

6™ March 2025
(Rising 3 place

8
Page 133



eligible for April
2025 intake)

4.2 Distribution of application forms

Nursery

Applications for admission into a Local Authority nursery will be made available to
parents in line with the dates specified in the above table. Parents will have the
opportunity to apply via our online application system or alternatively request a paper
application form from the School and Student Access Unit.

In addition to the above, parents / carers can request admission into one of our
approved non maintained settings, details of which can be found via
www.monfis.org.uk. Applications will need to be made directly to the provider(s) in this
instance.

Primary / Secondary School

The Local Authority will distribute application letters directly to home addresses on the
dates published above. Parents/ carers will be given the opportunity to choose to apply
online or to complete a paper form. Details of how to apply online will be included in the
application pack circulated to parents.

Whilst the Authority endeavours to capture the details of those parents / carers who
have children that are eligible for admission to school, it still remains the parent’s /
carer’s responsibility to obtain an application pack to apply for a school place within the
required timescales.

5. ALLOCATION OF NURSERY SCHOOL PLACES

Children will be admitted to nursery in the September of the academic year in which
they become four years old. This place can be in a school or in a non-maintained
setting, which may be a playgroup or a private day nursery. The Council is responsible
for admission to community nursery schools but for a nursery place in a non-maintained
setting, enquiries should be made directly to the provider.

The local authority is unable to consider nursery applications for only part of a school

week and therefore admission to nursery schools is offered for a half-day session, either
morning or afternoon, 5 days per week. Schools expect pupils attending the nursery to

9
Page 134


http://www.monfis.org.uk/

take up all the sessions available to them. If parents do not wish their child to attend all
five sessions each week, it might be preferable to seek a place at a non-maintained
setting that can more easily accommodate these flexible arrangements.

Once allocated a September nursery place, children born between 1 September and

31 March may be offered an early start in the term following their third birthday, if places
are available. This is commonly referred to as a Rising 3 place. Children born between
1 April and 31 August are not eligible for a Rising 3 place.

If Rising 3 places are available, eligible pupils will be offered an early start at their
allocated nursery as follows:

e On 11th November 2024 for January 2025 Rising 3 places
e On 6th March 2025 for April 2025 Rising 3 places

5.1 Oversubscription criteria - Nursery

It is the Council’s policy to meet parental preference where possible; however in
some cases there may be more applications for a particular nursery than there are
places. In determining which children should be admitted to nursery, the Council will
apply the following oversubscription criteria in order of priority.

Priority rank Criteria

Children in receipt of a Statement of special educational needs / Individual
Development Plan (IDP) (statutory requirement for admission)
1. Looked after children or previously looked after children
i.e. children that are in the care of or have previously
been in the care of a local authority, will be afforded
priority over those fulfilling points 2-4 below. (Please
see section 10.0)

2. Children with exceptional medical circumstances, will be
afforded priority over those fulfilling points 3-4 below
(please see section 8.5)

3. Children who have relevant sibling in attendance at the
preferred nursery (not main school) at the point of
admission, will be afforded priority over those fulfilling
point 4 below. (Please see section 8.6)

4. After applying the categories above, or should the
school continue to be in a position of over-subscription

10
Page 135



in any of the above categories, priority will be based on
closeness to the preferred school, measured using the
shortest safe walking route. (Please see section 8.9)

Please note:

1) There is no right of appeal against the Council’s decision to refuse a nursery
place.

2) Nursery age pupils do not qualify for free home to school transport.

3) The allocation of morning and afternoon sessions is the responsibility of the
Headteacher of the relevant school.

4) A child’s start date at nursery may be delayed if they are not fully toilet
trained. This can be discussed with the nursery once a place has been allocated
to the child.

5) Attending a nursery class does not guarantee admission nor give any advantage
to the child’s application for Reception. Parents must make a separate
application for admission to Reception at the appropriate time

6. ALLOCATION OF SCHOOL PLACES - COMMUNITY AND
VOLUNTARY CONTROLLED PRIMARY SCHOOLS

The Authority will admit a child to a maintained primary/infant school at the start of the
academic year in which he/she will turn 5 years old. The legal requirements confirm that
parents are able to delay the admission of their child until the term following their 5th
birthday; however, it is a Local Authority Policy that the child will continue to follow their
chronological year group unless exceptional circumstances apply.

When considering admission into the Reception year group as part of the admission
round, parents should be aware that attendance at a nursery provision within the
preferred School does not exclude the need for parents to make an application for a
Reception place. The Local Authority is unable to guarantee that children within the
nursery can be guaranteed a place in Reception.

When the number of applications received for a preferred School is less or equal to the
number of available places, all children will be admitted assuming that the school
concerned can meet the needs of the children concerned.

However, when there are more applications than places in a school, the admission

number is exceeded and the oversubscription criteria will be applied to select which
children are to be offered places at the School concerned. For children with a

11
Page 136



Statement of Special Educational Needs / IDP, the Authority must admit the child
concerned to the School specified on their statement.

When applying the oversubscription criteria to determine who is to be awarded places,
all parental preferences will be considered equally and allocated in line with the criteria
below. The highest preference school, as listed on the application form, will be offered
in the event that one or more preferences can be met.

6.1 Oversubscription criteria - community and voluntary controlled
schools

When considering the remaining available places, the following criteria will be used to
determine the children that are to be offered places:

Priority Criteria
rank

Children in receipt of a Statement of special educational needs / Individual
Development Plan (IDP) (statutory requirement for admission)

1. Looked after children or previously looked after children i.e. children
that are in the care of or have previously been in the care of a local
authority, will be afforded priority over those fulfilling points 2-8
below. (Please see section 10.0)

2. Children with exceptional medical circumstances, will be afforded
priority over those fulfilling points 3-8 below (please see section
8.5)

3. Children residing within the catchment area for the preferred school

who have relevant siblings will be afforded priority over those
fulfilling points 4-8 below (please see sections 8.6 and 8.7)

4. Children residing outside of the catchment area for the preferred
school, but with relevant siblings who will continue to be in
attendance at the preferred school due to being unsuccessful in their
application for a place at their catchment school. will be afforded
priority over those fulfilling points 5-8 below (please see
explanatory notes below, and section 8.6)

5. Children residing inside the catchment area for the preferred school
will be afforded priority over those fulfilling points 7-8 below (please
see section 8.7)

6. Children residing outside of the catchment area for the preferred
school, with a relevant sibling (who will be in attendance at the
preferred school at time of admission) that does not meet criteria
points 4 and 5 above (please see section 8.6)

7. After applying the categories above, or should the school continue to
be in a position of over-subscription in any of the above categories,

12
Page 137



priority will be based on closeness to the preferred school,
measured using the shortest safe walking route.

To clarify, any over-subscription in the above criteria will result in the final determination
of the allocation of a place being made on distance. So for example, if there are more
applications than places available after applying point 6 above, places will be allocated
to those children whose home address is determined to be closer to the preferred
school.

Explanatory Notes

Priority rank 4 - This criteria would apply only in the event that a parent has been
unsuccessful in obtaining a place for their child at their catchment school, and is
subsequently attending an alternative school with a younger sibling eligible to attend.

7. ALLOCATION OF SCHOOL PLACES - COMMUNITY SECONDARY
SCHOOLS

Attendance at a Primary or Junior school does not guarantee that a place will be made
available for your child at the feeder Comprehensive school. Although every effort will
be made to accommodate parental preference, where the number of applications for a
school exceeds the number of available places, the over-subscription criteria will be
applied.

When the number of applications received for a preferred School is less or equal to the
number of available places, all children will be admitted assuming that the school
concerned can meet the needs of the children concerned.

However, when there are more applications than places in a school, the admission
number is exceeded and the over subscription criteria will be applied to select which
children are to be offered places at the School concerned. For children with a
Statement of Special Educational Needs / IDP, the Authority must admit the child
concerned to the School specified on their statement / IDP.

When applying the oversubscription criteria to determine who is to be awarded places,
all parental preferences will be considered equally and allocated in line with the criteria
below. The highest preference school, as listed on the application form, will be offered
in the event that one or more preferences can be met.

7.1 Oversubscription criteria - community secondary schools

13
Page 138



Priority Criteria
rank

Children in receipt of a Statement of special educational needs / Individual
Development Plan (IDP) (statutory requirement for admission)

1. Looked after children or previously looked after children i.e. children
that are in the care of or have previously been in the care of a local
authority, will be afforded priority over those fulfilling points 2-9
below. (Please see section 10.0)

2. Children with exceptional medical circumstances, will be afforded
priority over those fulfilling points 3-9 below (please see section
8.5)

3. Children residing within the catchment area for the preferred school

who have relevant siblings will be afforded priority over those
fulfilling points 4-9 below (please see sections 8.6 and 8.7)

4. Children residing outside of the catchment area for the preferred
school, but with relevant siblings who will continue to be in
attendance at the preferred school due to being unsuccessful in their
application for a place at their catchment school. will be afforded
priority over those fulfilling points 5-9 below (please see
explanatory notes below and section 8.6)

5. Children residing inside the catchment area for the preferred school
will be afforded priority over those fulfilling points 7-9 below (please
see section 8.7)

6. Children residing outside of the catchment area for the preferred
school, with a relevant sibling (who will be in attendance at the
preferred school at time of admission) that does not meet criteria
points 4 and 5 above, will be afforded priority over those fulfilling
points 8-9 (please see section 8.6)

7. Children currently on roll at a primary school that is designated to be
a feeder school for the preferred secondary school will be afforded
priority over those fulfilling point 9 (please see section 8.8)

8. After applying the categories above, or should the school continue to
be in a position of over-subscription in any of the above categories,
priority will be based on closeness to the preferred school,
measured using the shortest safe walking route. (please see
section 8.9)

To clarify, any oversubscription in the above criteria will result in the final determination
of the allocation of a place being made on distance. So for example, if there are more
applications than places available after applying point 6 above, places will be allocated
to those children whose home address is determined to be closer to the preferred
school.

Explanatory Notes

14
Page 139



Priority rank 4 - This criteria would apply only in the event that a parent has been
unsuccessful in obtaining a place for their child at their catchment school, and is
subsequently attending an alternative school with a younger sibling eligible to attend.

8. PROCESS FOR VALIDATING APPLICATIONS

The local authority will undertake thorough checks against the information declared on
an application request for school / nursery admission.

8.1 Home address validations

Parents / Carers must submit their application using their child’s permanent home
address. Parents / Carers are required to submit their Council Tax reference number
on their child’s admission application form. The Local Authority will use this information
to validate that the address submitted on the application form coincides with the
information held on the Local Authority’s Council Tax database.

If the information provided by the parent does not coincide with the council tax database
the Local Authority will contact the parent for further evidence. An examples of
evidence accepted for this purposes will be a valid UK driving licence.

Any decision on the offer of a nursery / school place will be based upon the applicant
being resident at the address declared on the application form, as at the published offer
date.

Any offer of a nursery / school place could be withdrawn if it is found that a parent /

carer has moved from the address declared on the application form without notifying the
Local Authority, if a place has been offered on the basis of home address.

8.2 Parents in the process of moving property

Parents / Carers who are in the process of moving property will be required to notify the
Local Authority at the time of application of the proposed move and submit evidence
to validate their new address, in order for this address to be considered. Suitable
evidence would be a copy of the exchange of contracts (for purchases) or long term
tenancy agreement (for rental arrangements).

The application and notification of an intended change of address must be submitted
prior to the published closing date in order to be considered as an in time application.

15
Page 140



Failure to notify the Local Authority of an intended move to a new address prior to the
published closing date will result in the application being determined as a “late
application” if this change impacts on their position within the oversubscription criteria.

Parents/ Carers who are in the process of moving, but are not able to validate the move
prior to the closing date, will need to ensure that their completed application is
submitted prior to the published closing date, and that the application provides
information on the intention to move. The Local Authority will liaise with parents/carers
regarding the proposed move in order to obtain confirmation that residence at the new
property has been secured. However, parents will need to provide the Local Authority
with evidence that secures their change of address no later than 6 weeks prior to the
published offer date in order for the new address to be considered for allocation
purposes.

Where the Local Authority accepts evidence to validate a property move and uses the
new property for allocation purposes, the offer of a school place will be based on the
applicant and child being resident at this property at the time of the child’s entrance into
the School. Any offer of a school place could be withdrawn if it is found that the
applicant is not resident at the property at the time of child’s entrance into the school.

Any offer of a nursery / school place could be withdrawn as a result of non-compliance
with the above.

8.3 Unexpected change of home address

Should a parent, who has submitted an application prior to the published closing date,
notify us of an unexpected change of address that has occurred since submission of
their application, the Local Authority will consider on a discretionary basis the
circumstances of the unexpected change of address prior to determining the application
as being late. It is a parent’s responsibility to notify us of any such circumstances
that may require a discretionary decision.

Unfortunately, such discretion can only be exercised if notification and evidence of the
change of address is provided no later than 6 weeks prior to the published offer date in
order for the new address to be considered for allocation purposes.

It is a parent’s responsibility to notify the Local Authority of a change of address that

takes place during the application process. Failure to do so could result in any offer of a
school place being withdrawn.

8.4 Shared residency

16
Page 141



In the event that the residency of a child is shared between two parents, the address
where the child concerned resides for the majority of the school week will be used for
allocation purposes. This is the address that should be declared on the application.

However, if the residency with both parents during the school week is equal, the
address for where the child benefit is paid will be used for allocation purposes.

8.5 Applications on the grounds of medical needs

Applicants wishing for their application to be prioritised on the basis of their child’s
medical needs must provide evidence to support their application under this criteria e.g.
a medical consultant’s report (obtained by the parents at the time of application).

The Local Authority will only offer priority to applications under this criteria where it can

be evidenced that the preferred School is the only viable option when compared with
other Schools that the Authority may be able to offer.

8.6 Siblings

Brothers and sisters, whether half, full, step or foster, will be considered relevant
siblings where living in the same household and where they are registered at the
preferred school when the application is determined, and will still be registered at the
school when the applicant is eligible to attend.

The sibling criteria is considered relevant in years Reception to year 12 only. The
admission of a child to a school does not guarantee that a place will be available at a
later date for other children in the family.

For admission into Nursery, a sibling is only considered relevant where the child
concerned is permanently resident at the same address and attending the nursery (not
main school).

8.7 School Catchment Areas

Whilst residing within the catchment area for a School forms an element of the
oversubscription criteria, it does not guarantee a placement on this basis. The Local

17
Page 142



Authority will refuse to admit above the School’s admission number, unless the
application complies with the permitted exceptions listed on page 29.

The Local Authority offers a priority within its oversubscription criteria to children whose
home address is within the Schools catchment area. The child’s home address is
considered to be the place where the child resides for the majority of the School week.
Please refer to section 8.4 for information concerning applications where shared

residency arrangements are in place.

Details of your school catchment areas can be found by visiting Local Info - Monmouthshire.

8.8 Feeder Schools

The Local Authority offers a priority within its Secondary School oversubscription criteria
for children who are in attendance at a feeder Primary School for the preferred

secondary school.

Feeder schools are determined as being the schools that have formal transitional
arrangements with a secondary school. The details of the feeder schools for each
secondary school in Monmouthshire can be found below:

King Henry VIII 3-19 School

Cantref Primary School

Llantilio Pertholey CIW Primary School
Gilwern Primary School

Goytre Fawr Primary School

Llanfoist Primary School

Llanvihangel Crucorney Primary School
Our Lady and St Michaels RC Primary
School

Ysgol Gymraeg Y Fenni *

Caldicot School

Archbishop Rowan Williams CIW
Castle Park Primary School
Dewstow Primary School

Durand Primary School

Magor CIW Primary School
Rogiet Primary School

Undy Primary School

Ysgol Gymraeg Y Ffin *

Monmouth Comprehensive School
Cross Ash Primary School

Kymin View Primary School
Llandogo Primary School
Overmonnow Primary School
Raglan Primary School

Trellech Primary School

Osbaston CIW Primary School
Usk CIW Primary School

Chepstow School

Pembroke Primary School
Shirenewton Primary School
St Marys RC Primary School
The Dell Primary School
Thornwell Primary School

18
Page 143



https://maps.monmouthshire.gov.uk/localinfo.aspx

* Ysgol Gymraeg Y Fenni is a feeder primary school for Ysgol Gymraeg Gwynllyw and
Ysgol Gymraeg Y Ffin is a feeder primary school for Ysgol Gyfun Gwent Is Coed.
However Monmouthshire LA are not responsible for the admissions to these schools so
whether priority will be offered is the responsibility of Torfaen and Newport Councils.

8.9 Distance between Home and School

Within each set of oversubscription criteria (section 5.1, 6.1 & 7.1), if the number of
applications in any one category exceeds the published admission number, priority will
be based on those residing closest to the preferred school.

The distance between home and school is measured as the shortest available walking
route, determined using official routes known to the Local Authority and highways
agencies. The Local Authority deems that a route is ‘available’ if a child, accompanied
as necessary, can walk to school in reasonable safety.

In assessing its availability the council will follow the guidelines prescribed in Welsh
Government’s Learner Travel Statutory Provision and Operational Guidance June 2014
and will look at the risks and other relevant safety factors a child, accompanied as
necessary, might encounter along the prescribed route (including for example, canals,
rivers, ditches, street lighting, pavements and the speed of traffic along roads, etc.).

The Local Authority will calculate the distance of the route using its’ own specific
Geographical Information Systems (GIS) routing software, RouteFinder and Mapinfo
Desktop Solutions. In order to ensure fairness and consistency for all applicants, this is
the only measurement tool that is used by the Local Authority.

The starting point of the calculated route will be determined as being the nearest
network point to the main entrance of the home address. The main entrance of the
home address is determined by the Local Authority to be where the property receives
post. For clarity, this must be located on the property concerned. The finishing point of
the calculated route will be determined as being the nearest official open gate adopted
for use by the school.

The coordinates of an applicant’s address will be determined using the LLPG and
Ordnance Survey Address base data.

Where the Local Authority is unable to identify a safe walking route from the home
address to the preferred School, the shortest driving route will be used to calculate
home to school distances.

Where two or more applicants are being considered for the last available place, and
their home to school distance calculations are exactly the same, a trundle wheel will be
used to undertake an additional assessment of the distance to the main entrance of the
home address.

19
Page 144



Where two or more applicants are being considered for the last available place, and the
addresses fall within the same building, i.e. a block of flats, a trundle wheel will be used
to calculate the distance from the front door of the home to the main communal
entrance of the property to the nearest entrance of each flat, where possible.

9. ADMISSION OF MULTIPLE BIRTH CHILDREN (E.G. TWINS OR
TRIPLETS)

If when applying the over-subscription criteria to applications received requesting
admission into the normal year of entry (Reception and Year 7), and the last child to be
admitted is one of a multiple birth, then the Local Authority will admit the other sibling(s).

Where multiple birth applications are received for year groups other than the normal
year of entry, where there is only one remaining place in the relevant year group before
the Admission Number is met, the Local Authority will consider each case individually
before deciding whether the admission number is exceeded. Particular consideration
will need to be given to the capacity of the school and the likelihood of causing prejudice
to the effective education and efficient use of resources at the preferred school.

10. LOOKED AFTER CHILDREN

Applications for looked-after children (children in public care) [as defined by Section 22
of the Children Act 1989] are given priority for School placement. This priority can also
be given to previously looked-after children although the person making the application
must provide evidence to confirm the previous care status, such as an Adoption
Certificate.

Where applications are made for year groups other than the normal year of entry for a
year group that has already met its admission number, the Local Authority will require
suitable evidence as to why the preferred School is the most suitable school in
comparison to other available schools.

11. CHILDREN OF UK SERVICE PERSONNEL

Children of returning UK Service Personnel are subject to frequent movement within the
UK and abroad often at relatively short notice. Consequently for UK service personnel
who are unable to engage in the normal admissions process, the Council will consider
the residency criteria satisfied (and award catchment priority) if the application is

20
Page 145



accompanied by the following, even if the family do not reside in Monmouthshire at the
relevant date.

e Official proof of posting i.e. a posting notice;
¢ A copy of the Service Identity Card;
e Confirmation of the new address wherever possible.

Where the family concerned have been posted to an area through their employment
and have not had the opportunity to engage in normal admissions processes, the
Council will exceed the admission number at the catchment school.

12.  CROWN SERVANTS

Children of UK Crown Servants (Including diplomats) are subject to frequent movement
and if moving into Monmouthshire, will be determined as meeting the residency criteria
for the relevant catchment school if the application is accompanied by an official Foreign
and Commonwealth Office letter declaring:

e A definite return date;
e Confirmation of the new address wherever possible;
e Confirmation of the Crown Servant status.

13. GYPSY, ROMA AND TRAVELLER CHILDREN

The council is obliged, by statute, to ensure that all children of compulsory school age
receive education that is appropriate to their age, abilities and any special educational
needs, and promotes high standards in the provision of education and the welfare of
children. These obligations apply to all children whether or not they are permanent
residents in the area. Therefore, applications made in respect of such families will be
dealt with in conjunction with the Gwent Education Minority-ethnic Service (GEMS), with
a view to placing these children as quickly as possible at the nearest available and
appropriate school.

14. DEFERRED ENTRY INTO PRIMARY SCHOOL

The Local Authority will admit a child to a maintained primary school at the start of the
academic year in which he/she will turn 5 years old. However, the legal requirements
confirm that parents are able to delay the admission of their child until the term following
their 5th birthday. The Local Authority is obliged to ensure that any offer of a school
place is held for parents who wish for their child’s admission into Reception to be
deferred until later in the academic year.

21
Page 146



A parent, however, is not able to defer entry beyond the term following the child’s fifth
birthday, nor beyond the school year for which the application was made.

15. SUMMER TERM BIRTHS

In the case of a child born during the summer term, they too are not legally required to
attend School until the term following their fifth birthday / the September after the normal
year of entry for a Reception age child. However, in such circumstances the Local
Authority will continue to ensure that children continue to follow their chronological year
group and therefore the child would be admitted into year 1 and not Reception.

It is only in exceptional circumstances that the Local Authority will authorise the
admission of a summer term birth into a year group that is outside the normal year of
entry. In such circumstances, there will need to be a suitable evidence base (e.g. report
from an Educational Psychologist) that suggests the chronological year group is not
suitably able to meet the needs of the child concerned.

16. LATE APPLICATION ARRANGEMENTS

Any application that is received after the published closing date, or applications that
remain incomplete as at the closing date, will be dealt with under the late application
arrangements.

A change of preference received by the Local Authority after the published closing date
will result in the application being determined as late.

Applications where a change in circumstances have occurred, which have an impact
upon the application’s status within the oversubscription criteria (i.e. change of
address), could also result in the application being treated as late if these changes are
brought to the Authority’s attention after the closing date. The Local Authority will
consider on a discretionary basis the circumstances an unexpected change of address
prior to determining the application as being late. Unfortunately, such discretion can
only be exercised if notification of the change of address is provided no later than 6
weeks prior to the published offer date in order for the new address to be considered for
allocation purposes.

Late applications are collated and processed monthly, with prioritisation given based on

the month in which they are received. A timetable for the processing of late applications
for the 2024/25 admission round can be found below:

22
Page 147



Month application
Received

Decision issued to Parents

Applies to Secondary only

14th November 2024 —
ot January 2025

28" March 2025

Applies to Primary and
Secondary

10™ January — 315t

9t May 2025 (Primary)

January 2025 11t April 2025 (Secondary)
February 2025 23rd May 2025 (Primary)
25" April 2025 (Secondary)
March 2025
30th May 2025
April 2025 6" June 2025
May 2025 20th June 2025
June 2025 4t July 2025
July 2025 8t August 2025
15t to 8™ August 2025 15" August 2025

9t to 17t August 2025

22nd August 2025

18" August onwards

Within 1 week

In the event that the preferred School is oversubscribed, places will be allocated in line
with the oversubscription criteria during the first week of the month following the month
of receipt. Parents will be informed of the outcome of their applications by the end of

this week.

The arrangements for late applications continue up until the last week of August. After
this date, any admissions received are then processed within 1 week.

17. NOTIFYING PARENTS

Parents will be notified of a decision on their application on the published offer date.
For the 2025/26 admission round, the date by when parents will be informed of
decisions on their applications will be 3rd March 2025 (Secondary) and 16th April 2025

(Primary).

23
Page 148




Any offer of a school place will be based on the applicant being resident at the address
declared on the application form as at the published offer date. Parents who are aware
prior to the offer date that they are unlikely to remain resident at the address declared
on their application must inform us so that their application can be amended. Any offer
of a school place could be withdrawn if it is later found that this is not the case.

Where parents advise us, at the time of application, that they are moving property and
provide the Local Authority with evidence to validate this move, any offer of a school
place on this basis would be under the circumstance that the applicant is resident at the
new property at the time the child concerned commences School. Any offer of a school
place could be withdrawn if it is later found that this is not the case.

18. ACCEPTANCE OF A SCHOOL PLACE

On receipt of an offer of a school place, parents are required to confirm their
acceptance of this school place in writing within 14 days of notification of the school
place offer. Failure to do so could result in the offer of a school place being withdrawn.

19. ADMISSION INTO OTHER YEAR GROUPS - SEPTEMBER 2025

Where requests are received for a change of school in September 2025, into year
groups other than the normal year of entrance, these will not be considered until the
start of the second half of the summer term i.e. after the Whitsun break. Parents will be
notified no earlier than 4 weeks prior to the end of the 2025 academic year.

These requests will be collated on a monthly basis and are processed as per the
oversubscription criteria, in the event that the number of applications received exceeds
the number of available places. However it should be noted that preference will be given
to those parents who are seeking a place during the current term as opposed to the new
academic year.

20. IN YEAR TRANSFERS (ADMISSIONS OUTSIDE THE NORMAL
ADMISSION ROUND

In year transfers refer to requests from parents to transfer their children between
schools outside of the normal admission round. The Local Authority will not consider
applications until the requested start date is no more than a term in advance.

24
Page 149



All in year transfers are dealt with in date order of receipt, and where more applications
are received on the same day than the number of places available, the Local Authority’s
oversubscription criteria will be applied to determine the child(ren) to be offered places.

Applications are usually processed within 7 working days of receipt. However in certain
circumstances, for example where the child has been identified as having specific
needs, it may not be possible to process the admission within the timeframe. The parent
will be advised of this.

As part of the consideration process, the Local Authority will contact the child’s current
school to obtain information to share with the receiving school. This is to ensure that
the preferred school is in a position to support appropriate transition between schools.

On occasions where the admission request to transfer schools is not one that arises
from a move into the area, or where perhaps there is no immediate need for transfer,
the Local Authority will consider admission from the beginning of a school term to
minimise the potential disruption their own and other children’s education.

Allocated places will be held open for a period of 1 term from the date of authorised
admission, after which time the place may be withdrawn if the child has not taken up
their place during this time. Once a school place has been offered, schools will have 7
working days to arrange the enrolment of the child concerned, where an immediate start
is required.

If an application is received for a Looked After Child (LAC), in accordance with the
protocol that has been agreed with schools, a LAC meeting will be arranged, to which
all interested parties are invited. In advance of this meeting the placing authority is
required to share relevant information including the Personal Education Plan, School
records and Statement of Educational Needs / IDP, if the child has one.

Where the request for admission into school is as a result of a move into the county the
parent is required to send proof of residence. Until this evidence is received the
application will not be processed or considered as complete. Suitable evidence would
be a copy of the exchange of contracts or long term tenancy agreement. This is to
ensure that parents do not apply too far in advance of their move and subsequently
deny others a place requiring a more instant admission.

21. REQUEST FOR ADMISSION OUTSIDE OF CHRONOLOGICAL
YEAR GROUP

It is the Local Authority’s policy that children are admitted into their chronological year
group. Itis only in exceptional circumstances that the Local Authority will support
admission into a year group that is not within the chronological year, for example, where
there is an appropriate evidence base (e.g. report from an Educational Psychologist)

25
Page 150



that suggests the chronological year group is not suitably able to meet the needs of the
child concerned.

Parents submitting an application request for admission into a year group that is not
within the chronological year for the child will be given the opportunity to share their
reasons for the application with the Local Authority. The headteacher of the preferred
school will also be consulted during the process and their views considered as part of
the decision making process.

Parents refused a place at the preferred school will have a statutory right of appeal

against the decision that has been made; however, there is no appeal against a
decision to offer a place in the preferred school but not within the desired year group.

22. REFUSAL OF ADMISSION TO PREFERRED SCHOOL

The majority of pupils in Monmouthshire are allocated a place at the parents’ first choice
of school. A refusal for admission to a school is made in line with the School
Admissions Code of Practice 2013 and is based on the following decisions;

o Whether to admit a child would prejudice the provision of efficient
education or the efficient use of resources

o Where an Admission Number has been met

o Welsh Government Class Size Regulations

If it is not possible to allocate a place at the preferred school, an alternative school place
will be offered. This will either be an alternative preference (as declared on the
application form) or the next nearest available school. It is then for parents to decide
whether or not to accept the place at the alternative school.

If a place is offered at the next nearest available school, the child concerned may be
entitled to free home to school transport should the distance criteria between home and
school address be met. For more information on home to school transport entitlement
please refer to the Home to School Transport Policy.

However, it is recognised that parents may not want a place at the next nearest
available school and will be provided with details of other schools with available places
within the area. In these circumstances, free home to school transport would not
normally be provided.

Following refusal of a school place, the child’s details will be held on a waiting list until
31 August of the academic year for which they are applying. If any places are handed

26
Page 151



back during this time places will be allocated from the waiting list as per the
oversubscription criteria.

23. WAITING LISTS

For those applicants that have been unsuccessful in obtaining a place at their preferred
school(s), waiting lists will be held up until the end of the academic year for which the
application is made. After such time, the existing waiting lists will be cleared and a fresh
application will be required. The child’s details will automatically be added onto the
waiting list for the preferred school(s) at the time of refusal.

Waiting lists will be prioritised as per the oversubscription criteria and not based upon
the date that the application was submitted. It is the responsibility of the applicant to
inform The School and Student Access Unit of any change in circumstances
which impacts on the oversubscription criteria and therefore their child’s place
on the waiting list. An example of this would be a change of address.

Should a place become available at the preferred school(s), the waiting list will be
“frozen” in order to allow the School and Student Access Unit to fill the vacancy. The
date at which the waiting list is frozen shall be determined as the date that the Local
Authority is satisfied that the place becomes available.

The parent concerned will be contacted by the School and Student Access Unit within 7
working days of the place becoming available, if their child qualifies for consideration of
the place. The parent will be given 7 days to formally accept or decline the offer of the
school place in writing. After such time, the child’s name will be withdrawn from the
waiting list, and the place will be offered to the next child on the waiting list, as the Local
Authority will assume that the place is no longer required.

24. APPEALS

In accordance with the School Admissions Code of Practice 2013 and the School
Admission Appeals Code of Practice 2013, the Local Authority will make arrangements
to enable the parent of a child to appeal against a decision to refuse a place at the
preferred school.

The appeal will be determined by an appeals panel established in accordance with
School Admission Appeals Code 2013. The panel must consist of three to five members
appointed by the Local Authority from the following categories:

27
Page 152



e People who are eligible to be lay members (persons without personal experience
in the management of a school or the provision of education in any school,
disregarding experience as a governor or in any other voluntary capacity).

e People who have experience in education; who are familiar with educational
conditions in the LA’s area or who are parents of registered children at a school
(other than the school at which the appeal is made).

Independent Appeal Panels must consider each case individually on its merits and they
cannot limit themselves, in advance, to the admission of any particular number of pupils.

Consideration by an Appeal Panel should be in two distinct stages:

A) The Factual Stage, where the panel decides as a matter of fact whether there
was a lawful reason to refuse admission; if there was not, the child must be
admitted; if there was, the committee must move on to:

B) The Balancing Stage, where the panel exercises its judgement to balance the
degree of prejudice to efficient education which would result from admitting

the child, and the strength of the parents' case, so as to arrive at a decision
which is binding on the admissions authority.

The decision of the appeal panel will be binding on the Local Authority.

24.1 Time frame for hearing appeals

Parents will receive a letter refusing admission and will be advised of their right of
appeal. The decision to appeal does not prevent the parent / carer accepting a place at
an alternative school whilst the hearing is convened, as the panel will determine the
appeal on the basis of application.

Appeal Hearings are convened by the Chief Executive Officer’s representative, and will
be heard within 30 School days of the date of application for appeal.

25. INFANT CLASS SIZE INITIATIVE

The Welsh Government is committed to ensuring that no child in Key Stage 1 will be in
a class where the pupil teacher ratio is more than 1:30. The Infant Class Size Initiative
was a phased programme between September 1999 and September 2001 thus

28
Page 153



ensuring that all children up to the age of 7 will be taught in classes containing no more
than 30 pupils.

Two main changes arose from the class size legislation. Firstly, admission authorities
must not admit a child to an infant class if in doing so would result in a class operating
at a greater than 30:1 pupil/teacher ratio. An admission authority can refuse to admit a
child to a school where to do so would require the school to take ‘qualifying measures’
(i.e. employing an additional teacher, building an additional classroom) to meet the
statutory class size limit.

Secondly, when dealing with admission appeals under class size legislation, Appeal
Panels do not follow the two stage process as outlined above. Instead, an Appeal
Panel will be able to uphold a parental appeal only if the decision to not admit the child
was due to the admission arrangements being incorrectly implemented or the decision
of the admission authority was not one which a reasonable admission authority would
make in that particular case.

25.1 Exceptions to the Infant class size initiative

Welsh Government Regulations require authorities to limit infant class sizes to no more
than 30 pupils and to ensure that junior classes do not exceed 30 pupils. There are
however exceptions to these regulations (called “excepted pupils”) which may allow the
30 pupil class limit to be exceeded. Excepted pupils are:

1. Children whose statements of ALN / IDP specify that they should be educated at the
school concerned, and who were admitted to the school outside a normal admission
round.

2. Children who are looked after by local authorities (looked after children), or who have
ceased to be looked after (previously looked after children) as a result of being
adopted or being placed with a family or given a special guardian and are admitted to
the school outside a normal admissions round.

3. Children initially refused admission to a school, but subsequently offered a place
outside a normal admission round by direction of an admission appeal panel, or
because the person responsible for making the original decision recognises that an
error was made in implementing the school's admission arrangements.

4. Children admitted outside the normal admission round who:

29
Page 154



e the maintaining local authority confirmed cannot gain a place at any other
suitable school within a reasonable distance of their home because they
have moved into the area outside a normal admission round, or

e they desire a religious education, or a Welsh speaking education and the
school in question is the only suitable school within a reasonable distance.

5. Children who were admitted to the school outside the normal admission round after
which the school has arranged its classes, and after the first day of the school year,
the effect of which would mean that the school would have to take a relevant
measure if such children were not excepted pupils.

6. Children of UK Service personnel who are admitted outside the normal admission
round.

7. Children whose twin or other sibling from a multiple birth are admitted as non-
excepted pupils, as the final pupil(s) allocated a place before the admission number
is reached.

8. Children who are registered pupils at special schools, but who receive part of their
education at a mainstream school.

9. Children with SEN who are normally educated in a special unit in a mainstream
school, who receive part of their lessons in a non-special class.

26. KEY STAGE 2 CLASS SIZE LIMITS

Whilst there are no regulations to limit class sizes to 30 in Key Stage 2, the Local
Authority is committed to complying with the Welsh Government target to ensure that
the 1:30 pupil teacher ratio in Key stage 2 is maintained.

30
Page 155



Appendix A - Coordinated Admission Scheme Primary Schools

MONMOUTHSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

DIRECTORATE FOR CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE

CO-ORDINATED ADMISSION SCHEME FOR SEPTEMBER 2025
PRIMARY SCHOOLS

INTRODUCTION

This scheme applies to all admission authorities, (Local Authority (LA) and Voluntary
Aided Schools (VA), in the area with regard to parents with children wishing to join the
normal year of entry at a maintained primary school in Monmouthshire from September
2025. (A glossary of terms is also shown in Appendix C).

All parents will be invited to express a preference on a common application form,
regardless of the status of the schools for which they wish to apply and whether the
school is in/out of county. The application form will provide an opportunity for
parents/carers to give reasons for their preferences. All completed forms should be
sent directly to the School & Student Access Unit (SSAU). An exception to this is if
parents wish to apply for a school that resides within Newport City Council = in
such circumstances the parent is required to apply directly to Newport City
Council under their admission arrangements.

Although individual school admission authorities (Voluntary Aided) may require you to
complete their own admission forms, all applicants must also complete a “Common
Application Form”.

Pupils with a Statement of Special Education Needs / Individual Development Plan
(IDP) will be admitted to the school named on their Statement / IDP.

1. Consideration of Applications and Allocation of Places (Normal Admission

Round)

When applying the oversubscription criteria to determine who is to be awarded places,
all parental preferences will be considered equally and allocated in line with the criteria
on page 12. The highest preference school will be offered in the event that one or more
preferences can be met.

If none of the preferences can be met, the Local Authority will ensure that as far as is
reasonably possible, an offer can be made.

31
Page 156



The closing date for the first stage of applications is 5pm on 9" January 2025 and
written notification of the outcome of each application will be given via the School &
Student Access Unit by 16" April 2025.

If a parent applies for a place outside Monmouthshire, the Authority to which they have
applied will inform the parent and Monmouthshire of the decision to offer or refuse.

Late applications or changes to the order of preference will be considered after the first
stage has been completed. Where a parent expresses a preference within the first
stage and then changes a preference after 5pm on 9™ January 2025, this will be
deemed as a late application.

Similarly, applications where a change of circumstance have occurred, which have an
impact upon the application’s status within the oversubscription criteria, will result in the
application being treated as late if these changes are brought to the Authorities attention
after the closing date.

TIMETABLE FOR PRIMARY CO-ORDINATED ADMISSIONS FOR SEPTEMBER
2025

PRIMARY SCHOOL (including Voluntary Aided Schools)

2.1 Stage 1
Applications made available to parents 6" November 2024
Applications received either paper or on line By 9" January 2025

Details of applications sent to Voluntary Aided Schools By 24 January 2025
and other LAs, as appropriate. Details of applications
made to Voluntary Aided Schools returned to School
and Student Access Unit

Voluntary Aided Schools and neighbouring LAS return By 15t March 2025
ranked lists of pupils to School & Student Access Unit
indicating the over-subscription criterion that each child
has been considered under and identifying refusals

School & Student Access Unit / Voluntary Aided Schools | By 21st March 2025
allocate the highest preference place available and
notifies other LA’s, as appropriate

School & Student Access Unit allocates places to By 4™ April 2025
Monmouthshire children without an offer

32
Page 157



School & Student Access Unit sends list of pupils to be | By 11" April 2025
offered places to each Monmouthshire School

School & Student Access Unit / Voluntary Aided Schools | On 16" April 2025
send notifications to parents/carers

Appeals May — July 2025

Stage 2

Following the first stage of allocations, late applications will be considered and slotted in
where possible using the admissions criteria. However there is no guarantee that late
applications will be dealt with before 16th April 2025.

At this stage, parents/carers will be able to apply for reconsideration to a school they
placed as a higher preference to the one offered.

The processing of late applications will be done on a monthly basis, so, for example,
applications received in April 2025 will be collated and processed during the first full
week in May 2025 with schools and parents being notified by the end of the second full
week. These will be processed as per the oversubscription criteria.

33
Page 158



Appendix B - Coordinated Admission Scheme Secondary Schools

INTRODUCTION

This scheme will apply to all schools in the area for parents with children wishing to join
the normal year of entry at a secondary school in Monmouthshire from September
2025.

All parents will be invited to state three preferences on a common application form,
regardless of the status of the schools for which they wish to apply and whether the
school is in/out of county. The form will provide an opportunity for parents/carer to give
reasons for their preferences. All completed secondary transfer forms should be
returned directly to the School & Student Access Unit.. An exception to this is if
parents wish to apply for a School that resides within Newport City Council —in
such circumstances the parent is required to apply directly to Newport City
Council under their admission arrangements.

Pupils with a Statement of Special Educational Needs / Individual Development Plan
(IDP) will be admitted to the school named on their statement / IDP.

Consideration of Applications and Allocation of Places (Normal Admission

Round)

When applying the oversubscription criteria to determine who is to be awarded places,
all parental preferences will be considered equally and allocated in line with the criteria
on page 14. The highest preference school will be offered in the event that one or more
preferences can be met.

If none of the preferences can be met the Local Authority will ensure, as far as is
reasonably possible, that an offer can be made at the next nearest available School.

The closing date for the first round of applications is 5pm on 13" November 2024 and
written notification of the outcome of each in county application will be given via the
School & Student Access Unit on 3rd March 2025.

For preferences to attend a school outside of Monmouthshire, written notification on the
decision to offer / refuse a place at the chosen school will be given by the relevant Local
Authority / Admission Authority in line with their offer date.

Monmouthshire will have regard to any offer made by another Local Authority. If the
other Local Authority can offer a higher preferred school, Monmouthshire will not make
an offer.

Late applications or changes of order of preference will be considered after the first
stage has been completed. Where a parent expresses a preference within the first

34
Page 159



stage and then changes a preference after 13" November 2024, this will be deemed as
a late application.

Applications where a change of circumstance have occurred, which will have an impact
upon the application’s status within the oversubscription criteria, will result in the
application being treated as late if these changes are brought to the Authorities attention
after the closing date.

TIMETABLE FOR CO-ORDINATED ADMISSIONS FOR SEPTEMBER 2025
SECONDARY SCHOOLS

Stage 1
Applications available to Parents 25" September 2024
Applications received By 13" November 2024

Details of applications sent to Monmouthshire schools By 15t December 2024
and other LA’s, as appropriate

Consultation with neighbouring LAs on cross border By 13" December 2024
preferences
School & Student Access Unit allocates the highest By 3rd February 2025

preference place available and notifies other LA’s, as
appropriate

School & Student Access Unit allocates places to By 10th February 2025
Monmouthshire children without an offer

School & Student Access Unit sends list of pupils to be | On 21st February 2025
offered places to each Monmouthshire school

School & Student Access Unit sends notifications to On 3rd March 2025

parents/carers

Appeals May — July 2025
Stage 2

Following the first round of allocations, late applications will be considered and slotted in
where possible using the admissions criteria. There is no guarantee that late
applications will be dealt with before the 3@ March 2025.

The processing of late applications is undertaken on a monthly basis, so applications
received in April 2025 will be collated and processed during the first full week in May

35
Page 160



2025 with schools and parents/carers being notified by the end of the second full week.
These will be processed as per the oversubscription criteria.

36
Page 161



Appendix C - Admission Authorities

Monmouthshire County Council

Voluntary Aided Schools (Monmouthshire)

- Archbishop Rowan Williams Church in Wales Primary School
- Magor Church In Wales Primary School

- Our Lady & St Michaels Roman Catholic Primary School
- St Mary’s Roman Catholic Primary School, Chepstow
Blaenau Gwent County Borough Council

Gloucestershire County Council

Herefordshire County Council

Newport City Council

Powys County Council

Torfaen County Borough Council

Brynmawr Foundation School

St Albans RC School

St Joseph’s RC Schools

37
Page 162



Glossary.

Normal Year of Entry The year in which a pupil is scheduled to
commence / change school

Maintained School A school maintained either by the LA or
the Diocese
Common Application Pre-printed form with pupil details and

unique pupil reference Number

38
Page 163



Appendix D - Admission Numbers for Schools

Secondary

SCHOOL Capacity AN
King Henry VIl 3-19 School 1290 215
Caldicot Comprehensive 1500 253
Chepstow Comprehensive 1282 193
Monmouth Comprehensive 1725 270
SCHOOL Capacity | AN
Archbishop Rowan Williams C in W

Primary 210 30
King Henry VIl 3-19 School 420 60
Cantref Primary 210 30
Castle Park Primary 261 37
Cross Ash Primary 210 30
Dewstow Primary 210 30
Durand Primary 210 30
Gilwern Primary 210 30
Goytre Fawr Primary 210 30
Kymin View Primary 210 30
Llandogo Primary 111 15
Llanfoist Fawr Primary 210 30
Llantilio Pertholey C in W Primary 210 30
Llanvihangel Crucorney Primary 79 11
Magor C in W Primary 317 55
Osbaston C in W Primary 210 30
Our Lady & St. Michael's RC

Primary 210 30
Overmonnow Primary 390 51
Pembroke Primary 210 30
Raglan C in W Primary 210 30
Rogiet Primary 210 30
Shirenewton Primary 210 30
St. Mary's RC Primary 210 30
The Dell Primary 420 60
Thornwell Primary 330 47
Trellech Primary 207 29
Undy Primary 359 54

39
Page 164



Usk C in W Primary 280 40
Ysgol Gymraeg Y Fenni 420 60
Ysgol Y Ffin 210 30

40
Page 165




This page is intentionally left blank



> monmouthshire

Q) sir fynwy

Socio Economic Duty)

Name of the Officer Matt Jones Please give a brief description of the aims of the proposal

The majority of primary school catchment areas have been in place in their current
Phone no:01633644508 form since prior to local government reorganisation. A review of primary school
E-mail: matthewdjones@monmouthshire.gov.uk catchment areas is necessary to ensure that they are suitable and reflective of current

demand. Any proposed changes to catchment areas must follow a consultation
process in line with the School Admissions Code Wales (July 2013)

Name of Service area Children and Young People Date November 2023
jo,
D
«@
4
|_\
cb. Are your proposals going to affect any people or groups of people with protected characteristics? Please explain the impact, the
~ evidence you have used and any action you are taking below.

Describe any positive impacts your Describe any negative impacts What has been/will be done to
Protected proposal has on the protected your proposal has on the mitigate any negative impacts or
Characteristics characteristic protected characteristic better contribute to positive
impacts?
Age The proposals are to consult with families in | No impact

the affected areas on changes to primary
school catchment areas. The current
catchment schools and proposed catchment
schools offer the same age range

Disability The proposals involve allocating a primary The proposed new catchment schools Parents will continue to have the
school catchment that is within the county to | are in some cases further away which opportunity to express a preference the
families resident in Monmouthshire. The school that they would like their child to




proposed new catchment schools are
compliant to meet the needs of mainstream
pupils with disabilities.

may not be a welcome change for those
with disabilities

attend. This means that they will still be
able to apply for places at the current
catchment school.

In most cases, the affected families will
be eligible for free home to school
transport.

Describe any positive impacts your

Describe any negative impacts your

What has been/will be done to

and Llandegveth, the current catchment
school is a church in wales school. As the

proposed new catchment school is Usk
Church in Wales Primary School, the affected

families will continue to have access to a
church in wales school

Protected proposal has on the protected proposal has on the protected mitigate any negative impacts or
Characteristics characteristic characteristic better contribute to positive
impacts?
Gender reassignment | No impact n/a n/a
O
2
G(K/Iarriage or civil No impact n/a n/a
Hpartnership
(0]
Qo
Pregnancy or No impact n/a n/a
maternity
Race No impact n/a n/a
Religion or Belief For the areas of Tredunnock, Llanhennock n/a n/a




Sex

The current catchment schools and proposed
catchment schools are suitable for all genders

n/a

n/a

Protected
Characteristics

Describe any positive impacts your
proposal has on the protected
characteristic

Describe any negative impacts
your proposal has on the
protected characteristic

What has been/will be done to
mitigate any negative impacts or
better contribute to positive
impacts?

Sexual Orientation

No impact

n/a

n/a

. The Socio-economic Duty and Social Justice

)

Q  The Socio-economic Duty requires public bodies to have due regard to the need to reduce inequalities of outcome which result from
= socioeconomic disadvantage when taking key decisions This duty aligns with our commitment as an authority to Social Justice.

0))]
©

Describe any positive impacts your
proposal has in respect of people
suffering socio economic
disadvantage

Describe any negative impacts your
proposal has in respect of people
suffering socio economic
disadvantage.

What has been/will be done to
mitigate any negative impacts or
better contribute to positive impacts?




Socio-economic
Duty and Social
Justice

Ay 4
ved

The proposals are formed around
providing Monmouthshire families with
access to a Monmouthshire school,
allowing the opportunity for greater
connections within the county.

Families residing within the affected areas
will have an equal opportunity to claim
free home to school transport to the
proposed new catchment schools.

'The proposals will mean a change in
primary school catchment areas for
affected families.

We acknowledge that proposals may
result in a change to existing connections
with the current catchment school
community and associate support
networks

For those residing in the catchment area for
Charles Williams CIW Primary, they will
remain within catchment under the
governing body’s admission arrangements,
but within Usk CIW Primary under
Monmouthshire’s admission arrangements.
Parents will therefore continue to be able to
express a preference for their current
catchment school should they wish to do so

The purpose behind this consultation is to
seek the views of those affected by the
proposals, and such views will be
considered prior to any formal decisions
being made.

0LT ®

w

. Policy making and the Welsh language.

Standards:

How does your proposal impact
on the following aspects of the
Council’s Welsh Language this proposal

Describe the positive impacts of

of this proposal

What has been/will be done

Describe the negative impacts | to mitigate any negative

impacts or better contribute
to positive impacts




Policy Making

Effects on the use of the Welsh
language,

Promoting Welsh language

Treating the Welsh language no
less favourably

The proposals are relevant to amending the
catchment area for the english medium
primary school within the affected areas.
These areas also have a designated
catchment area for welsh medium primary
schools should parents wish for their
children to be educated through the medium
of welsh.

Any policy change will consider the impact
on the Welsh language and will be in line
with the council’s Welsh language
standards.

n/a

n/a

Operational

ecruitment & Training of
bworkforce

D

Y

~N

No'impact

1T ARV 1
N

“Service delivery

Use of Welsh language in service
delivery

Promoting use of the language

Children wishing to be educated through the
medium of welsh will not be affected by
these proposals. The affected areas will
continue to have a welsh medium
catchment school and will receive free
home to school transport to that school

All information relating to this consultation
will be available in Welsh

4. Does your proposal deliver any of the well-being goals below? Please explain the impact (positive and negative) you expect, together
with suggestions of how to mitigate negative impacts or better contribute to the goal. There’s no need to put something in every box if it is
not relevant!



Well Being Goal

Does the proposal contribute to this goal?
Describe the positive and negative impacts.

What actions have been/will be taken to
mitigate any negative impacts or better
contribute to positive impacts?

A prosperous Wales

Efficient use of resources, skilled,
educated people, generates wealth,
provides jobs

The proposals will increase the opportunities for
children to have access to a school within the county
and ensures ongoing sustainable education provision

A resilient Wales

Maintain and enhance biodiversity and
land, river and coastal ecosystems that
support resilience and can adapt to
change (e.g. climate change)

The proposal will result in some families having a
catchment school that is further away than their
current catchment school, meaning increased
travelling times and an inability to walk to school,
meaning more use of vehicles to get to and from
school

The area is a rural community and many of the
families would be unable to walk to their current
catchment school. However, proposals are not
removing the opportunities for parents to express a
preference and they will be able to continue to apply
for places at their nearest school should they wish to
do so.

2 17T "\Rn

D

D

DA healthier Wales

:‘People’s physical and mental
wellbeing is maximized and health
impacts are understood

The affected areas are rural communities with limited
opportunities to walk to their current catchment
school. The proposed new catchment schools are in
many cases further away which will not improve their
opportunities to walk to school

The affected areas are rural and in most instances
result in families living in excess of 2 miles to their
nearest schools, making walking to and from school
more challenging.

A Wales of cohesive communities
Communities are attractive, viable,
safe and well connected

The proposals are formed in support of connecting
communities. There are currently families that do not
have a primary catchment school within the county
so these proposals will contribute to them feeling
connected with the monmouthshire community

A globally responsible Wales Taking
account of impact on global well-being
when considering local social,
economic and environmental
wellbeing

The proposals are likely to result in families having to
travel to their catchment school by vehicle.

This is the status for many with their current
designated catchment school, but families will be
able to be transport via the local authority services
rather than by individual family vehicles.




A Wales of vibrant culture and
thriving Welsh language

Culture, heritage and Welsh language
are promoted and protected. People

There are no specific proposals in this report to
promote and protect the Welsh language. However
the provision for fully immersive welsh medium

provision will still be available for the families residing
in the affected areas through their designated welsh

medium catchment school(s).

The affected areas have a designated catchment
area for those wishing for their children to be
educated through the medium of welsh.

Well Being Goal

Does the proposal contribute to this goal?
Describe the positive and negative impacts

What actions have been/will be taken to
. mitigate any negative impacts or better
contribute to positive impacts?

are encouraged to do sport, art and
recreation

A more equal Wales

People can fulfil their potential no
matter what their background or
Ecircumstances

D
D

'\RY\ [

The proposals will provide equity to the families
residing within the affected areas as they will join all
other monmouthshire residents in having a primary
catchment school that is within the county.

H
(?Ia How has your proposal embedded and prioritised the sustainable governance principles in its development?

Sustainable Development
Principle

Does your proposal demonstrate you have met this
principle? If yes, describe how. If not explain why.

Are there any additional actions to be taken to
mitigate any negative impacts or better
contribute to positive impacts?

Balancing
short term
need with
long term and
planning for
the future

80

Long Term

The proposals will enable children residing within the
affected areas to join a primary school that is within the
county, and therefore ease their arrangements for transition
to a secondary school within the county




r< Y

Collaboration

Working
together with
other
partners to
deliver
objectives

n/a

Sustainable Development

Does your proposal demonstrate you have met this

Are there any additional actions to be taken to

] T "\RY\ [

Integration

Principle principle? If yes, describe how. If not explain why. mitigate any negative impacts or better
contribute to positive impacts?

Involving The proposals are to launch a consultation with those
those with affected by proposals so that their views can be
an interest incorporated prior to any decisions for change being made
and seeking

0 w their views

D

D

D Involvement

= Putting The proposals will increase the opportunities for affected

;I resources families to obtain a place at a Monmouthshire School.
into . Current arrangements would mean that families may not be
preventing | ape to access their nearest monmouthshire school should
problems the school become oversubscribed
occurring or
getting

Prevention worse

Considering | The proposals will have a positive impact on the wellbeing of
impact on all | the families residing within the affected areas, as they will
wellbeing form part of the community and transitional process between
goals primary and secondary schools.
together and
on other
bodies




6. Council has agreed the need to consider the impact its decisions has on the following important responsibilities: Corporate

Parenting and Safeguarding. Are your proposals going to affect any of these responsibilities?

Describe any positive impacts your
proposal has

Describe any negative impacts
your proposal has

What will you do/ have you done
to mitigate any negative impacts
or better contribute to positive
impacts?

Safeguarding Children will have access to a school that is

within the county and therefore within the
Council’s control for safeguarding
arrangements

“Corporate Parenting | Current arrangements for children who are
ég looked after will remain in place
(0]
|.A
o
7. What evidence and data has informed the development of your proposal?

O

Surplus places data
Planning places data
Information from LDP for known housing developments

The consultation will also enable us to obtain information from the families residing within the affected areas on whether they are supportive of the

proposals put forward




8. SUMMARY: As a result of completing this form, what are the main positive and negative impacts of your proposal, how have they
informed/changed the development of the proposal so far and what will you be doing in future?

The proposals to consult on amendment the primary school catchment for the areas of Tredunnock, Llanhennock and Llandegveth will complete our goal
of ensuring that all Monmouthshire families have access to a school that is within the county. The affected areas have an allocated secondary school
within Monmouthshire, so the proposals will help to align the transitional arrangements between primary and secondary education for the affected area.

9. ACTIONS: As a result of completing this form are there any further actions you will be undertaking? Please detail them below, if
applicable.

What are you going to do When are you going to do it? | Who is responsible

N/A

O

D
q

AN

\I

(@)

10.VERSION CONTROL: The Equality and Future Generations Evaluation should be used at the earliest stage, such as informally
within your service, and then further developed throughout the decision making process. It is important to keep a record of this
process to demonstrate how you have considered and built in equality and future generations considerations wherever

possible.
Version | Decision making stage Date considered Brief description of any amendments made following
No. consideration
1 CYP DMT 27/11/23 No adjustments made
2 Cabinet — permission to consult 13/12/23
3 Cabinet — consultation feedback and final 10/11/23
decision making




	Agenda
	3 Uwchlwytho Symiau Cyfalaf A106 i mewn i Gyllideb Gyfalaf 2024/25
	IPA S106 Completed Document

	4 GORCHYMYN GWARCHOD MANNAU CYHOEDDUS AR GYFER RHEOLI CŴN
	3a. Appendix 1 MCC (Fouling of Land by Dogs) (Monmouthshire) Designation Order (No 1) 1998
	3b. Appendix Two, MCC (Dog Control) Public Spaces Protection Order 2024
	3c. Appendix Three, Integrated Impact Assessment
	3d. Background Paper Place Scrutiny Report 1st February 2024 Appendix One Consultation Summary_
	3e. Background Paper Place Scrutiny Report 1st February 2024
	3f. Backgroung Paper Cabinet Report 7 9 16

	5 POLISI DERBYN YSGOLION 2025/26, GAN GYNNWYS ADOLYGIAD Y DALGYLCHOEDD YSGOLION
	2a. Consultation report Final Draft
	2b. AdmissionArrangements_2025_26_Final
	2c. Appendix 4 - Integrated Impact Assessment catchment review


